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fence 1s not Treafon. Furthermore, the King’s
lawful Commiffion is net to be oppeled in any
Cafe; and the Indiétment upen 1t will ran, that
it is againfp the King>s Crown and Digiiity, aid againft
the Peace. ‘Therefore to conclude, that it is Trea-
fon, is a non fequétur : For 1t is not Freafon in ma-
ny Cafes, to feizeand deftroy thofe that Act by the
King’s lawful Commiition.

The Foarth thing is that 1t was againft the Form
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of the Statutes. The Statutes thus mention’d muft
be thofe Statutes, or at leaft muft comprehend
fome Statute that fettles the Guards for the Prefer-
vation of the King’s Perfon : FFor the Seizing of the
Grerds is the Quert A% affigned  of Compaffing the
King’s Death, Now if there be no fuch Statute,
then Is this Part of the Conclufion of the Indict-
ment alfo falfe. And confequently the Jodgment
againft my Lord Ruffe/ ought to be revers’d,
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frial of Colonel ALGERNON SIDNEY ™, &2 the

King’s-Bench for Eigh-1reaton, Novemb. 21, 1683,

il.

SEEAE N Neweinber the 7th Algerion Sidney, Efgs

'{é% % was by Hebeas Coipus T brought up to the

ELPEE Bar of the Couit of King’s-Beuch, and the
(+ D)7 . .

Cleik of the Crown having read the Re-
turn, Mr, Attoriey Generel informed the Court there
was an Indi¢tinent againit cthe Priloner, and pray-
ed he might be charged with 1t

CL of Gr. Alscirion Siduey, Hold up thy Hand.
[/Fhich be did. ]

Midd. [I. The Furers for onr Lovd the King, upon
their Qaths do prefent, That Algernon Sidney, late of
the Parifh of §£. Mlartin in the Frelds, iz 20e Connty
of Middlelex, Lfg; as a folfe Traitor ageisfe the moft
lfuftricus, moft excellent Prines, ouy Lord Charles 1.
Ly the Grace of Gad, King of England, Scotland,
France aird Ireland, and bis Netural Lord, ot bav-
sug ih2 Fear of God i bis Heaid, wor <werghing the
Duzy of bis Allegicnce, dut moved and feduced by the
Infiination of the Devily, utterly withdrawing the coi-
dicl Love, and true, due and natural Qbedicnce, which
a tyiie aiid [aithful Suljelt of our faid Lord the King
froidd bear towards bim the faid Lerd the King, and
6f Right is bouird 1o bear 5 contyiving, and with all bis
Strength intending, to aiffurb the Peace aid cominoi
Trananilliiv ¢f . . is Kingdem of BEngland, and to fiir up
aitd move [¥ar and Rebellion againft the faid Lord the
King,andtofulcrt ibhe Government of the faid Lord e
Kiuz, fini6is Niugdur of England, aid to depofe and
diprive the fuid Lord ihe King, from the Title, Ho-
nour and Regal Naiie of the Lisperial Crowin of bis
Kingdois of England, and to dring end put the faid
Lord the King 10 Diath, and fual Deftruction, the
shiriiesh Day of Yune, fn the frve and thirtieth Year
of ti¢ Reggn of our Lovd King Charles 11, now King
of England, &¢. aud divers other Days and Tinmes,
as well befoie as aftery at the Parifh of St. Giles in
the Fields, 7z the County of Middlefex, malicionfly
and traitevorfly, wwith divers other Traitors to the
Furors aferefaid nukiowi, did confpire, compafs, ima-
gine and imtend fo deprive and caft dowon the faid
Lord the King, bis fuprene natural Lord, not only
from the rcgal Statey, Title, Power and Rufe of bis
Kingdom of England 5 bt alfo to kill, and bring and
put to Death the fame Lord the King, and to change,
alier and utterly fubvert the ancient Governinent of
this bis Kingdom of England, and to cazfe aiid tro-
ctre a miferable Slaughter among the Subjedis of the
Jaid Lord the King through bis whole Kingasi of
England, and to msve and fir up an Infurveflion
aind Rebellion againft the faid Lovd the King, within
this Kingdom of England.  Aud to fulfil and perfe?
thofe bis moft horrid, wicked and diabolical Tieafous,
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* Buarret's hiftory of his Own Times, 74/, I. p. 570.

aid treiterous Coipolfigs, Tinaginations and Purpofes,
the fome Aleernon S.dney, as a falfe Traitor, then
aid there, and droers ather Days and Times, as well
before as ofter, malicionfly, traitcroifly aid advifedly,
did affemble biinfelf, wect and confult with the afore-
Jaid other Tiaitors to the Jurors aferefaid wiskuowin,
and with the fame Trailors did treal of, and for thofé
bis Treafous and traiterons Conpaffings, Linaginations
and Purpsfes, o be exccuted and fulfilled,  And thet
the aforefoid Algernon Sidney, as @ folfe Traitor,
malicisfly, traiicroufly aind aduvijidly, iheir and there,
and divers other Davs and Tiues, as well before as af-
ter, upon bimfclf, did affume, aid io thz aforefaid o-
ther Ticitors did proinife that bz would be aiding and
affifting i the Exccntion of theiyr Treafons and iraite-
rous Compalfings, Iinazinations and Puipsfes aferefaid,
and to fulffly perfelt aud redice to Effedd thofe their
gt borrid Treafons aid irciterous Compafings, lina-
ginations aid Pirpofes cforefaid, the [aize Algernon
Sidney, as a felfe Traitor, then aind there, faiffy, -
liciorfly, aavifedly and traitcronfy did fend one Aaron
Smith zizto Scotland to invite, procrire; and incite di-
vers evil-difpofed Subjelfs of owr faid Lord the King,
of bis Kingdoin of Scotland, fo coine into thss Niigdoin
of England, o aavife ond confult with the aforefaid
Algernon Sidney, aud the aforefuid oxbzr nitkiion
Traitors in this Kingdoin of England, of Aid aind f-
Sftaice to be expected and fupplied from the Kingdoi of
Scotland 1o fulfil, perfeii, and reduce o Effet tha2
their moft wwicked, borrid and traiterous Treafous a-
forefeid. dud that the aforefard Algernon Sidney /o
fulfi! and perfei? thofz moff wicked, Lorrid and devilifh
Treafouns, aud traiterons Compaffizgs, Iinagiuations
and Purpofes aforcfaid y and to perfuade the Subjelts
of the faid Lord ihe King of this Kiugdem of Eng-
land, Toat it is lawful to make and flir up an Infur-
rection. and Rebellion againft the faid Lord the King
thet now is, the faid thirtieth Day of June, in the
Jive and thirtieth Year of the Rejon of the faid Lovd
the King that now is, at the Parifh of §t. Giles in the
Fields, 7iz the County of Middlelex, falfly, unlac-
Jullr, wickedly, feditionfly and traiteronfly, did matke,
cempofe aid write, and caufed to be made, compofed
and writlen, a ccitain falfe, feditions and traiterous
Libel, in which faid falfe, feditious and traiterous Li-
bel among other Things is comained as followeth in
thefe Englith /7ords, viz, The Power originally in
the People of Euglead is delegated unto the Parlia-
ment, he (the moft ferene Lord, Charles 11, now
King of Znglend, meaning) is fubjectunto the Law
of God, as he is a Man to the People, that makes
him a King, inafmuch as he is a King, the Law

fets

+ Note, This Habeas Corpus was granted the Day before, which was before the Indi@ment was SHund by the Grand Jury,
for 1t was not prefented to them til] after hé was brought to the Hall,
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fets 2 Meafureunto that Subjection, and the Parlia-
ment judges of the particular Cafes thereupon arif-
ing, he muft be content to fubmit his Intereft unto
theirs, fince he is no more than any one of them
in any othier refpect than that he is, by the Confent
of all, raifed above any other ; 1f he doth not like
this Condition, he may renounce the Crown; but
if he receive it upon that Condition (as all Magi-
{irates do the Power they receive) and {wear to per-
form'it, he muft expect-that the Performance will
he exacted, or Revenge taken by thofe that
he hath betrayed. And that in another Place in
che faid falfe, feditious and traiterous Libel, among
other Things, thefe falfe, feditious, and traiterous
Enuglifb Sentences are contained (that Isto fay) We
may therefore change or take away Kings, with-
out breaking any Yoke, or that 1s made a Yoke
which ought not to be one, the Injury is there-
fore in making or impofing, and there can be
none in breaking it, Azainf ihe Duty of his Al-
legiance, againft ibe Peace of the faid now L.rd the
King, His Crown and Dignity, &c.  And agaiuft
the Formn of the Statutes in this Cafe made and pro-
vided, &LC. _

How fay’it thou ? Art thou Guilty of this High
Treafon whereof thou ftandeft indiéted, or not
Guilty ?

Cr;g. Sidney. My Lord, I find here an Heap of
Crimes put together, dittin¢t 1n Nature one from
another, and diftinguifhed by Law; and I do
conceive, my Lord, That the Inditment itfelf
is thereupon void, and I cannot be impeached
upon It |

L.C.7. We are not to admit of
any Dilcourfes, till you anfwer the
Queltion, Whether you be Guilty or
not Guilty.

Mr. 1. Gen, It he will demur,
my Lord, we will give him Leave.

Col. Sidney. 1 prefume your Lordihip will direct
me, for Tam an ignorant Man in Matters of this
Kind, I may ealily be furprized 1n 1t, I never was
ata Trial in my Life of any Body, and never read
a Law-Book.

L. C.#. Becaufe no Prifoner under your Circum-
flances 1s to have Counfel, but m fpecial Cafes to
be affiened in Martters of Law, the Court is bound
by their Ouths and Duty of their Places, that they
fhall not fee any Wrong done to you: But the
Bufinels that we are to tell you now 1s, youare to
plead Guilty, or not Guilty, or Demur, which is
a Confefiion in Point of Law.

Col. Sidney. Under favour, my Lord, There may
be Inditments that are erroneous, and if they are
erroneous and vitious, they are null, and ought not
to be anfwered to,

Mr. Fuft. Withins. If you pleafe to demur to it
you fhall have Liberty to make any Exceptions,

Col. Sianey. 1 don’t demur, *tis only Exceptions.
Ithink 1n Matters of Life, a Man may give in
his Exceptions to the Bill, and plead not Guilty
afterwards, I am fure in Sir Henry Vane's Cale,
the Court faid it, and offered him to do it; that
which, under Favour, 1 hope to do.

L. C. 7. You muft plead or demur,

Col. Siduey. My Lord, if Iputin Exceptions to
the Bill, T don’t plead *till thole Exceptions are o-
ver-ruled.  This was in the Cafe of Sir Henry Vane,

L.C.7 Sir, I muft tell you, you muft either
piead or demur.

Col. Siduey. My Lord, there are in this [ndi&-

ment fome Treafons or reputed Treafons, that
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may come within the Statute of the 13th of this
King, which is limited by Time, the Profecution
muft be in {ix Months, and the Indi@ment within
three. Now, my Lord, if that this Bufinefs that
1s mentioned, be above fix Months before my Com-
mitment, or above three before the Indi@ment,
I think, under Favour, I ought not to anfwer to
thefe Matters.

L.C. 7. You are miftaken in the Law. That
will be faved when the Fact comes to appear, If
they alledge the Thing to be at a Time, which,
according to that Allegation would maintain the
Indictment, 1f upon the Ttial, it appear otherwife,
the Court 1s bound to take notice of it when you
come to your Trial, but we are not bound to exa-
mine that before you have pleaded.

Col. Sidney. My Lord, every body will acknow-
ledge, that there have been, or may be, vitious
Inditments, Now if [ plead to an erroneous In-
ditment, and am acquitted, I may be indicted a-
gain, Bills of Attainder have been upon Errors
in original Indiétments, as that of the Duke of
Somerfet. Now if there be here feveral Things
diftinct 1n Nature, diftinguithed by Law that are
put together, us impofiible to make a politive
Anfwer to any one. If any one thould tell me,
that I by my {elf, or by others, by Sword or by Pif
tol confpired to kill the King, I can fay,Idid it, or
I didit not. If any one fay, I have levied War,
and by feveral Acts undertake to prove I have done
it, I can fay I have done it, or I have not, But
here 1 don’t find any thing {pecified, or can tell
upon what Statute I am indiCted. I pray I may
{ee the Record.

L, C. 7. That we can’tdo. You fhall hear it
read again if you will, if you think it tc be a void
I ndi&tment, Demur to it if you will.

Col, Sidney. My Lord, 1 defire you to accept of
this. [Shewing a Parchinent.]

L.C. J. Whatiste? Putin what Plea you fhall
be advifed; but if you put in a fpecial Plea, and
Mr. Attorney demurs, you may have Judgment
of Death, and by that you wave the Fad.

Col Sidney. 1 can’t make any Objeion to the
Bill after I have pleaded, Not Guilty, for I accept
the Bill thereby to be good.

L.C. F. If you can affign any Matter of Law,
do. But otherwife what a kind of thing would it
be? All Criminals would fay, in all Cafes, I doubt
whether the Bill be good or bad. And after I
have thus confidered of 1t, I will plead:  You arz
mifinformed, and this the Court tells you as a Du-
ty incumbent on them.

Mr. Fult, Withins. If you demur, and fhew what
your Caufes are, we will affign you Counfel,

Cal. Siduney. I defire you would not try me, and
make me to run on dark and flippery Places, I
don’t fee my Way.

L.C. 7. Don’t apprehend yourfelf to be fo, as
if the Court would run you on any Inconvenience,
But they arebound to fee the Methods of Juftice
preferved, they are thofe thatyou, and all the Kings
Subjects are bound to conform to. If any one of
us were in  the fame Conditton, we muft obferve
the fame Methods of Law.

Cl. of Cr. Art thou Guilty or not Guiley ?

Col, Sidney. Then pray, my Lord, will you tell
me this, Is it true, that a Man, how vitious {oever
an Indi@ment is, muft anfwer or demur to it ?

L. C. 7. He muft either anfwer or demur.

Col. Sidney. Are there no Exceptions to be ad-

mitted ¢
51 2 L. C Y.
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L.C.¥. None: And if you don’t do the one,
or the other, Judgment pafles, as if you had plead-
ed Guilty. s -

Col. Sidney. Here is a Plea ®, -

Mr. Fuft. Withins. Will you ftand by it? Con-
fider yourfelf, and your Life, if you put in that
Plea, and Mr. Attorney demurs, if your Plea be
not good, your Life is gone.

Col, Sidney. Pray, my Lord, give me a Day to
confider-of 1t

L. C. ¥. No, we muft not introduce new Me-
thods or Forms for any body. The fame Cafe that
is with you may be with other People.

Col. Sidney. My Lord, 1do not pretend to any
thing but what 1s Law, and due to every Man upon
Englifp Ground. 1 would be very forry todo that
which may be hurtful,

L. C. F. You have the Rule of the Court. You
muft do one or the other. Call him to 1t.

Col. Sidney. I defire this may be read. [Shewing
the (aine Parchiment. ]

L. C. ¥ It fhall not be read unle(s you putitin
as a Plea,

M. Sol. Gen. I muft do my Duty. Mr. #illians
exceeds his Liberty, he informs the Prifoner feve-
ral Things.

Mr. Williams. 1only faid, if 1t wasa Plea, put
o in, Mr. Attorney can hear all I fay.  [Whereupor
Mr. Williams was reproved by the Lovd Chief Fuf-
Lice.

C:f[:!. Sidney. 1 only give it as Exceptions to the
Bill.

C!. of Cr. Art thou Guilty or not Guiley ?

Col. Siducy. 1f any one fhould ask me any par-
ticular Thing, 1 could tell how to anfwer.

L.C. 7. He asks you a particular Thing. *Tis
the Duty of the Court to pronounce Judgment, if
you donot plead.

Col. Sidney. Why then, if youdrive me upon 1t,
T muft plead.

L.C. 7 lam fure there is no Gentleman of the
Jong Robe would purany fuch thing mto your
Head. There was never any fuch thing done in
Capital Marteis.

Col, Sidwey. My Lord, I am there indicted for
Confpiring the Death of the King; I have not
Confpired the Death of the King: I am there 1n-
di¢ted for Levying of War; I have not done that:
[ am indicted for having invited in others of ano-
ther Nation; I have not done that netther: I am
there indicted to have written a {editious Libel to
itir up the Spirits of the People againft the King;
I have not written any thing to ftir up the People
againft the King,

L.C.¥. We are not to hear all this, you muft
plead as other People, or elfe in plain Englifp we
will pronounce Sentence, We ought to give all
Men Satisfaction that will be fatsfied; bur if they
won’t be directed we can’t help that.

Col. Sidney. My Lord, if you put me upon this
inevitable Neceflity, it lies upon you ; I mulft plead
then.

Cl. of Cr. Art thou Guilty, or not Guilty ¢

Col. Sidney. Not Guilty.

Cl. of Cr. Culprit, How wilt thou be tried ¢

Col. Sidney. By God and my Country.

Cl.of Cr. God fend thee a good Deliverence,

L.C. ¥. If you be not guilty, I pray God you
may elcape.

M. Ait. Gen. My Lord, will you pleafe to ap-

point 4 Day for his Trial, that he may take notice
of it now¢

L. C. 7. What Time would you have ?

M. Adit. Gen. A Week’s Time, do you think
that will be enough ?

Col. Siduey. No, pray, my Lord, give me a Fort-
night’s Time.

Mr. A, Gen. I won’t oppofe It.

Col. Sidney. 1n the next Place I defire 2 Copy of
the Indi¢tment.

L. C. 7. We can’t grant it by Law.

Col, Sidney. 1delire you would pleafe to give me
Counfel.

L. C. ¥ Wecan’t do it; if youaffign us any
particular Point of Law, if the Court think itfuch
a Point as may be worth the debating, you {hall
have Counfel : But if you ask for Counfel for no
other Reafon than becaufe you ask 1t, we muft
not grant it. The Court is bound to fee that no-
thing be done againft you, but what is accord-
ing to the Rules of Law. I would be very

loth to draw the Guilt of any Man’s Blood upon
e,

Col. Siduey. Hlas not every Body Counfel ?

L.C.%. No.

Col. Sidney. 1 have feveral Points of Law,

L.C. 5. Tell us them,

Col. Sidney. My Lord, will you oblige me that
am an ignorant Man, and confefs my felf fo, upon
hearing my Indi¢tment for Things I know not
of, a long Thing, prefently to raife a Point of
Law.

L.C.%. *Tis not we oblige you, Mr. Siduey,
’tis the Law obliges you. We are the Minifters
of the Law, ’tis the Law fays we are not to al-
low you Counfel without making your Objections,
that the Court may underftand whether it be fit:
*Tis the Law fays we may not allow you a Copy
of the Indi¢tment, Thereforedon’t goaway and
fay that we as Men {itting here impofe upon you,
we fic here only to admunifter the Juftice of the
Nation,

My. Fuft. Withins. Sir, you will have a Fort-
night’s Time to confider of Objections in Law.

L.C. #. If you will have 1t read, you fhall. T hote
Things ihat you may have by Law, God forbul
but you fhould have the Benefit of them.

Col, Sidney. I defire, my Lord, to hear it read
48311,
© Mr. Ant. Gen. Would you haveit read in Latin €

Col, Sidney, Yes, if you pleafe, Ido underftand
a litcle Lazin.

Then the Titdifiment was read in Latin,

Col. Sidney. What 1s that Statute ?

L.C. ¥. When you come to your Trial, Mr.
Attorney will tell you what Statute he goes upon,
And he may give in Evidence any Aét of Parlia-
ment that comprehends Treafon.

Col. Sidney. Methinks he fhould fay what Sta-
tute he goes upon.

Mr. Juf. Withins, Sir, would you have a new
Indiétment for you ?

L. C.7 He muft take notice of his Trial this
Day Fortnight.  Lieutenant of the Tower, you
may take the Prifoner back again.

Then the Licntenant of the Tower (o0k azcay bis
Prifoner.

ON

¥ Sec this Plea in the Appendix,
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‘N the 2 11t of Novembery Algernon Sidney, Efqs
O was brought to the Bar of the Court of Kings

Bench by ‘Habeas Corpuis, and Proclamation for In-
formation being made, he defired Pen, Ink and

Paper, which were granted him. And he alfo de-

fired, that two Perfons, (vz.) Mr. Wyun and
Mr. Gibbs, might write for him, which was alfo
allowed by the Court.

Col, Siduey. My Lord, when I was laft here be-
fore your Lordthip, I did defire a Copy of my
Indi@ment, and I thought the Law did allow it
me. But being in an hurry, carrted firft to a Tha-
vern, then led through Soldiers, and furprized ab-
folutely, I could not give that Reafon why I
thought the Law allowed mea Copy. My Lord,
I was denied a Copy, and thereby I was deprived of
the Benefit of a fpecial Plea I defigned to have put
in. This would have been a great Help to your
Lordfhip, and to me; the Denial of which hath
been a great Prejudice. Now, my Lord, that which
I thought was Law then, Ithink I can give a better
Teftimony that ’ris fo now upon the Statute of 46
Edw. 3. wherein *tis exprefled, that tout partes £
sout gexts, that is, all People fhall have a Copy of
every Record; and it enumerates feveral Matters,
as well that again{t the King as other People, This
isa general Law {till in Force: My Lord Strafford
had a Copy, and my Lord Strafford, and the Lords
in the Tower had Copiesof their Inditments, And,
under favour, I think it was never more neceffary
than to me, there never having been, perhaps, a
Charge fo long and fo contufed. Now, my Lord,
[ have a Copy tranfcribed of this Statute,

[ Sbewing @ Paper.
St Cio L. C. J. Weremember the Law very
?fﬁr},.f well. Mz, Sidney did move for a Copy

of the Indi&tment, and the Court de-
nied lim then, and fo fhall now, And yer all
this while we fhall deny you nothing that 1s Law.
You fhall have the Right that becomes a Subjeét in
your Condition. And we mult tell you, that not-
withftanding all that Cale we ought not to have
given you fo much Favour (perhaps in {triétnefs)
as we did, And becaufe you did particularly take
notice of the Cafe of Sir Heiry Vare lalt Time, I
will fhew you the Court did indulge more to you
than was done to that Perfon. In Sir Henry Vaie’s
. Caie, by the Opinion of all the
il LIX. Judges,jiL Was I(Jlr:chu'ed,, that no
Copy ought to be given, neither of the whole,
nor any part of the Inditment, except they thew
Matter of Law. Bur your Counfel, fince you
went away, moved for the Copy of the Indiét-
ment; and to fatisfy them, Idireted the Cafe that
you took notice of to be read in the Court: And
I thought they had been fufficiently fatisfy’d. You
tud the Indictment read to you in Latin, which
was denied 1n the Cafe of Sir Hewry Vawe. And
there is a later Cafe known to moft Perfons here.
By the Opinion of all the Judges of Bigland, a
Copy of the Indiétment was denied to my Lord
Keffzl. Therefore arraign him upon the Indit-
ment; We muft nor fpend our Time in Difcourfes
to captivate the People.

Col. Siduey. Is not this a good Law, my Lord ?
[ Holding out the Paper.

L. C. 7. You have the Rule of the Cout.
Mz, Fult, Withius. Any thing the Law will al-
low you, you fhall have; but Iam fure if you did

advite with your Counfel, they muft tell you the
fame Thing,

So the Clerk of the Crown called the Jury, and
after feveral Challenges, the Names of- the Jury
were as follow,

Jobn Amger, ) Fofias Clerke,
Richard White, George Glisty,
Williams Linn, Tur® Nicholas Baxter,’
Lawrence Wood, {9 X William Reeves,
Adain Andrews, William Grove, and-
Lmery Arguife, Jobn Burt,

L.C. 7. Look you, Gentlemen of the Jury, there
are fome Gentlemen at the Bar, as we are informed,
are apt to whifper to the Jury; °tisno part of their
Duty; nay, *tis againft their Duty: And therefore,
Gentlemen, if you hear any of them by you that
offer to whifper, or make Comments in this Caufe,
as you are upon your Oaths, and I doubt not but
will do your Duty between the King and the Pri-
foner ; fo I expect if you hear the Counfel fay any
thing, you will inform the Court. Let us have
no Remarks, buta fair Trial in God’s Name.

Cl. of Cr. You that are fworn, look upon the Pri-
foner, and hearken to his Caufe. He ftands indi&t-
ed by the Name of Alpernon Sidney, of, &c. (asin
the Indictment) your Charge is to inquire, {g.

Then Proclamation for Evidence was made,

M. Dolben. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen that are fworn. This is an {ndict-
ment of High-Treafon, preferred againft #fperior
Stdney, the Prifoner at the Bar, The Indi¢tment
fets forth, That he, as a falfe Traitor againft our
moft !loftrious Prince, Charles the Second, his
natural Lord, not having the Fear of God in his
Heart, 5c. On the Thirtetn of Fenz, 1n the
Thirty Fifth Year of the King, and divers other
Days and Times, as well before as after, in the
Parith of St. Giles in the Fields, in the Ccuaty of
Middlefex, traiteroufly, with divers Trarors un-
known, did coniptre the Death of the King, and
to levy War within the Kingdom,  And, to com-
plete thefe Traiterous Purpotes, did then, and there
malicioufly, adwifedly and traiteroufly, fend one
Aaron Smith into Scotland, to excite fome ill difpo-
{fed Perfons of that Kingdom to come into this,
and to confult with the faid Algernsn Siduey, and
other Traitors, of and upon Affiftance from the
Kingdom of Scotland, to carry on thofe Defigns.
And the Indictment fets forth further, that to per-
fuade-the People of Enugland 1t was Liwful to raile
Rebellion, the faid Algernon Siduey did caufe to be
written a falfe feditious Libel, 1n which are cont.in-
ed thefe Englyb Words, The Power originally in the
Peaple of England is delegated unto the Parliament.
The King is fubject to the Law of God, as he is a
Man to the Peaple that makes bim a King, In as
much as be 15 a King, the Law fets a meafire virto
that Subjetion, &c. (as in the Indi¢tment.) This 1s
laid to be againft the Duty of his Allegiance, a-
oainft the Peaceof the King, his Crown and Dig-
nity, and againft the Form of the Statute 1n that
Cafe made and provided. It we prove him Guil-
ty, we doubt not but you will find 1.

My, Ait. Ges. My Lord, and you Sic Robort
Gentlemen of the Jury, the Prifoner Sm;fr_ woet
at the Bar ftands inditted of the
higheft Crimes, the confpiring the Death of the
King, and the Overthrow of the Englifh Monar-
Chy. Gentlemen, we fhall ufe this Method 1n
our Evidence, We fhall thew by many Witnefles,

that
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that there was a Defign of raifing and making
a Rebellion within this Kingdom. For, Gentle-
men, you muit take notice, and I think there is
no Englifbman but does believe, that for feveral
Years Iaft paft a Defign was laid, and for that
purpofe {everal fecret Infinuations were made ufe
of, and publick Libels fpread abroad to perfuade
the People, that the King was introducing Ar-
bitrary Power, that he fubverted all their Rights,
Liberties, Properties, and whatever was dear to
them, They endeavoured to make the World
believe the King was a Papif,  And when, Gen-
tlemen, by fuch Stratagems they had worked up-
on many incautelous Perfons, when they thought
they had gotten a {ufhicient Party, then there was
a Delign of an open Rifing, (for they thought all
Things were ripened) and that was to be in feveral
Parts of the Kingdom. Some Perlons, to effelt
this Defign, were for a prefent Affaffination of the
King. Others would do it 1n a more fair and gen-
tle way, They thought it below Perfons of that
great Quality as the Prifoner 15, and therefore were
for doing it by open Force,

When we have given that general Evidence,
we fhall then come to fhew you what Share and
Part the Prifoner had in this Defign.  For certain-
ly he was looked upon as a very eminent Perfon,
whofe Education abroad, and former Practices
at home had rendered him fit to advife and pro-
ceed in fuch Aftairs.  We fhall prove when thefe
Marters were ripe, this Gentleman was of the
Council of State, of the fix that were to manage
this Matter of the Rifing. We fhall thew the
feveral Confultations they held; one at Mr, Hamd-
aen’s Houle, another at the Houfe of my Lord
Ruffil. There we {hall acquaint you what De-
bates they had; for they acted like very fubtile
Men; and there they debated, whether the Ri-
{ing fhould be firlt in the Country or City, or
Loth together. They came to a Refolution it
jhould be 1n both Places at once, Then, when
they had Afierted that Point, they come to con-
fider the Time of Rifing; and upon that they
thought fit to call in Aid of Scotland firft; and
that was this Gentleman’s particular Province.
For he, being a Man of great Secrecy, was to fend
an Emiffary 1ato that Kingdom, and invite fome
Perfons over to treat with them about it, We
fhall prove that an Emiffiry was fent, and this
Gentleman gave him a confiderable Sum to bear
his Charges.  We fhall prove that feveral Scotch
Gentlemen, in purfuance of this Refolve,* came
here to treat with this great Council of State,
about this Affair: And fhall make it appear to

does ufe in that Treatife feveral Arguments drawn
from the moft Rebellious Times that ever were
in Eugland, from the late Rebellion (I muft needs
ule that Word, notwithftanding the A& of Ob-
livion, when a Gentleman fhall now attempt to
do thole Things for which he was pardoned then)
and from other Kingdoms, where Rebellion hatl
been profperous againft Princes. Then he falls
to Reafoning, and ufes great Reafon in the Cafe,
that all the Power of the Prince is originally in
the People, and applies that Difcourfe, that the
Power of the King was derived from the Peop!s
upon Truft, and they had already declared the
King had 1nvaded their Rights, and therefore he
comes to argue, they might affaime that Origi-
nal Power they had conferred. And he tells the
King, that is no hard Condition; if he thinks it
fo, he fhould lay down his Crown, if not, he
threatens the Condition would be exaded, of
otherwife thould be revenged by thofe he had
betrayed; and who but this Gentleman and his
Confederates, thar thought himf!f not only able
to govern this Nation, but many Monarchies,
thould call him to Account for it? For Je lays
down this Principle, that tho’ all the People do
rife againit their Prince, 1t is no Rebzllion.” The
whole Book 1s an Argument for the People to
rife in Arms, and vindicate their Wrongs. He
lays it down, That the King bas no Authority to
diffolve the Parliament 5 but *tis apparent the King
bath diffolved siany; therefore be bath broken li;
Trufty and invaded our Rights.  And at laft con-
cludes with that Paffuge laid in the Indi@ment,
We inay thevefore [hake off our Yokey for *tis not g
Yoke we fuomitted to, but a Yoke by Tyramny (thar
muft be the meaning of it) they have impofed on
1s.

Gentlemen, 1f we prove all thefe Matters to
you, I doubt not you will do right to the King
and Kingdom, and fhew your Abhorrence of thofe
Republican Principles 5 which, if put in Practice,
will not only deftroy the King, but the beft Mo-
narchy 1n the World.

Mr. Sol, Gen, Pray call Mr. e/,

[Who appeared.]

Col. Sidirgy. I pray one Word, my
Lord, before Mr. 7775 be fivorn: I have heard,
my Lord, Mr, 77¢f hath confefled many Treafons,
I defire to know whether he is pardoned, or
no?

L. C. 7. Idon’t know that.

1 Col. Sianey, My Lord, how can he be 2 Witnefs
then ¢

L. C. 7. Swear him: For I know no Legal Ob-

Mr, Finch.

you, that as foon as ever the leaft Difcovery of jection againft him. He was a good Witnefs in

this Plot was, Thele Perfons concealed themfelves
and withdrew, asthe reft of the Plotrers that have
fled from Jultice.

Gentlemen, this was not enough for this Gen-
tleman to confult on thefe feveral Paflages, but
to demonftrate to the World, that his Head and

Heart was endre in this Service, and that he
might carry it on the more effeCtually, he was
at this very time, when this Emiflary was gone
into Scotland, preparing a moft Seditious and
Traiterous Libel; we inftance in fome particular
'Words of ity but we fhall thew you, that the
whole Defign of this Treatife 1s to perfuade the
People of Eugland, that 1t 1s lawful, nay, that
they have a Righe to fet afide therr Prince, 1n cafe
it appear, to them, that he hath broken the Truft
laid upon him by the People, Gentlemen, he

my Lord Ruffel’s Trial.

Col. Sidiey. My Lord, if another did not except
againft him, ’ts nothing to me,

Mr. North, Pray give an Account to the Court
of what you know of 2 general Infurreion intend-
ed in England, ‘

Col. Sidney. What he knows concerning me.

L. C. 7. We will take care of that, that no Evi-
dence be giveh but what ought to be.

Col. Sidney, 1s 1t ordinary that he fhould fay
any thing, unlefs it be to me and my Indi&-
ment ¢

L. C. 7. Mr. Siduey, You remember in all the
Trials about the late Popifb Plot, how there was
firft a general Account given of the Plot in Cof-
man's Trial, and fo in £lunker’s, and others: I

don’t doubt but you remember it. And Sir #7/-
) ligni
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Jiam Soues againft whofe Judgment, T believe, you
wor’t object, was Attorney i that time.

N, North, Mr. fﬁ"cﬁ; What d.D}}’UL] know of
the general Infurrection lately defign’d ?

M. iefi. My Lord, T have had the Honour
t0 know Colanc] Siduey fevcra,l'Years; but 1 dgn’t
remember that 1 ever faw him from the tme
T came acquainted with any part of the Con-
fpiracy, tl the Difcovery that was at the Coun-
cil. _

M. Nerih. Pray give an Account of what you
knaw of the Plot 1n aeneral. |

Adr, I7gF. Wy Lord, in Offoher Iaft, Captain
IWalst came ta rae, and told me t!lat my Lord
Shafisouiy had defigned ap Inlurrection 1n Nﬁ‘vrffﬂ-
bers 1 ulfed fome Arguments to diffyade him
from it.  Bur a litde afierwards he came and told
me, the Thing was whoily difappointed, and then
it went oif, and my Lord Shaftsbury went for Hek-
Inid.  Coloncl Reafey afterwards about Chrifimas,
faid there were fome Lords and Gentlemen intend-
ed to make an Infyrrettions the Perfons were the
Duke of Aoumonth, my Lord of Efex, my Lord
Hyward, my Lord Rufel, the Prifoner at the Bar,
and Mr. Haiithden, Fun, Aflter lome time he told
me they had altered themr Mealures, and were re-
folved not to vepture upon an InfurreCtion in Kig-
land, *tll they had a Concurrency 1n Scotland. Af-
terwards I was not privy to any thing elfe, but
what I had the Report of from Mr. Ne&brop and
Mr. Fergufon.  Mr, Neltbrap told me the Prifoner
had faid ———

Col. Siduey. My Lord, Iam very unwilling to
iptertupt the Gentlemen

L. C ¥ You muft not ipterrupt the Witnefs.

(Go on, Sir.
- M Ve, Mr. Nelthiop told me, the Prifoner
at the Bar had fent Aaron Swiith mto Scotland, and
given him a Sum of Money to bear his Charges,
and fent Letters to fome §cotch Gentlemen to in-
vite them to Town, The Leiter bore a Cant
of {etthng fome Bufinels in Carelina; but the
Bafinefs was coming up about the Infurreétion.
After this Mr. Swith returned, and fome Scosfch
Gentlemen with him; apd foon after Mr, Feiga-
fen save an Account of that Affair, and faid, the
Scorch propoied, if they might have Thirty Thou-
fand Pounds 1n ready Money, they would under-
take to make an InfurreCtion in Scotland, with-
out the Concuirence of England. He faid this
Propofal was agreed 1o, and Money would be
foon ready; and he faid that Sbeppaid would re-
turn the Money, That the Arms were ready
bought, and my Lord of 4rgyle would go into Scot-
lond, and head the Scots.  He told me when
Thipgs were thus fettled, fome difference arofe
about raifing the Money; and at Jaft he told me,
my Lord Grey did offer to raife ten thoufand
Pounds out of his own Eftate, if the reft would
pay their Proportion. Then the Scofs came down
to lefs, but that would not be complied with. The
Places tor the Rifing were Briffol, Taviton, Vork,
Uicfiery Baeter, Lopdsy,  That there had been
fome Debates, whether they thould begin ar Zon-
don, or the other Places, and ac laft 1t was refolved
they fhow’d begin at Loudon with the reft of the
Places,

My Lord, This was the Account I had of the
Matter in general of Mr. Fergufors but he faid
they were difappointed.  Afterwards he told me
the Prifoner at the Bar, and Major #7ldinan, were

''''''

very inftrumenial in working of it off, becaufe
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they could not agree upon the Declaration to be
made upon the Infurrettion. The Euglifh were foy
a Commonwealth ; but the Scofch Gentlemen an-
fwered fairly, it might come to it in time, but the
Noblemen there would not agree to it at prefent.
As to the Prifoner in particular, I know nothing,
and did never fpeak with him ’dll fince the Difco-
very.

Mr. Att. Gen. Colonel Rumfey. [ Sworn, ]

Mz. North, Pray, Sir, will you give the Court
an Account of what you know of any Infurre@ion
intended, and how they defigned to carry it
on,

Col. Rumfey. My Lord, the latter end of Ofp-
bery or the beginning of November, I was defired
by my Lord Skaftséuiy to go to Mr, Sheppard’s to
know of the Gentlemen that were met there, what
was done ahoui the Riling intended ac Tuinion
and I had ther Anfwer, that Mr. Treachard had
failed them, and that ic muft ceafe for that time,
That was all at that time.

M. Sol. Gen. What elfe do you know of any
Infurretion afterwards ?

Col. Rumfey. After that we had feveral Meetings
at Mr. /V¢/f’s Chamber, where we had divided the
City nco twenty Parts, and feven Parts Mr, Good-
enongh had brought an Account of; the other
thirteen he faid nothing of 3 for he had not fpoke
with thole that were to tell him how many Men
they would afford. There was there Captain #7/-
coty, Mr. WVeft, the two Goodenoughs, Mr, Borne,
Mr. Wade, and myfclf,

L. C. /. What was the Refult of thofe De-
bates ?

Col. Rumfey. To {ee what Number of Men
they could produce in the City for the Infur-
re€tion,

L. C. 7. Was therc a Rifing defigned ?

Col. Rumfey. Yes.

L. C.7. And did thefe People meet ?

Col. Rumfey, There was no ume fet.

Mr. Sol, Gen, When was the Meeting ?

Col. Rumfey. ‘There were feveral Meetings in
March, and April, and May.

M. Sol, Gein, After the Meeting at Sheppard’s 2

Col. Rumfey. Yes, a great while. It ceafed, I
think, fix Weeks or three Months.

L. C. 7. Who did you meet with at Mr. Shep-

pard’s ¢

Col. Rumfey. There was the Duke of Adeumonth,
my Lord Grey, my Lord Ruffel, Sir Thoinas Aiin-

Sfrong, Mr. Fergufon, and Mr. Sheppare.

M. Sol. Gen. Who did you expect fhould head
this Army ¢

Col. Rumfey. That was never faid any thing
of.

My, Ait. Gen, Who were to manage the Ri-
fing?

Col. Rumfey. We that met there.

M, A, Gen. Had you no expectation of great
Men?

Col. Runfey. Mr. Weft told me, and Mr. Good-
enough, that there was a Council, which were the
Duke of Adowinouth, my Lord Effex, my Lord
Howard, Colonel Sidney, Mr, Hainbden, and my
Lord Ruffel, there were Six.

L. C.'¥. Whatdid he tell you of them Six ?

Col. Ruinfey. He told me they were managing
a Buflinefs with Scotland. |

L.C. 7. A Bufinefs, pray fpeak plain, tell all
you know,

Col. Rumfey. For the Infurretion,

LC.75.
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L.C. 7. Say fo then, we know nothing of the
Bufinefs you were about.

Col, Rumfey. My Lord, Mr. /7¢# had that Dil-
courfe with my Lord Howard 1 never had; he is
more fit to {peak to that than me.

L.C. F. Speak your own Knowledge and no
more.

M. Fones. After the Death of my Lord Shafts-
bury, who were the Managers, and were to catry
iton’

Col, Rumfey. 1 told you, Mr., 77¢f# and Mr. Good-
enough did tell me the Duke of Memmomth, my
Lord Efex

Mr. Ait. Gen, He told you fo before, Do you
krow there was an Infurretion then meended ?

Caol. Rumfey. Yes, becanie we met towards the
Management of ir, the Company that met at
Wir. F/:f’s Chamber, and other Places.

M. A, Gen. What Difcourfe had you with
Mr. Ferpufon aboat 1t ?

Cel. Rumfey. Not about thofe Gentlemen.

M. Noith, The next Taing we thall (hew, fhall
be that the Sceschinen came to Town.

Col, Sidney. iy Lord, I muft ever put you mn
mind, whether it be ordinary to examine Men up-
on Indiftments of Trealon concerning me that I
never faw, nor heard of in my Life.

L. C. 7. Itell vou, all this Evidence does not
affect you, and I'teli the Jury fo.

Cel, Siducy. Burt it prepoficfies the Jury.

My, Keiling called cnd frworn,

My, A1, Gen, 1 ask you in gereral, what you
know of the Rifing to have been lalt Spring ?

My, Reifing, My Lord, It was fome time laft
Summcr, Nir, Goodeiozgh came to me, and broughe
me /hrce Papers numbered on the back-fides I
asked him to what end he delivered them me?
H: told me, One was for mylelf, and I was to
deliver the other Two to whom 1 could truft in
the two Divifons. I asked him, what was the De-
fign? Hefuid, to rae Mens fays ], Do you de-
ficn a general Infurrelnen? He faid, if he did nor,
if the King was taken off this would do well; for
then Peopie would know how to have recourfe to a
formidable Body. And I have heard him fay,
that Colonel Sidiey, whom I dor’t know, had
a confiderable Part 1n the Management of that
Affair,

Kir. A4, Gen, We charge him with Confpiring,
and there muft be Confederates in the Cale, Now
then we come to the Prifoner, we will call my
1.ord Heward, that was one of the Perions that
did Confuit.

The Lord Howard fworn.

Mr, A2 Gen. Pray acquaint my Lord anc the
Jury of your Knowledge, of what Tranfactions
there have been with the Prifoner about this Afair
of the general Rufing.

Lord Howard. Truly, my Lord, in the entering
of the Evidence I am about to give, I cannot
but obferve, what a natural Uniformity there is
in Truth, For the Gentlemen that have been
before, have fo exaltly inftancea, in every Par-
ticular, with what 1 have to fay, that two Tal-
lies could not more exactly fall into one ano-
ther, though I confels I had not feen their Fa-
ces, °till the Plot broke out, for fome Months
before.

My Lord, and Gentlemen of the Jury, About
the middle of Fawnary lalt, it was confidered by
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fome of us that met together, that it was very
neceflary and expedient to an Enterprize that had
been long in Hand, and fallen flat then, that it
fhould be revived by fome Cenfult or Cabal, that
fhould be fet up to give Life to it, and Gover-
nance to the Motions of it.  The firfl (for oughe
I know) Movers of this were the Duke of M-
mouth, the Gentleman at the Bar, and my Self':
And there we did agree, that we fhould bethink
our felves of fome tew, we were willing it fheuld
not exceed five, at the molt Seven. This
Agreement baing at firft between us Three; I
remember the Duke of Moumouth undertook to
engage my Lord Ruflel, and my Lord Safisbury;
and this Gentleman Colonel §iduey for my Lord
of Ljfex, and Mr. Hembden, and thele being
put together, did prefently conftitute a lictle
Cabal, of as great a Number as was intended.
This being fettled among them, it was within a
few Days after, I can’t certainly tell when, but
between the muddle and latter end of Famuary
that I was told, that the Perfons had agreed to
enter 1nto this Conjunétion of Councils; and in
order to that, they had appointed a Mecting at
Mr. Hambder’s Houfe, to which I was invited.
This, 1n time, was between the middle and latter
end of Fameary, but I can’t tell exaltly, When
we came there, there were all thofe Gentlemen [
before named, the Duke of Memmouth, my Lord
Lffex, my Lord Ruffel, Colonel Sidney, Mr, Henib-
daeir, and my Self. It was at Mr, Hambden’s Houfe
which ranges on the fame Row with Sontbaspton
Houfe: And being met, Mr. Hainbden, 1 fuppofz,
did think it moft properly belonged to him to
take upon him the Part as it were to open the Sef-
fions, that was, to give us a little Account of
the Reafon, End, and Intention of that Meeting :
In which Dilcourfe, he took Occafion to recapi-
tulate fome Defign, that had been before chiefly
carried on by my Lord Shaftsbury, before this
ume Dead; and allo took notice of the ready
Diipofition and Inclination of the Minds of Men
to go on with it; and did give one Inftance of
his Judgment of it, That it being a Defign com-
mupicated to fo many, it had rnot been fo much
as Revealed, or a Murmur or Whifper gone
about 1it: From whence he took occafion to tell
us, that it was abfolutely neceffary for the future,
there fhould be fome Council that fhould be asa
Spring, a little to guide and govern the Mo-
tions of the refe, for that were divers Things to
be taken care of, which if not taken care of by
particular Perfons, would all mifcarry, This was
the Subltance of the Prologue and Introduction
he made.  From hence he made a Tranfition to
fome particular Things, that he thought were moft
principaily to be taken care of. And though it
1s impolible for me to remember the Order and
Method in which we difcourfed, or who faid this
or that, but that which the Senfe of all refulted
to was this: That fince we did not come prepa-
red for 1t, we fhould confider what were the
Things that would hereafter challenge our parti-
cular Care, that was, the Time when, the Places
where, and the Perfons by whom thefe Things
fhould be carried on. This led into fome parti-
cular Difcourfe, concerning fome of thefe Heads:
For the Time, that 1t fhould be fhortly, left the
Minds of Men fhould. chill; and then as to the
Place where, whether in City or Country, or
both jointly. In all thefe, fome Opinions were
given, but not fettled to any Refolution, but they

were
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were committed to our Thoughts to be digelted
afterwards, But thefe being the Things that
cvery one was to take upon his Thoughts, there
was this Pre-requifite to the Undertaking, and
that was to confider what Magazines were to be
got; ard that led to another Particular, which
was, with what they fhould be gotien, and that
was Money; and thereupon was propounded a
confliderable Sum to be ratfed: and, as I remember,
the Sum propounded by the Duke of Adossmonth
was Tweity-Frve Thoufand Pounds, or Thirty Thou-
fand Pounds. _And then it was confidered, how
it thould be raifed without drawing Oblervation
or Jealoufy. Thefe are only the Heads that were
then agreed on, hereafter to be better confider-
ed. But th: prefent Refolution that was taken,
was, that before any Procedure was made in any
of thefe Things, or any Advance towards the
Undertaking; the firft thing to be conficered
was,- How to make a Coalition of Councils b:-
tween Scotland, and what we were doing heres
and for that purpofe, we fhould bethink ourfelves
of fome fit Perlon to be fent thither, to Unite
us into one Senfe and Care, This is as much as
occurs to my Memory upon that Mcc_ring. About
a Fortnight or three Weeks after, whica [ fuppole
carried it to the middle of Felruary next, we had
another Meeting, and that was at Sowthainptoi-
Houfe at my Lord Ruffel’s, and there were every
one of the fame Perfons; and when we came
there, there happened to fall n a Difcourfe which
I know not how it came 1n, but it was a litele
warmly urged, and thought to be untimely, and
unfeafonable ; and that I remember was by Mr,
Hausbdrn, who did tell us, That having now uni-
ted our felves into fuch an Undertaking as this
was, it could not but be expelted, that it would

be a Queftion put to many of vs; To what end
all this was? Where 1t was we intended to Ter-
minate? Tato what we intended to Refolve? That
thefe were Queftions he met with; and it was
probable, every one had or would meet with from
thofe Perfons whofe Afliftance we expelted; and
that if there was any thing of a Perfonal Intereft
defigned or intended, that there were but very
few of thofe, whofe Hearis were now with us, bue
would fall off: And tierefore, fince we were up-
on fuch an Undertaking, we fhould refolve our
felves into fuch Principles, as fhouid put the
Properties and Liberties of the People into fuch
Hands, as it thould not be ealily invaded by any
that were trufted with the Supreme Authority of
the Land; and it was mentioned to Refolve all
into the Authority of the Parliament. This was
moved by him, and had a little harfhnefs o fome
that were there; but yet upon the whole Mat-
ter we generally confented to it, That it was no-
thing but a Publick Good that we all intended.
But then after that, we fell to that which we charg-
ed ourfelves with at the firft Meeting, and that
was concerning fending into Scotland, and of fet-
tling an Underftanding with my Lord of Argyle:
And in order to this, 1t was neceflary to fend a
Meflenger thither to fome Perlons, whom we
thought were the moft leading Men of the In-
terelt in Scotland: This led us to the mfifting on
fome porticular Perfons; the Gentlemen named,
were my Lord Melvin, Siv jfobn Cockram, and
the Campbels; T am fure it was fome of the Alli-
ance of my Lord of Argyle, and I think of the
Name. As foon as this was propounded, it was
offered by this Gentleman Colonel Sidney, that

Vo, Il
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he would teke the Care of thie Perfons and he
had a Perfon in his Thoughts, that he thought 2
very fit Man to be intrufted; one or two, but one
in {pecial, and he named Aaron Smith to be the
Mian, wno was known to fome of us, to others
not; I was one thatdid know him, and as many
as knew him, thought him a proper Perfon. This
15 all that occurs to me that was at the fecond
Meeting, and they are the only Confults chat ¥

£5?
Was al.

My, Att, Gen, What was he to do?

Lord Howard. There was no particular Deed
for him, more than to carry a Letter. The Duke
of Moiinonth undertook to bring my Lord el
vin hieher, becaule he had a particular Depen-
dence upon him, and I think fame Relation to
his Lady : But to Sir Fobn Cockram there was a
Letter to be fent under the difouife of carrying
on fome Bufinefs of the Flantation in Carslina.
This Letter I fuppofe was writ by my Lord Ruf
fel (tho’ I know it nor) for he was perfonally
known to my Lord Ruffe, and I don’t know
that he was known to any of us. About three
Wecks after this, then he was difpatched T fug-
pofe.

My, Ait. Gen. To what purpofe were thele Gen-
tiemen to come up?

Lord Howaid. Thefe were to acquaint us how
they found Ses#/aizd temyered, and what Oppor-
tunities or Advanmages there were or might be
of putiing them into a Commotion, and how Men
mght be raifed, and how they would fall under
Argyle, and alfo to keep T:me and Place with us.
After this, I was with Colonel S§idney, when he
was going into Londen, and he did take out feveral
Guineas, I can’t tell how much it was, I fuppofe
they might be about fixty, and put them into his
Pocker (and fet me down at my Ledging) which
he faid were to give Aaien Sinith; whether he
gave 1t or no, 1 don’t know; and after that he
was fent,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Who told you fo?

Lord Howard. Col. Siduey. For I was inquiring
of him; and he faid, he had not heard of him in
three Weeks, or but once, when he was about New-
Cafile.  After this, I had Occalions that called me
mto the Country, and there I was, Some time
after that I went to the Barh: And this is all the
Account I can give.

My, 8ol. Gen. Do you know that Aaror Smith
did go?

Lord Howard, T know nothing but by hear-fay.
Col. §iduey told me he was gone, and was upon
the Road, and he heard from him about New-
Cafile.

L.C. ¥. Did you underftand by the Difcourfe
after he was gone, that he went in purfuance of
that Debate

Lord Howard. Yes, my Lord, That was the
whole end of his going,.

M. Fufp. Withius, 1 think you fay, that Gen-
tleman | jpeaking of Col. Sidney] undertook to fend
him.

Lord Howard, Yes, he did.

L.C. 7. Will you ask him any Queftions?

Col. Siduey. I have no Queftions to ask him,

My, Att. Gen, Silence———You know the Pro-
vertb, The next Step is to fhew you, my Lord,
that thefe Perfons came up immediately after
Aarou Smith went down thither; and according
to that which was faid to be the {hadow and pre-
tence of their coming hither, they pretended

5 K they
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théy' came’ abotit Cardlind Bulinels. Sir Aidrei
Foftér and Mr. Blathvaste.

S#r Andrew Fofter fworn.

Mr, A2, Gen. Pray, Sir, give an Account what
Scotch Gentlemen came up latély.

Sir Andrew Foficr. My Lord, about the End of
the Spring, or Beginning of Summer, as I remem-
ber, thefe Gentlenmien, Sir Fobn Cockram, and Com-
miflary Monro, and the two Campbels, Father and
Son, came ap hither. Idid not fee the Father at
all, but I faw the Son the Day of the Lord Ruf-
fel’s Trial ; but the other two, I think, I faw a little
before the Difcovery of the Plot.

M. At Gen, What did they pretend they came
about ?

Sir Audreso Fofter. They pretended they came
to make a Purchafe in Carolina, and I faw thelr

Commiflion from the Perfons faid to be concerned
in that Defign.

L. C. ¥. Who do you fpeak of ?

Sir Aidrew Foffer, Sir Jobn Cockram and Coms
miffary Monyo.

. My, Art. Gen, As foon as the Rumour came of
the Plot, What became of thofe Gentlemen ?

Sir Andrew Fofler. Sir Fobu Cockram abfconded,
but Commiffary Menro never abfeonded ; and the
Campbels 1 heard were feized changing their Lodg-
ing froim Place to Place,

Mr. Atterbury frwors,

Mr, Att, Gen. Mr, Atterbury, will you give my
Tord and the Jury an Account what you know
of thefe Scorchmen, their ablconding and lying
hid.

Mr. Atterbgry., My Lord, upon the latter End
of Fure, or the Beginning of Fuly; the Begin-
ning of Fuly it was, I was fent for into London
npon a Difcovery of fome §eotch Gentlemen that
lay about Black-Friers; and when I came down
there, there was the Comion Serjeant and fome
others had been before me, and found them mak-
ing an Efcape into a Boat.

My, Att. Gen, Who were they?

Mr. diterbury, Sir Hugh Campbel, and Sir Fobu
Cotkram, and one that was committed to the
Gatehonfe by the Council, as foon as brought thi-
ther.

Mr. Atf. Gen. We {hall end here, my Lord:
How long had they been in Town ¢

My, Atterbury, They had been 1n Town fome
little time.

Mz, Att. Gen, We have done with this Piece of
our Evidence. Now, ro fhew that while this
Emiflary was in Scotland, at the fame time the Co-
Iostel (which will be another Overt-A¢t of the Trea-
fon) was writing a treafonable Pamphlet. 1 will
call you the Witneffes, It is all of his own Wri-
tings. Sir Philip Lipyd.

Mz, Att, Gen, Siv Philip Lleyd, pray, will you
look upon thofe Papers, and give my Lord and
the Jury an Account where you found them.,

Sir Philip Lloyd. I had 2 Warrant, my Lord,
from the Secretary by the King and Council, w0
feize Mr. Algermon Sidwey’s Papers; and purfuant
to it, J did:go to his Houfe, and fuch-as I found
there I put up. I found a 'gréeat many upon the
Table, amongft which were thefe, I fuppofe 1t 1s
where He ufually writes; I put them in a Pillow-
bier I borrowed in the Houfe, and that in 2
Trunk; I-defived Col, Sidney would put his Seal
upon them, that there thould be no Miftake; he

refufed, fo I took my Seal, and fealed up the
Trunk, and it was carried before e to Mr, Secre-
tary Fenkins’s Office.  When the Comuniittee fat,
I was commanded 0 undo the Trinik, and I did
fo, and found my otwn Seal upon it. And [
took the Papers out of the Bag I put them into
before. _

L. C. F. Was Col. Sidney prefent when you feiz-
ed thefe Papers?

Sir Phil, Lloyd. Yes.

My, At Gen. Are thefe fome of thofe Papers?

Sir Phil, Lloyd. Yes, I venily believe it.

My, At Gen. In the nexe Place, I think we have
fome Papers of his particular Affairs which will
prove his Hund. Gall Mr, Sheppard, M, Cooks,
and Mr. Cary. | _

Mr. North. Siv Philip Lloyd, When were they
feiz’d ¢ 5 )

Sir Philip Lloyd, Towards the latter End of Tz,
my Lord. |

Furyman. Which Fune 2

Sir Plil, Lipyd. Laft une,

Mr. Sheppard fivorn,

M. Ait, Gen. Pray, will you look upon thofe
Writings. [Shewing the Libel,] Are you acquaint-
ed with Col. §aney’s Hand ?

My, Sheppard, Yes, iy Lord.

Mr, A, Gen, Is that his Hand-writing ?

My, Sheppard, Yes, Sit, Ibelieve fo. I beheve
all thefe Sheets to be his Hand.

My, Att. Ges, How comé you to be acquainted
with his Hand?

Mr. Sheppard, 1 have feen him write the Indotfe-
ment upon feveral Bills of Exchange.

Mr., Cary fuorn.

Col. Sidwey. My Lord, 1 defire you would
pleafe to confider this, that Sitnilitude of Hands
can be no Evidence.

L. C. ¥. Referve your felf ’till anon, and make
all the advantageous Remarks you can.

Mr. Att. Gen. Fave you had any Dealing with
him?

Mr. Cary. I never faw him write to my Knoiw-
ledge, more than once in my Life, but I have
feen: his Indorfement upon Bills, and *ts very like
that.

L.C. 7. Do you believe it is his Hand, as far
as you can guefs?

Mr. Cary. My Lord, it 1s like what came 'to
me for his Hand-writing.

L.C.7. And you believe it to be his Fland?

My, Cary. Yés,

M. Cooke fuwern, and the Papers fhezon bim.

L. C. ¥. What fay you, Mr. Cooke ?

Mr. Cocke. My Lord, 1 did never fee Col, §74-
ney write, but I have feén feveral Notes that have
come to me with Indorfetiient of his Name, and
we have paid them, and *tis like to ths.

L. C. J. Andyouwere never called to account
for Mifpayment?

Mpr, Cooke. No, my Lord.

My, Ait, Gen, 1 pray it may be read. We will
read as much as 1s neceflary to prove the Indict-
ment,

Col. Stduey. I pray it may be all read.

L.C. F. Mr. dttérrey maft have what Part he
defires read, and you fhall have what Parc you
will have read afterwards,

Col, Stdney. 1 défire it may all be read.

M. A,
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- My, At Gen. Begin there,  Secondly, There
was no Abfurdity in this, becaufe it was theirown
Cale.

Clerk Reads.

Secondly, There was no Abfurdity mn this, tho’
it was their own Cafe; but to the contrary, be-
caufe it was their own Cafe, that is, concerning
themfelves only, and they had no Superior.
They only were the competent Judges, they de-
cided their Controverfies, as every Man in his
own Family doth, fuch as artfe between him and
his Children, and his Servants.  This Power hath
no other Reftriction than what 1s put upon it by
the Municipal Law of the Country, where any
Man, and that hath no other Force, than as he is
underftood to have confented unto 1t. Thus in
England every Man (in adegree) hatha Right of
chaftiling them ; and in many Places (even by
the Law of God) the Mafter hath a Power of Life
and Dzath over his Servant: It were a moft ab-
furd Folly to fay that a Man might not put away,
or in fome Places kill an adulterous Wife, a diff
obedient Son, or an unlawful Servant, becaufe he
is Party and Judge, for the Cafe doth admit of
no other, unlefs he hath abridged his own Kight
by entering into a Society where other Rules are
agreed upon, and a fuperior Judge conflituted,
there being none fuch between King and People :
That People muft needs be the Judge of Things
happening between them and him whom they did
not conftitute, that they might be great, glorious
and rich ; but that they might judge them, and
fight their Battles; or otherwife do Good unto
them, as they fhould dire€. In thisSenfe, he that
is fingnlis Major, and ought to be obliged by every
Man, in his jult and lawful Commands, tending
to the publick Good; and muft be {uffered to do
nothing againft i, nor in any refpect more than
the Law doth allow.

For this Reafon Braéton faith, that the King hath
three Superiors, to wit, Deum, Legem, & Parlia-
ment', that is, the Power, originally in the People
of Englaud, is delegated unto the Parliament, He
is fubject unto the Law of God as he is 2 Man, to
the People that makes him a King, 1n as much as
he is a King: The Law fets a Mealure unto that
Subjection, and the Parliament judges of the par-
ticular Cafes thereupon arifing : He mult be con-
tent to fubmit his intereft unto theirs, fince he is
no more than any one of them, in any other re-
fpet, than that he is; by the Confent of all, ratfed
above any other.

if he doth not like this Condition he may re-
nounce the Crown 3 but if he receive it upon that
Condition, (as all Magiftrates do the Power they
receive) and fivear to perform it, he muft expect
that the Performance will be exacted, or Revenge
taken by thole that he hath betrayed.

If this be not fo, I defire to know of our Au-
thor, how one or more Men can come to be guil-
ty of Treafon againlt the King, as Lex facit ut fit
Rea. No Man can owe more unto him, than un-
to any other, or he unto every other Man by any
Rule but the Law; and if he muft not be Judge
in his own Cafe, neicher he nor any other by Yower
received from him, would ever try any Man for
an Offence againit him, or the Law.

if the King, or fuch as he appoints; cannot
judge him, he cannot be judged by the Ways or-
dimarily known amongft us. If he, or other by
Authority from him, may judge, heis a Judge in
his own Cafe, and we fall under that which he ac-
counts the utmoit of all Abfurdities: If a Reme-

You,Il,

for High-Trealon.

8*035

dy be found for this, he miult fay that the King in
his own Cafe may judge the People, but the Peo-
ple muft not judge the King, becaufe it is theirs ;
that 1s to fay, the Servant entertained by the Ma-
fter may judge him, but the Mafter muft not

judge the Servant, whom he took only for his own

Ufe. The Magiitrate is bound by no Oath or
Contract to the People that created him, but the
People is bound to its own Creature; the Magi-
ftrate. | |

This feems to be the Ground ofall our Author’s
Folliess he cannot comprehend that Magiftrates
are for or by the People, but makes this Conclu-
fion, as if Nations were created by or for thé
Glory or Pleafure of Magiftrates, and affe@s fuch
a Piece of Nonfenfe; it ought not to be thought
ftrange, if he reprefent as an abfurd Thing, that
the heedlefs Multitude may fhake off' the Yoke
when they pleafe.  But I would know how the
Multitude comes under the Yoke, it 1s a Badge of
Slavery. He fays, that the Power of Kings 1s for
the Prefervation of Liberty and Property. We
may therefore change or fake away Kings without
breaking any Yoke, or that made a Yoke which
ought not to be one; the Injury is therefore in
Making or Impofing, and there can be rone in
breaking it.

That if there be not an Injury, there may per-
haps be an Inconvenience; if the headlefs Multi-
tude may fhake off the Yoke, I know not why
the Multitude fhould be concluded to be head-
lefs s it is not always fo. Mpfes was Head of the
Multitude that went out of Epyps, Othuiel led
them againtt the King of Mefopotarmia, under the
Conduét of Phebidas; they obtain’d a Viftory a-
gainlt the Moabites 5 they had the like Succefs un
der Shamger, Barak, Gideon, Fepbtha, Sainel,
Sampfon, and others again{t the Canaanites, Mi-
dranstes, Philiffines, and others; the Multtude
that oppofed Sar/ and Jhbefbeth had David for its
Head ; and the ten Tribes that rejelted Reboboan
chofe unto themfelves Feivboaws 5 the Athenians
rifing againft the thiry Tyrants had Thrafyoulus 5
thofe that drave from Thebes were conduét-
cd by Pelopides: When the Romans drave out the
Tarquins, they chofe Brutus and Publicola, and
they deftroyed the Decemviri under Horatins and
Veolerivs,  All the Mulatudes that afterwards red
volted from them under Mausitius; Telerius, Spay-
tanus and others, were not headlefs ; and we know
of none that were, but all etther found Heads;
or made them. The Germans {et up Arminius ;
the Britons, and others 1n later Times, the Car-
tinians, that rofc againft Peter the Gruel; had the
Lord Detraiia Miara.

The French, when they grewr weary of the cor-
rupted Races. of Pharamend and -Pepin, and the

" fame Pepeinand Hugh Capet : The Scots, when they

(lew Fames 111, had . his Son to be their Head ;
and when they depofed and imprifoned Queen
Mary; the Earl of AMurray and others fupplied
the want of Age that was i her Son : And in all
the Revolutions we have had in Zzgland; the Peo-
ple have been headed by the Parliament, or the
Nobility and Gentry that compofed it; and when
the Kings failed of their Duties, by thei? own
Authority called ir. The Multitude therefore is
not ever headlefs, but doth either find or create
Heads unto itfelf, as Occafion doth require
and whether it be one Man, or a few or more,
for a fhort of a longer Time, we {ee nothing' more
regular than its Motions. But they may, faith
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our Author, fhake off the Yoke; and why may
they not, 1f 1t prove uneafy or hurtful unto them?
'Why fhould not the Ifraelites thake off the Yoke
of Pharaoch, Fabin, Sifera, and others that oppref-
{fed them ? |

When Pride had changed Nebuchadnezzar into
a Beaft, what thould perfuade the Afyrians not
to drive him out amongft Beafts, until God had
reftored unto him the Heart of 2 Man? When
Tarquin had turned the Regal Monarchy of Rome
into a moft abominable Tyranny, why fhould
they not abolifh 1it7 And when the Proteftants
of the Low Countries were fo grievoufly opprefled
by the Power of Spain, under the proud, cruel and
favage Condut of the Duke of Afa, why fhould
they not make ufe of all the Means that God had
put into their Hands for their Deliverance ?  Let
any Man, who fees the prefent State of the Pro-
vinces that then united themfelves, judge whe-
ther 1t 15 better for them to be as they are, or
in the Condition urito which his Fury would have
reduced them, unlefs they had, to pleafe him,
rencunced God and their Religion :  Our Author
may fay, they ought to have fuffered : The King
of Spain by their Refiftance loit thofe Countries ;
and that they ought not to have been Judges in
their own Cafe, To which I anfwer, That by re-
fifting they laid the Foundation of many Churches,
that have produced Multitudes of Men, eminent
in Gifts and Graces ; and eftablifhed a moft glori-
ous and happy Commonwealth, that hath been
lince its firft Beginning, the ftrongeft Pillar of
the Proteftant Caufe now in the World, and a
Place or Refuge unto thole who in all Parts of
Europe have been oppreffed for the Name of
Chrift : 'Whereas they had flavifhly, and, I think
I may fay, wickedly as well as foolifhly fuffered
themfelves to be butchered, if they had left thofe
empty Provinces under the Power of Autichrift,
where the Name of God Is no otherwife known
than to be blafphemed.

If the King of Spain defired to keep his Sub-
jedts, he fhould have coverned them with more
Juftice and Mercy ; when, contrary unto all Laws,
both Human and Divine, he feeks to deftroy
thofe he ought to have preferved, he can blame
none but himfelf, if they deliver themfelves from
his Tyranny: And when the Matter 1s brought
to that, that he muft not reign, or they over
whom he would reign, muft perifh; the Mateer
is ealily decided, as if the Queftion had been
asked in the Time of Nero or Dsmitian, Whether
they thould be left at Liberty to deftroy the beft
Part of the World, as they endeavoured to do,
or it Thould be refcued by their Deftruétion ? And
as for the People’s being Judges in their own Cafe,
¢ is plan, they ought to be the only Judges, be-
caufe 1t 1s their own, and only concerns themfelves.

Mr. Att. Gen. The latter end, the laft Sheet of
all, §. 35.

L.C. 7. The Argument runs tnrough the Book,
fixing the Power in the People,

Cl. of Cr. The general Revoltof a Nation from
its own, Magiftrates, can never be called Rebellion,

Mr. At Gen, §. 3% |

C/, of. Cr. The Power of calling and diffolving
Parliament 1s not in the King.

Mr. Att. Gen. So much we fhall make ufe of;

if the Colonel pleafe to have any other Part read to

explain it, he may.
Then the Sheets were fhewn to Col. Sidney.

Col. Sidngy. 1 do not know what to make of - it,
I-;can read It,

L.C.J. Ay, nodoubt .of it, better than any
Man here. Fix on any Part you have a mind to
have read. |

Col. Siduey. 1 do not know what to fay to it, to
read it in Pieces thus.

L.C. .1 perceive you have difpofed them un-
der certain Heads: To what Heads would you
have read ? |

Col. Sidney. My Lord, let him give an Account
of it that did 1t.

Mr. Att. Gen. My Lord, we will not delay Col.
Sidney from entring on his Defence, only we have
this Piece of Evidence to give further. One of
his Accomplices was my Lord Ruffel, we will give
in Evidence his Conviction. We will only ask
my Lord Howard, Was your Lordfhip fworn as a
Witnefs at che Trial of my Lord Rajfe/?

Lord Howard, Yes.

My, dtt. Gen. Whether or no, when you mer,
were there in thofe Debates any Refletions upon
the King, that he had broken his Duty?

Lord Howard. Not that I remember.,

My, Att. Gen. Why would you rife ?

Lord Howard, 1f you mean upon the Mifgo-
vernment, not perfonally upon the King ?

Mr, A, Gen. Ay.

Lord Howard, Yes, and principally and chiefly
that, which we thought was the general Difguft of
the Nation, the 1mpofing upon the City at thar
Time.

Mr. Fuft. Withins, That was complained of ar
that Time.

Lord Howard. Yes, my Lord, we took it all a-
long to be the chief Grievance, ’

L. C. }. Have you any more Witnefles ?

Mr. Ait, Gen, Only the Record.

Mr. Sol. Gen. I know thereisno Time mifpent
to make Things clear. If the Jury have a mind
to have the Words read again

L.C.%. It they have a mind, Iet it.

Then Mr. Trinder was fworn, and teftified it
to be a true Copy of the Record, and faid be
examined it at Filhmongers-hall with Mr.
Tanner.

Then the Record of the Convidtion of the Lord

Ruflel was read.

L.C. 7. Whatwill you go to next, Mr. Aetorney ?

Mr. Sol.Gen. We have done, unlefs the Jury
deflire to have the Words of the Libel read a-
oain, [ But they didnot. ]

Col. Sidney. My Lord, I defire to know upon
what Statute I am indicted.

M. Ait. Gen. My Lord, T will give as plain
an Anfwer, You are indi¢ted upon the old Stamte
of 25 Edw. 3.

Col. Sidney. Then I defire to know upon what
Branch of that Statute ?

Mz, Att, Ges. Why, I will acquaint you, *Tis
upon the firft Branch of that Statute, for confpir-
ing and Compafling the Death of the King,

Col, Sianey. Then I conceive, what do¢s not
come within that, does not touch me.
 Mr. At Gen, Make what Inferences you pleafe,
Colonel, we will anfwer you.

Cal, Sidney, 1 defire to know what the Witnefes
have fivorn againft me upon that Point ?

Mr. Ait. Gen. Go on, you have heard the Wit-
neffes as well as we. -

L.C.7 He fays you are indied upon the
Statute of 25 Edw. 3. which-Statute-makes 1t High-

S T'realon
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Treafon to confpire the Death of the King;
and the Overt-Aé is {ufficiently fet forth in the
Indi®tment; now the Queftion is, whether ’tis
proved.

Col, Sidney. They have proved a Paper found in
my Study of Caligula and Nero, that is Compaf-
fing the Death of the King, 15 1c¢

L. C.¥. That I fhall tell the Jury. The Point
in Law you are to take from the Court, Gentle-
men: Whether there be Faét {ufficient, that is
your Duty to confider.

Col, Sidney. 1fay, my Lord, that fince ] am in-
di¢ted upon that Statute, [ am not to take notice
of any other. I am indicted for confpiring the
Death of the King, becaufe fuch a Paper is found
in my Houle; under favour, I think that can be
nothing at all to me. For tho’ Sit Philip Lloyd
did ask me, whether I would put my Seal to it,
he did not ask me *till he had been in my Clofer,
and I knew not what he had put in, and o | told
him | would not do 1t. Then come thefe Gentle-
men upon Similitude of Hands. My Lord, we
know what Similitude of Hands s in this Age.
One told me within thefe two Days, that one
cane to him, and offered to counterfeit any
Hand he fhould fhew him in Half an Hour. So
then, my Lord, I have nothing to fay to thefe
Papers.  Then for point of Witnefs, I cannot
be indicted, much lefs tried or condemned on
25 Edw. 3. for by that A¢t there muft be two
Witneffes to that very Branch unto which the
Treafon does relate, which muft be diftinguith-
ed. For the levying of War, and confpiring the
Death of the King are two diftin@ Things, di-
Ttnét in Nature and Reafon, and fo diftinguithed
in the Statute. And therefore the confpiring the
Death of the King 1s Treafon, and the other
not. 1 Eaw, 6. 12, 5 Edw. 6, 11, does exprelly
fay, there muft be two Witnefles to cither of
thefe Ats. Now here is my Lord Howard, (I
have enough to fay of him By and by) *Tis he on-
ly who fpeaks of f{ix Men, whom he calls a fele&
Council, and yei feleCted by no Man in the World,
1 defive to know who felected my Lord Aloward?
Who {elefted me? It they were felefted by no
body, *tisa Bull to fay they were a fele& Council :
If they were nor felected, but erefted themfelves
into a Cabal, then they have either Confidence in
one another, or find they are near equally able to af-
Ot in the Defign. Here isnothing of all this,—Thefe
fix Men were Strangers to one another. For my
own part, I neveripake with the Duke of Monionth
above three Times in my Life, and one Time was
when my Lord Howerd brought him to my Houfe
and cozened us both, He told the Duke I invited
him, and he told me the Duke invited himfeif, and
neither of them was true.  Now that fuch Men as
thefe are, not hardly knowing one another, fhould
prelently fall into a great and intimate Friendfhip,
and Truft and Munagement of fuch a Bafinefs
as this is, Is a Thing utterly improbable, unlefs
they were mad. Now I dofind in my Lord Aow-
-ard’s Depofition againft my Lord Ruffel, that they
were in Profecution of my Lord Skaftsbuiy’s De-
fign; and yer he acknowledges the Duke of Mox-
mouth fad he was mad, and he himfelf faid fo too.
Now that they fhould join with four more in the
‘Profecution of the Delign of a Mad:man, they
muft be mad too. Now whether my Lord Howw-
“ard would have you think he was mad, becaufe a
Mad-man cannot be guilty of Treafor, I cannot

tell. My Lord Howard in his laft Depofition at
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my Lord Ruffel’s Trial, fixes the two Meetings;
one about the Middle of %awwary, the other ten
Days after: Now he fixes one to be the latter
End of Fanuary, the other the Middle of Febru-
ary. Then he makes it to be the Profecution of
my Lord Shaftsbury’s Defign. I do not find that
any one there had any thing to do with my Lord
Shaftsbury, for my part I had not. I had not feen
his Face in two Years. Then, my Lord; that
I go upon 1s, whatever my Lord Howard is, he
1s but one Witnefs. The Law of God and the
Law of Man, underftood and taken by all Men;
does require two Witnefles; Mofes fays {o, fo the
Apoftles the fame after him, and Chri# fays the
fame, That every Matter 1s to be eftablifthed by
two Witneffes. There cught to be two Wit
neffes to the fame Thing. Now for one to come
and tell a Tale of a Tub, of an imaginary Coun-
fel, and another of a Libel, a Paper written no
body knows when, is fuch 2 Thing you can never
go over it.  Burif the Law of Ged be, that there
muft be two Witnefies to the fame Fa&, there is
an end of this Matter. And under the Judicial
Law, the Penalty would be in this Cafe, to put
o Man to Death. Now here there are but two
‘Things, which if allowed of, no body will bé
fate tor Perjury., The one is to fuffer Men to
give their Teftimony, one to one Thing, and .ano-
ther to another, that the Fraud cannot be difco-
vered; and the other is to take away .the Punifh-
ment. Now the Punifhment is taken away in
fome Meafure: And do but take away the other
Point, whereby the Fraud cannot be difcovered ;
and then there 1s no Defence can be .made. That
both Witnefles fhould be to the fame Point; fec
the Story of Sufenna. Two Elders teftified they
faw her 1n.the Act-of Adultery: They were carry-
ing of her to Death; both of them faid the fame
Thing; until they were taken afunder and examin-
ed, the Frand was not difcovered; and then.one
faid, fhe wasunder a Tree-of the right Hand, and
the other, under the Tree on the left; and fhe
efcaped and they were punifhed.  Bur now if you
apply 1t to feveral Falts, my Lord Howard may
fay what he pleales, and 1f another fhall come with
a {upplemental Proof; no Juftice can be had. But,
my Lord, Tdefire chis, 1f there be two Witneffes
to prove the Conipiracy, and in that there were
thole Matters done-that are Treafon, I muit anfwer
to it; but if there be not; I prefume I need fay no-
thing toit. If you do notallow it me, I defire
Counfel to argue 1t.

L. C. 7. That is a Point of Fat, whether there
be two Witnefles. I tell you ‘before-hand, one
Witnels is not fufficient.

Col. Siduey. Why then there 1s my Lord How-
ard, and never another.,

L. C. . Nay,-do not make thofe Inferences ;
T will tell the Jury, 'if there be not two Witnefles,
as the Law requires in this Cafe, they ought to.ac-
quit you. .

Col. Sidwey. You confound me, I cannot:ftir.
You talk of a- Confpiracy; what is a.Conlpiracy
to kill the King? .Is there any more Witnefles tham
one forlevying of War? ‘ |

L.C.F. Pray donet deceive yourfelf; you
muft not think the Court and you intend.to enter
into a Dialogue, Anfwer to the'Fa&_; if there ber
not fufficent Fix&, the Jury will acquit you. Make
what Anfier you canto It, o ]

Col. Siduey. Then [ fay, there being -but -one

LCY

Witne$s, T am-not-to-anfwverto it atall,
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L. C. 7. If you rely upon that, we will direct
the Jury prefently.

Col. Sianey. Then for levying. War, what does
any one fay? My Lord Heward, let him, if he
pleafe, reconcile what he has faid now, with what
he faid at my Lord RefeP’s Trial. There he
fard, he faid all he could ; and now he has got I
do not know hew many Things that were never
{poken of there. I appeal to the Court, whether
he did then fpeak one Word of that, that he now
fays of Mr. Hambden. Fle fets forth his Evidence
very Rhetorically, but it does not become a Wit-
nefs, for he is only to tell what is done and faid,
but he does not tell what was done and faid. He
{ays, they took upon them to confider, but does
not fay what one Man faid, or what one Man re-
folved, much lefs whatIdid. My Lord, if thefe
"Things are not to be diltinguifhed, but {hail be
jumbled all up rogether, I confefs I do not know
what to fay.

L.C. 7. Take what Liberty you pleafe. If you
will make no Defence, then we will direct the Jury
prefently, We will direct them in the Law, and
recollect Matter of Falt as well as we can.

Col, Sidney. Why then, my Lord, I defire the
Law may be referved to me, I defire T may have
Counfel to that Point of there being but one
Witnefs.

L. C.J. Thatis a Point of Falt. If you can
giﬁ% any Teltimony to difparage the Witnels,

0 1L

Col. Sidney. 1 have a great deal to that,

L.C. 7. Goon to it then.

Col. Sidney. Then, my Lord, was there a War
levied? Or was it prevented? Why then, if it be
prevented, ’tis not levied; if it be not levied, ’tis
not within the Statute; {o this is nething to me.

L.C.7. The Court will have Patience to hear
you; but at the fame time I chink 1t 1s my Duty
to advertife you, that this is but mifpending of
your ‘Time. If you can anfwer the Fact, or if you
have any mind to put any Difparagement upon the
Witnefles, that they are not Perfons to be believ-
ed, doit, but do not ask us Queftions this way or
’other.

Col. Sidney. 1 have this to fay concerning my
Lord Heward: He hath accufed himfelf of divers
‘Treafons, and I do not hear that he has his Par-
don of any: He is under the Terror of thofe
‘T'reafons, and the Punithment for them: He hath
fhewn himfelf to be under that Terror: He hath
faid, that he could not get his Pardon, until he
had done fome other Jobs, *till he was paft this
Drudgery of Swearing: That 15, my Lord, that
he having incurred the Penalty of High-Treafon,
he would get his own Indemnity by deftroying
others, This by the Law of God and Man, I
think, deftroys a Man’s Teftimony. Befides, my
Lord, he 1s my Debtor, he owes me a confider-
able Sum of Money I lent him in Time of his
great Neceflity ; he made fome Covenants with
me for the Payment of that Money, which he hath
broken; and when his Mortgage was forfeited,
.and I fhould take the Advantage the Law gives
me, he finds out a Way to have me laid up in the
Tower: He 1s a very fubtle Man: At my Lord
" Ruffel’s Trial, he carried his Knife, he faid, be-
- tween the Paring and the Apple; and fo this is
-a Point of great Nicety and Cunning, at one
Time to get his own Pardon, and at the fame
Time to fave his Money. Another Thing, my
Lord, is, when I was Prifoner, he comes to my

Houfe, and fpeaks with my Servant, and fays,
how forry he was that I fhould be brought in
Danger upon this Account of the Plot, and there
he did in the Prefence of God, with Hands and
Eves lifted up to Heaven, fwear he did not be-
lieve any Plot, and that it was but a Sham ; and
that he was confident if I had known any thing,
I would have rold 1t him, He hath fiid fome-
what of this before, 1 have feveral Witnefles to
prove both, He was defirous to go furcher, and
he would not only pay my Debt by his Teftimo-
ny againft me, but he would have got my Plate
ard other Goods in my Hands into his Hands,
and he deflired my Men, asa Place of Truff, to
put them into his Hands. And the next News
was, that there was a Warrant againft my Lord
Ruffel and me, Bur then, my Lord, he made
other Affirmations in the fame Prefence of God,
that I was innocent in his Opinion, and he was
confident of it; for if he had known any thing
of it, he would have told it. Now I know, in
my Lord Rujfel’s Cafe, there was Dr, Buinet faid
fomething like 1t. And when he came to anfiver
1t, he faid he was to face it out, and make the
beft of it he could. Now he did face it out brave-
Iy againit God, but he was very timorous of Man.
So that, my Lord, he does fay at the fame Time,
at my Lord Ruffel’s Trial, upon his Oath, that he
did belteve that the Religious Obligation of ar
Qath, did not confift in the Formality of apply-
ing it to the Place, {Je. but i calling God to
witnefs., So that when he did call God to witnefs
before Dr, Burnet and my Servant, and others,
and this 1s not confiftent with the Qath he has
taken here, as the Gentleman faid at my Lord
Ruffel’s Trial, unlefs he has one Soul in Court,
and had another at my Houfe, thefe Things are
inconfiftent, and cannot be true; and if he fivear
both under the Religion o an Qath, he fivears
himfelf perjured. Then, my Lord, he talks of
Aaron Smith, what have I to do with Aaron Siith ¢
He fays, I fent him; my Lord, there is no body
elfe fpeaks a Word of 1t. T'hen by a firange kind
of ConftruCtion and Imagination, they will have
it, that fome Papers here, which are faid to be
found in my Study, have relation to this Plot,
as they call it; I know of none, noram in none.
Now, my Lord, I am not to give an Account
of thefe Papers, 1 do not think they are before
you, for there is nothing but the Similitude of
Hands offered for Proof.  There is the like Cafe
of my Lady Carr fome few Years ago: She was
indi¢ted of Perjury, and as Evidence againft her,
fome Letters of hers were produced, that were
contrary to what fhe fwore in Chancery, and her
Hand was proved; that is to fay, it was like it;
But my Lord Chiet Juftice Keiling dire@s the Jury,
that tho’ in Civil Caules irisa Proof, yet it is the
fmalleft and leaft of Proofs; but in criminal Cafes
it was none at all. So that my Lord Howard's
Teftimony 1s fingle; and what he talks of thofe
two Bufinelfes that he calls a Confult, and Aaron
Smith, is deftroy’d by want of Proof, What
could fix Men do? Can my Lord Howard raife
five Men by his Credit? By his Purfe? Let him
fay as much for me, with all my Heart; for my
part, I do not know where to raife five Men. That
fuch Men as we are, that have no Followers,
fhould undertake fo vaft a Defign, is very unlike-
ly: And this great Defign that was ‘carried on
thus, 1t had neither Officers nor Soldiers, no Place,

no Time, no Money forit.  That which he faid
’ ) I’Jﬂi
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latt Time, which he forsot now, he talked of
twenty five, or thirty thoufaind Pound, but no
Man knew where it was to be had, but laft time
he faid, it was fpoken in jeft. Now this 15 a
pretty Cabal, that fix Men fhould meet about a
Bufinefs, and they neglet every one of the Points
relating to the Thing they met about, make no
Step about the Bufinefs, and if any one did fpeak
of 1t, it was but in jelt. This 15 a very deep
maintaining of the Plot. Then, my Lord, as to
thefe Papers, I do not think I am to give any
Account of them, I would fay nothing to the
Difparagement of Sir Philip Lloya, 1 never faw
him till he came to my Houfe, buc yet I fay he
is the King’s Officer, and when I am profecuted
at the King’s Suit, I think he ought to be no Wit-
nefs. The Government of Framce is violent and
abfolute, but yet a fewY ears ago, a Minufter of State
had his Papers taken from him, and abundance of
them had dangerous Plots againft the King 1n
them ; but becaufe they were inventoried in his
Officers Prefence, or thofe deputed by him, there
was no ufe could be made of them, 1t was an itre-
parable Fault in the Procels, and that faved him.
The Similitude of Hands is nothing: We know
that Hands will be counterfeited, fo that no Man
fhall know his own Hand, A Gentleman that 1s
now dead, told me, that my Lord Ar/ington about
five Years ago, defired him to write a Letter,
and feal it as well as he could; he writ 1t with
Care, and fealed it with a Wafer and Wax upon i,
and within a few Days, my Lord Ariington brought
him five Letters, and he did not know which was
hisown. The Attorney fhews thefe Papers to me,
I do not know whether they are my own or no;
but thefe very Papers, fuch as they are, doabhor,
as much as any one can, fuch a Defign. Look
upon them, you fee they are all old Ink. Thefe
Papers may be writ, perhaps, thefe twenty Years,
the Ink is fo old. But my Lord, 1t is a polemi-
cal Difcourfe, it feems to be an Anfwer to Fi/-
mar, which is not calculated for any particular
Government in the World: It goes only upon
thefe general Principles, that according to the
univerial Law of God and Nature, there 1s but
one Government in the World, aad that 1s intire
and abfolute; and that the King cun be bound
by no Law, by no Oath, but he may make all
Laws, and.abolifh them as he pleafes: And this
whether of Age or no, a Man, or a Child of
Senfe, or out of his Senfe. Now, my Lord, what
if any Man in his Cabinet thould have written this
Book? Then he has another Principle, he fays,
’tis the fame Thing whether a King come in by
Election, by Donation, by Inheritance, or Ufurpa-
tion, or any other way ; than which, [ think, ne-
ver was 2 Thing more defperately faid,  Cromwell,
when one #hite, a Prieft, wrote a Book, wherein
he undertock to prove, That Poffelfion was the only
Right to Power, though he was aTyrant, anda
violent one, (you need not wonder I call him
Tyrant, I did{o every Day in his Life, and acted
again{t him too) it would be fo odious a Princl-
ple, he would not endure it, and he ufed him
very {lightly for it. Now this Filmar, that no
Man muft write againft, is the Man that does
aflert it, that ’tis no Matter how they come by
their Power, and gives the fame Power to the
worlt Ufurpers, as they that moft rightly come
to the Crown. By the fame Argument, if the
arranteft Rafcal of Jfrael-had killed Mofes, David,
&e. and feized upon the Power, he had been
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poflefled of that Power, and been Iather of the
People. If this be Dotrine, my Lord, that 1s
juft and good, then I confefs it may be danger-
ous for any thing to be found in a Man’s Houfe
contrary to it; but if ‘@ Commoner of England
write his prefent Thoughts, and another Man
Jooking on his Book writes his prefent Thoughts
of it, what great Hurt is there in1¢? And | ask

Mr. Attornzy how many Years ago, that was

written.
L.C.F. I don’t know what the Book was In

anfwer to. We are not to fpeak of any Book
that Sir Robert Filmar wrote, but you are to make
your Defence, touching a Book that was found
in your Study, and fpend not your Time, and tlie
Court’s Time, in that which ferves to no other
Purpofe, than to gratify a luxariant way of Talk-
ing that you have. 'We have nothing to do with
his Book, you had as gocd tell me again, that
there was a Parcel of People rambling about,
pretending to my Lord Raffel’s Gaoly, and fo we
may anfwer all the Comedies in Eugland, Anlwer
to the Matter you are mndited for, Do you own
that Paper ? -

Col. Sidney. No, my Lord.

L.C.% Go on then, it does not become us
to be impatient to hear you, but we cught to ad-
vertife you, that vou {pend not your Time to po
Purpofe, and do yourlelf an Injury. '

Col. Siduey. 1 fay frft, ’tis rot proved upon me:
And fecondly, °tis nota Ciime 1f it be proved ——

L. C. F. Ycubegan very materially inone Thing;
it is material for you to apply yourfelf to take off
the Credibility of my Lord Heward, that is a Wit~
nefs ; call your Witneffes to that Purpofe, or if
you have any other Point to take away the Credi-
bility of any other Witnels. -

Col. Siduey. My Lord, [ have feven or ;:ighr
Points of Law.

L. C. 7. 1 hear not one yet. '

Col, Sidney. Why, my Lord, Conlpiring to le-
vy War is not Treafon, and 1 defire to have.Coun-
fel upon that. |

L. C.¥.Tis not a Queftion.You had as good ask
me, whether the firft Chapter in Littleton be Law.

Col. Sidney. My Lord, 1 have neither made War,
nor conipired to Jevy War, |

L.C. % Youare fill in a Miftake, you fhall
not think that we intend to dialogue with you, to
Jet you know how far the Proof hath been givén
or not given, but when we come to direct the Ju-
ry, then we (hall obferve how far the Law réguires
there fhould be two Witneffes. Burt whether there
be fuch a Proof, that muft be left to the Jury.

M, Fult. Withins, 1If you agree the Confpiracy,
I will tell you my Mind of it; I cannot give you
my Opinion in Law, till the Fact be ftated.

L.C. 7. The Law always arifes upona Paoint of
Faéts there can be no Doubt in Point of Law, till
there be a Settlement in Point of Fact. |

M. Fuft. Hollpsway. My Lord has put you in 4
right Way : - The Confpitacy is proved but by one
Witnefs, if you have any thing to fake off his
Credibility, *éis to the Parpote. o

Col. Siduney. Truly, myLord, Ido as little in-
tend to mif-fpend my own Spirit, and your Time,
as ever any Man that came before you. Now,my
Lord, if you will make a Concatenation of one
Thing, a Suppofition upon Suppofition, T would
take all this afunder, and fhew, if none of 'thefe
Things are any thing in themielves, they can be
nothing joined together. T

L.C. 7.
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L.C. 7. Take your own Method, Mr. Sidiey 5

but I fay, if you are a Man of low Spirits and
veak Body, ‘us a Duaty mcumbent upon the
Court, to exhort you not to {pend your Time upon
Things that arc not material.

Col. Siduey. My Lord, 1 think *tis very materi-
al, that a whimfical imagination of a Confpiracy
thould not pals for a real Conlpiracy of the Death
of the King; befides, 1t thefe Papers were found
in my Honte, *tis a Crime created fince my Im-
prifonment, and that cannot come in, for they
were found fince. My Lord, 1if thefe Papers are
right, it mentions 200 and cdd Sheets, and thefe
fhew neither Beginning nor Ending; and will you,
my Lord, indi¢t 2 Man for Treaion for fcraps of
Paper found in his Houfe, relating to an ancient
Paper, intended as mnocently as any thing in the
World, and piece and patch this to my Lord Heeo-
ard’s Difcourie, to malie this a Contrivance to kill
the King? Then, my Lord, I think ’tsa Rightof
Mankind, and ’ts exercifed by all fludious Ven,
that they writc in their own Clofets what they
pleafe for their own Memory, and no Man can be
anfwerable for it, unlefs they publifh it.

L. C. 7. Pray don’t go away with that Right of
Mankind, that it s lawiul for me to write what I
will in my own Clofet, unlefs I publithic: I have
been told, Curle not the King, not in thy Thoughts,
not in thy Bed-Chamber, the Birds of the Air will
carry 1t, I took it to be the Duty of Mankind,
to obferve that.

Col. Sidiey. 1 have lived under the Inquifi-
tion

L. C. 7. God be thanked we are governed by
Law.

Col, Sidney. 1 have lived under the Inquifition,
and there is no Man 1n Spain can be tried for
Herefy

My, Fuft. Withins, Draw no Precedents from the
Inquifition, here, 1 befeech you, Sir.

L.C. % We muft not endure Men to talk,
that by the right of Nature every Man may con-
trive Vlifchief 1 ivs own Chamber, and he is
not to be punifhed, ’ull he thinks fir to be called
to 1t

Col. Siduey. My Lord, if you will take Serip-
ture by pieces, you will make all the Penmen of
the Scripture blaiphemous; you may accufe Da-
vid of faying, There 1s no God; and accule the
Evangelifts of faying, Chrift was a Blalphemer
and a Seducer; and the Apoftles, That they were
drunk.

L. C. 7. Look you, Mr. Siduey, 1if there be any
part of it that explains the Senfe of it, you {hall
have it read; indeed we are trifled with a little.
*Tis true, in Scripture tis faid, there 15 no God,
and you muft not take that alone, but you mult
fay, The Fool hath faid in his Heart, there 1s no
God. Now here is a thing imputed to you in the
Libel; if you can fay, there is any Part that is in
excule of it, call for it. As for the Purpole,
whofoever does publifh, that the King may be put
in Chains or depofed, is a Traitor; but wholoever
fays, that none but Traitors would put the King
in Chains, or depofe him, isan honeft Man; there-
fore apply ad idew, but don’t let us make Excur-
{1ons.

Col. Sidney, If they will produce the whole, my
Lord, then | can fee whether one Part contraciéts

another. *
L.C. % Well, if you have any Witnefls call

them,

Col. Siduev. The Earl of Auzlefey.

L. C. 7. Ay, in God’s Name, ftay "ull Te-mor-
row in 1hings that are poronent,

Col. Sidiey, 1 defire 1o know of my Lord A:-
glefiy, what my Lord Hsward faid to him concera-
ing the Plot that was broken out,

Lord Auglefey, Concerning this Plot yon are
now queftroned for.

Col. Sidnzy. The Plot for which my Lord Ruffof
and [ was 1in Prion.

Lord suglefey. The Queftion I am asked, is,
What my lord Heward tnd before the Trial of
my Lord Ruffe/, concerning tioe Plot; 1 fuppofs,
this goes as a Branch of that he was accufid
for. I was then n the Country, when the Bu-
finefs was on foor, and uled to come to Town
a Day or two In the Week, living neir in Fle
Jerdfbrre, and 1 underfanding the AfH:ition my
Lord of Beafuid was in, 1 went to giveny Lod
a Vific, we having been Acquaantance of above
fifey Years {tanding, and bred togetier in AZzud-
i Collcg: in O«ford.  When I came to my
Lord of B:dford, and had admuimitred that Com-
fort that was fit for one Chriftian to give anothe
in that Diitrefs, I was ready to leave him, and
my Lord Hsward came . 1t was upon the Fi-
dey betore my Lerd fHoward was wken, he was
taken (as I take 1t) upon Sunday or Adeidar, my
Lord Iward fell mro the fame Chrittian Ofice
that I had been jult difcharging, to compaffionate
my Lord’s Afiliétion, to ule Argaments to com-
fort and fupport him under it, and told him, he
was not to be troubled, for he had a difcrect, 2
wife and a virtsous Son, and he could not be
in any fuch Plot (I think that was the Word he
ufed at firft, though he gave another Nanie to it
afterward) and his Lordfhip might therefore well
expe€t a good Iffue of that Bufinefi, and ha
might believe his Son fecure, for he believed he
was nerther guilty, nor fo much as to be fufped-
ed. My Lord proceeded further, and did fay,
that he knew of no fuch barbarous Defien (! think
he called 1t fo in the fecond place) ard coua'd not
charge my Lord Reflel with it, nor any body
clfe. This was the citect of what my Lord FHow-
ard faid at that Time, and I have nothing to fay
of my own Krowledge more than this; but to
obferve, that I was prefent when the Jury did
put my Lord Huward particululy to it; What
have you to fay to what my Lord uglefy reftifics
againft you? My Lord, Ithink, did in three fe-
veral Places’give a fhort Account of himfelf, and
fard 1t was very true, and gave them fome further
Account why he fud 1r, and faud, he fhould be
very glad it might have been advantageons to my
Lord anﬁ’f

(ol, Siduey. My Lord of Clare, 1 defire to know
of my Lord of Clare, what my Lord Howard faid
concerning this Plot and me,

Lord Clare. My Lord, A little afrer Coloncl
Siduey was taken, fpeaking of the Times, he faid,
Thar 1f ever he was queltion’d again, he would
never plead, the quickeft Difpatch was the beft,
he was {ure they would have his Life, though he
were ever fo innocent, and difcourfing of the late
Primate of Arinagh’s Prophecy ; for my part, fays
he, Ithink the Perfecution is begun, and I believe
it will be very tharp, bur I hope it will be fhort,
and I faid, 1 hoped {o too.

M. /4, Gen, What Anfwer did your Lord/hip
glve to 1t ?

Lord Clare. 1 have told you what I know, mg

) Lor
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T,ord is too full of Difcourle for me to anfwer all
he fays ; but for Colonel §idiey, he did with great
Affeverations affert, that he was as innocent as
any Man breathing, and ufed grear Encomiums
in his Praife, and then he feemed to bemoan his
Misfortune, which I thought real; for never
was any Man more engaged to another, than
he was to Colonel Sidrey, 1believe, Then I
told, they talked of Papers that were found, I
am fure, fays he, they can make netaing of any
Papers of his.

M. A, Gen. When was this?

Lord Clere. 'This was at my Houfe the begin-
ning of Fuly.

M. Ait. Gen. How long before my Lord How-
aid was taken ?

Lord Clare. About a Week before.

M At Gen, T would ask you, my Lord, upon
your Honour, would not any Man have fuid as
much, that had been in the Plot?

Lord Clare. 1 can’c tell, 1 kuow of no Plot.

Col, Siduey. Mr. Pbilip Hotvard.

My, Fuft. Withins. What do you ask him ?

Col. Sidney. What you heard my Lord Howard
fay concermng this pretended Plot, or my being

1n it.
M. Phil. Heward, My Lord, when the Plot

firft brake out, I ufed to meet my Lord Heward
very often at my Brother’s Ioulc, and coming
one Day from Hhiichall, he asked me, what
News ? I told him, 1y Lord, fays I, there are
abundance of People that have conleffed the hor~
ric; Defign of murdering the King, and the Duke.
How, fays he, is fuch a thing poflible 2 Says I,
*us fo, they have all confefled 1t.  Says he, do
you know any of their Names? Yes, fays I, I
have heard their Names: What are their Names?
Si.s he; why? fays 1, Col. Ruinfey, and ivir, 7,
and one [#7alcot and others, that are 1n the Pro-
clamation(1 can’c tell whether #7alcot was n Hold)
fays he, ’ts impoffible jucn a thing can be; fays
he, there are in all Countries People that with
1]l to the Government, and, fays he, [ believe
there are fome here; bue, fays he, forany Man
of Honour, Intereft or Eftate to go about it, is
wholly impoffible. Says [, my Lord, fo it is,
and | believe it.  Says I, my Lord, do you know
any of thefe People? No, fays he, none of them,
only one day, fays he, pafling thro’ the Exchange,
a Man faluted me, witir a Blemith upon his Eye,
and he embraced me, and with’d me all Happi-
nefs: tays he, 1 could not call to mind who this
Man was; but afterwards, [ recolletted myfelf
that I met him at my Lord Shaftsbury’s, and heard
afterwards, and concluded his Name to be
his at whofe IHoule the King was to be affaffi-
nated

My, At Gen, Rumbold?

Nir, Howard, Ay, Rumbold. My Lord, may I
ask if my Lord Hsward be here?

L. C. ¥ He is there behind you.

My. Howward, Then he will hear me. My Lord
fays I, what does your Lordfhip think of this
Bufinefs ? Says he, Iam in a Maze; fays I, if you
will be ruled by me, you have a good opportu-
nity to addrefs to the King, and all the difcon-
tented Lords, as they are called; and to thew
your Deteftation and Abhorrence of this things
for, fays I, this will be a good means to recon-
cile all things. Says he, you have put one of
the beft Notions in my Head that ever was put.
Says I, You are a very good Penman, draw up

Vou, lll.
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the firft Addre(s (and I believe T tvas the Arft thac
mentioned an Addrefs, you have had many an
one fince, God fend them good Succefs) Says
he, Iam forry my Lord of Effex is out of Town,
he fhould prefent it. But fays I; herc is my
Lord Ruffel, my Lord of Bedford, my Lord of
Clare, all of you that are difaffelied; and fo ac-
counted, go about this Bufinefs, and make the
Nation happy, and King happy. Says he, Wil
you fray uil I come back? Ay, fays I, 1f you
will come in any tme; but he never came back
while I was there.  The next Day, I think, my
Lord Ruffel was taken, and Icame and found him
at my Brother’s Houfe again (for there he was
Day and Nieht) fays he, Coulin, What News?
Says I, my Lord Ruffel is fent to the Tower, We
arc 21l undone then, fays he, Pray, fays he, go
to my Lord Privy-Seal, and fee if you can find
I am to be taken up; fays he, I doubt *tisa
Snam-Plot, 1if it was a true Plot, I fhould fear
nothing 3 fays I, What do you put me to go to
my Lord Privy-Seal for? He 15 one of the King’s
Cabinet Council, do you think he will tell me?
[won’tgo; but, faysI, it you are not guilty,
why would you have me go to enquire ? Way,

fays he, becaufe I fear tis not a true Plot, but
a Plot made upon us, and therefore, fays he,
there 13 no Man free. My Lord, 1 can fay no
more as to that time, (and there 1s no Man that
{its here, that wilhes the King better than I do.)
The next thing I come to, 1sthis, 1 came the
third Day, and he was mighty fad and melan-
choly, that was when (.ol. Siduey was taken ; fays
I, Why are you melancholy, becaufe Col. Sidiey
is taken? Says [, Col. S7duwey was a Man talked
of before, why were you not troubled for my
Lord Ruflel, that 1s of your Biood? Says he, I
have that particular Obligation from Col. Sidrey,
that no one Van had {rom another. 1 have one
thing to fay farther, I pray I may be righily un-
derftood 1n what I have faid.

1..C. 7. What, would you have us undertake
for all the Pecple that hearyou ? | think you have
{poken very maternally, and 1 will obferve it by
and by to the Jury.

Col, Siduey. Pray call Dr. Baraet,

Mr. Fuft . Walcot. What do you ask Dr. Burnet?

Col. Sidney. | have only toask Dr. Buaruet, whe-
ther after the News of this pretended Plot, my
Lord Howard came to him? And what he {aid
to him.

Liv, Burnet, My Lord, the Day after this Plot
brake out, my Lord Heward came to fee me,
and upon fome difcourfe of the Flor, with Hands
and Eyes lifted up to FHeaven, he protelted he
knew nothing of any Plot, and believed nothing
of it, and faid, that he looked upon it asa ri-
diculous thing.

My Lord Paget was fent for at the Prifon-
¢i’s Requelt, being in the Hall.

Col, Sidney. Mv Lord, 1 defire fofeph Ducas
may be called. [#Who appeared, being a French
nan,

C;Z. Sidyey. 1 delire to know whether he was
not in my Houle when my Lord Howard came
thither, a little after I was made a Prifoner, and
what he faid upon i,

Drucas, Yes, my Lord, my Lord Heward came
the Day after Colonel Sidwey was taken, and
he asked me, where was the Colonel Sidney 2
And I faid, he was taken 0y an Order of the King,
and he faid, oh Lord! What is chat for? Iiad,

5 L, ‘They
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They have taken Papers; he faid, are fome Pa-
pers left? Yes. Fave they taken fomething
more? No. Well you muft take all the Things
out of the Houfe, and carry them to fome you
can trult: 1 dare truft no body, fays he; I will
lend my Coach and Ceachman [ faid, if the Co-
lonel Sidney will fave his Goodss he fave them,
-1f not, ’tis no matter. A little after the Lord
Howard came in the Houfe of Col, Siduey about
eleven o’Clock at Night, When he was 1n, 1 told
him, What is this? They talk of a Plot to kill
the King and the Duke, and | told him, they
fpake of one general Infurretion ; and 1 told him
more, that I underftood that Col. Sidiey was fent
into Scotlzind : When my Lord Hewardunderftood
that, he faid, God knows, 1 know nothing of
this, and I am fure if the Colonel Sidirey was con-
cerned in the matter, he would tell me fomething,
but I know nothing. Well, my Lord, I told
him, 1 believe you arc not fafe in this Houfe,
there is more Danger here than in another Ilace.
Says he, I have been a Prifoner, and I had rather
doany thing in the World than be a Prifoner a-
oain,
Then iny Loird Paget came into the Cour?,

Col. Siduey. Pray, my Lord, be pleafed to tell
the Court, if my Lord Howard has faid any thirg
to you concerming this Iatc pretended Plot, or
my being any Party in it.

Lord Paget, My Lord, I was fuhpena’d to
come hither, and did not know upon what ac-
count ; I am obliged to fay, my Lord Hoeward was
with me prefently after the breaking out of this
Plot, and before his appearing i that Part which
he now afls, he came to me; and I told him,
That I was glad to fec hun abroad, and that he
was not concerned wn this Diforder, He fud,
he had Joy from feveral concerning 1t, and he took
it as an Inury to him, for that it looked as if
he were Guilty, He faid, he knew nothing of
himfelf, nor any Body clfe. And tho’ he was
free in Difcourfe, and free to go into any Com-
pany indifferently 3 ..t he faid, he had not feen
any body that could fay any thingof him, or give
him occalion to fay any thing of any body elfe.,

Col, Sidney, Mr. Edward Howard.

Mr. Ed. Howard. Mr., Sidiuey, Whathave you
to fay to me?

Col. Sidney. My Lord, I defire you would ask
My. Ed. Howard the fame Thing, what Difcourfe
he had with my Lord Alward about this Plot ?

L. C. ¥. Mr. Howard, Mr. Siducy delires you
to tell what Difcourfe you had with my Lord
Heward abont this Plot.

Mr. Ed. Howard, My Lord, I have been for
fome time very intimate with my Lord, not only
upon the Account of our Alliance, but upon a
itrict Intimacy ana Correfpondence of Friendihip,
and I think 1 was as much his as he could expect
from that Alliance. I did move him during this
time, to ferve the King upon the moft honoura-
ble Account I could, but that proved ineffeCual :
1 pafs that, and come to the Bufinefs here. As
foon as the Plot brake out, my Lord having a
orcat Intimacy with me, exprefled a great Detef-
tation and Surprizing in himfelf to hear of it
wherein my Lord Hewasrd affored me under very
oreat Afleverations, that he could neither accufe
himfelf, nor any Man living, He told me more-
over, that there were certain Perfons of Quality,
whom he was very much concerned for, that they
fhould be fo much refleted upon or troubled,

and he condoled very much their Condition, both
before and after they were taken. My Lord, 1}
believe in my Conicience he did this without anv
mental Refervation, or Equivocation, for he had
no Reafon to do it with me, I add morcover,
if 1 have any Senfe of my Lord’s Difpofition, I
think 1f he had known any fuch thing, he would
not have ftood his being taken, or mude his Ap.
plicatton to the King 1n this manner, I am afraid
not fo fuitable to his Q iality.

L. C. 7. No Reilecuons upon any Body. .

M. Howard, My Lord, 1reflect upon no Bo-
dy, I underfland where I am, and have a Refhe@
tor the Place; but fince your Lordfhip has gfvcn
me this Occalion, Imuft needs fay, rhat that Re-
proof that was accidentally eiven me ar the Trial
of my Lord Rufe/, by reafon of a weak Memo-
ry, made me omit fome Particulars I will {peals
row, which are thefe, and I think they are mate-
rial: My Lord, upon the Difcourfe of this Plot,
daid further affure me, that it was certainly g
Sham, even to his Knowledge: How, my I.ord,
lys 1, do you mean a Sham? Wiy, fays he,
fuch an one, Coufin, as is too black for any M-
nifter of publick Lmployment to have devifed,
but, fays he, it was forged by People in the dark,
fuch as Jefuits and Papifts; and, fays he, this is
my Conicience ; {ays I, my Lord, if you are fure
of this Thing, then pray, my Lord, do that ho-
nourable Thing that becomes your Quality, thac
is, give the King Satisfaction as becomes you ;
pray make an Addrefs under your Hand to the
King, whereby you exprefs your Deteftation and
Abhorrence of this Thing: Says he, | thank you
for your Counfel: To what Minifter, fays he,
thall T apply myfelf 2 1 pitch’d upon my Lord
Halifa::, and I told him of my Lord’s Defire,
and I remember my Lord Howard named the
Duke of Aemmouth, my Lord of Bedford, the Earl
of Clare, and he faid he was fure they would do
it; that he was fure of their Innocence, and would
be glad of the Occalion: And I went to my Lord
Helifax, and told him that my Lord was willino
to fet it under his Hand, his Deteftation of thie
Plot, and that there was no fuch thing to his
Krowledge, My Lord Hellifax very worthily re-
ceived me; fays he, I will introduce it; but my
Lord Ruffel being taken, this was laid afide, and
my Lord gave this Reafon, For fays he, there
will be fo many People taken, they will be hin-
der’d. T mult needs add from my Conftience,
and from my Heart before God and Man, that it
my Lord had fpoken before the King, fitting up-
on lis Throre, abating for the Solemnity of the
Prefence, 1 could not have more believed him,
from that Affurance he had in me. And [ am
fure from what I have faid, if T had the Honour
to be of this Gentleman’s Jury I would not be-
lteve him.

L. C. ¥. That muft not be {uffered.

M. Ait, Gea. Youought to be bound to your
good Behaviour for that, |

L. C. 7. The Jury are bound by their Oaths to
go according 1o their Evidence, they are not to
oo by Men’s Conjectares,

M. Howard, Mﬂ)f I go, my Lord?

My, 4k Gen. My Lord Howard defires he may
ftay, we fhall make ufe of him.

Col. Sianey. My Lord, I fpake of a Mortgage
that I had of my Lord Foward, I don’t know
whether it is needful to be proved ; but it is fo.

Lord Howard, 1 confefs i.

ol
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Col, Siduey. Then, my Lord, here is the other
" Point 5 he 1s under the Fear, that he dare not
but fay what he thinks will conduce towards the
eaining his Pardon 5 and that he hath exprefled,
that he could not have his Pardon, but he muft
firlt do this Drudgery of Swearing. 1 need not
fay, that his Son fhould fay, That he was forry
his Father couid not get his Pardon unlefs he did
fwear againft fome others.

Col. S:dney. Call Mr. Blake. [ ho appeared.]
My Lord, I defire he may be asked, Whether
my Lord Heward did not tell him that he could
not get his Pardon yet, and he could aferibe 1t
to nothing, but that the Drudgery of Swearing

mult be over firft,

Then my Lord Chief Fuftice asked the Queftion,

My, Blake. My Lord, | am very forry I fhould
be calied to give a publick Account of a private
Converfation, how 1t comes about I don’t know.
My Lord fent for me about fix Weeks ago, to
come and fee him. I went, and we talked of
News ; [ told him, Iheard no body had their Par-
don, but he that firft difcovered the Plot; he
told me, no; but he had his Warrant for it:
And, fays he, I have their Word and Honour for
ity but, fays he, I will do nothing n 1t tll Lhave
farther Order 3 and fays he, I hear nothing of it,
and I can afcribe it to no other Reafon, but [
muft not have my Pardon till the Drudgery of
Swearing is over. Thefe Words my Lord faid, I
believe my Lord won’t deny It.

Then Col. Sidney called Mr. Hunt and Bur-
roughs, dut they did not appear.

Col. Siduey. Tis a bard Cafe they don’t appear.
One of them was to prove that my Lord Howaid
faid he could rot have his Pardon till he had
done fome other Jobs.

L. C. ¥ T can't help it; If you had come for
Afiitance from the Court, I would willingly have
done what I could.

Their Col, Sidney mentioned the Duke of
Buckingham, but be was iiformed he was
not fubpane’d,

Col, Siduey. Call Grace Tracyand Elizabeth Pey-
wick, {Who appear’d.] 1 ask you only, what my
Lord Howard faid to you at my Houlfe concerning
the Plot, and my being in it ?

Tracy. Sir, he faid, that he knew nothing of a
Plot he protefted, and he was fure Col. Sidiey
knew nothing of it. And he faid, if you knew
any thing of it, he muft needs know of i, for he
knew as much of your Concernsas any onein the
World.

Col.Sidney. Did he take God to Witnefs uponit?

Tracy. Yes.

Col, Sidney. Did he defire my Plate at my
Houe ?

Tracy. T can’t tell that, he faid the Goods
might be fent to his Houfe.

Col. Sidney. Penwick, What did my Lord How-
ard {ay in your Hearing concerning the pretend-
cd Piot, or my tlate carrying away ?

Peiwick. When he came, he asked for your
Honour, and they faid your Honour was taken
away by a Man to the Tower for the Plot, and

then he took God to Witnefs he knew nothing of

it, and believed your Honour did not neither,
He faid, he was in the Tower two Years ago, and
your Honour, he believed, faved his Life,

Col. Sidney. Did he defire the Plate ¢

Penwick. Yes, and faid it thould be fent to his
Houfe to be fecured. He faid it was only Malice.

Vor. UL

11

Mr. Wharton flood up.
. Mr. Wharton. *Tisonly this I have tofay; That
if your Lordthip pleafes to fhew me any of thefe
Sheets of Paper, I will undertake to imitate them
in 2 little time, that you fhan’t know which is
which. *Tis the eafieft Hand that ever I faw in

- my Life,

Mr. At Gen, You did not write thefe; Mr.
Wharton ? '

Mr. Wharton. No; but I will do this in a very
little time, if you pleafe. |

L. C. . Have you any more Witneffes ?

Col. Sidney. No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Then apply yourfelf to the Jury.

Col. Siduey. "Then this 15 that I have to fay.
Here 15 2 huge Complication of Crimes laid to
my Charge : I did not know at firft under what
Statute they were, now I find ’tis the Statute of
25 Edw. 3. This Statute hath two Branches ; one
relating to War, the other to the Perfon of the
King. That relating to the Perfon of the King,
makes the confpiring, imagining and compaffing
his Death, criminal. That concerning War is not,
unlefs it be levied. Now, my Lord, I cannot
imagine to which of thefe they refer my Crime,
and 1 did delire your Lordfhip to explain it. For
to fay that a Man did meet to confpire the King’s
Death, and he that gives you the Account of the
Bufinefs does not fpeak one Word of ir, feems
extravagant ; for Confpiracies have ever their De-
nomination from that Point to which they tend ;
as a Confpiracy to make falfe Coin infers [nftru-
ments and the like. A Confpiracy to take away
a Woman, to kill or rob, are all dire€ted to thac
End. So confpiring to kill the King, muft im-
mediately aim at killing the King, The King
hath two Capacities, Natural and Politick, that
which is the Politick can’t be within the Statute,
in that Senfe he never dies, and *tis abfurd to fay
it fhould be a Fault to kill the King that can't
dic : So then it muft be the natral Senfe it muft
be underftood n, which muft be done by Sword,
by Piftol, or any other way. Now if there be not
one Word of this, then that is utterly ar an End,
tho’ the Witnefs had been good. The next Point is
concerning levying of War, Levying of War is
made Treafon there, {o it be proved by Overt-
Adt; butan Overt-Aét of that never was, or can
be pretended here. If the War be not levied,
’tis not within the A&, for confpiring to levy
War 1s not in the A&t. My Lord, there s no
Man that thinks that I would kill the King that
knows me, Iam nota Man to have fuch 2 De-
fign, perhaps I may fay I have faved his Life once.
So that 1t muft be by Implication, that is, it is
firft imagined that I intended to raife a War, and
then *us 1magined that War thould tend to the
Deftru¢tion of the King. Now I know that may
follow, but that is not natural or neceffary, and
being not natural or neceffary, it can’t be {o un-
derftood by the Law. it Thatis not, is plain ;
for many Wars have been made, and the Death
of the King has not followed. David made War
upon Sax/, yet no body will fay he fought his
Death, he had him under his Power and did not
kill him ; David made War upon Jhbofboeth, yet
did not defign his Death: And fo in England and
France Kings have been taken Prifoners, but they
did not kill them. King Stepben was taken Pri-
foner, but they did not kill him.  So that *tis two
diftin&t Things, to make War and to endeavour
to kill the King, Now as there is no manner of

5L a Pretence
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Pretence that I thould endeavour. to kill the King
dire@tly, fo it can’t be by Inference, becaufe *tis
Treifon under another Species: I confefs Iam
not fit to argue thefe Points, 1 think T ought to
have Counfel, but 1f you won’t allow it me, I
can’t help it 3 but thefe Things are impoffible to
be jumbled vp together. Now I fay this, if I
am not under the firlt Branch, if not directly, I
can’t be by Implication ; tho’ I did make War, I
can’t be faid to confpire the Death of the King,
becaufe ’ts a diftinét Species of Treafon ; and
my Lork Coke fays, us the Overthrow of all Ju-
ftice to confound Membra dividentia. Now if the
making of War can’t be underftood to be a con-
fpiring the Death of the King, then I am not
guilty of this Indictment ; but here, -my Lord, is
neither confpiring the Death of the King, nor
making War, nor confpiring to make War. Be-
fides, I fay, *tis not the beft Man’s Evidence here
would be good in this Cafe, becaufe the Law re-
quires two. ‘The next Thing is the Bufinefs of
Aaron Swith, which my Lord tells fo inpertfettiy,
and {o merely comjectural, that there 1s nothing
in iz but his Rhetorick 1n fetting it out. He tells
you of a Letter fent with him, but he does not
te'l you by whom wrie, what was in it, or whe-
ther it was delivered or no; fo that I think we
may lay that afide as theother, as Things nothing
in them at all.  Then fays Mr. Atrorney, Thele
Sceteh Gentlemen are come to Town, [ profefs |
never heard the Names of one of them till he
named them to me in the Zower. I have not fent
my {elf, nor writ a Letter mnto Scotland never
fince the Year 59, nor do I know one Man 1n
Scotlond to whom I can write, or from wham I
ever received one, I returned into England In
the Year 77, and fince that ume have not writ
nor recetved a Letter from Scotland.  Then fome
Gentlemen came hither, What 1s that tome ? I
never faw one of the Cempbels in my Lafe, nor
Moiro if any one can prove I have had any
Communication witih them, I will be glad to fuf-
fer. Then here arc Papers, if any thing 1s to be
made of them, you mulft praduce the whole, for_
’ris impoflible to make any thing of a part of
them. You ask me, what other Paffage I would
have read, I don’t know a Paffage in themy, I can’t
tell whether 1t be good or bad.  But if there are
any Papers found, 'tis a great doubt whether they
were found in my Study or no, or whether they
be not counterfeit ; but tho® that be admitted,
that they were found i my Houfe, the Hand s
fuch, that 1t thews they have been writ very ma-
ny Years. Then that which feems to be an Ac-
count of the SeCtions and Chapters, that 1s but a
Scrap, and what if any body had, my Lord, ei-
ther 1n my own Hand or another’s, found Papers
that are not well juftifiable, is this Treafon ? Does
this imagine the Death of the King? Does this
reach the Life of the King ? If any Man can fay
1 ever printed a Sheet in my Life, I will fubmit
to any Punithment.  Many others, my Lord,
they write, and they write what comes into their
Heads. I believe there is a Brother of mine here
has forty Quires of Paper written by my Father,
and never one Sheet of them was publifhed, but
he writ his own Mind to fee what he could think
of itanother time, and blot it out again, may be,
And I myfelf, I believe, have burned more Pa-
pers of my own writing than a Horfe can carry.
So that for thele Papers I can’t anfwer for them.
There i nothing in it, and what Concatenation

can this have with the other Defign that is in itfelf
nothing, with my Lord’s fele€t Council feleéted
by no body to purfue the Defign of my Lord
Shaftsbury ¢ And this Council that he pretends to
be fet up for fo great a Bufinefs, was o be adjuft-
ed with fo much Finenefs fo as to bring Things
together, What was this Finenefs todo? (taking
it for granted, which I don’t.) This was nothing
(if he was a credible Witnefs) but a few Men talk-
ing at large of what might be or not be, what
was like to fall out without any manner of Inten-
tion, or doing any thing ; they did not fo much as
enquire, whether there were Men in the Coun-
try, Arms, or Ammunition, A War to be
made by five or fix Men, not knowing one ano-
ther, not trufting one another. What faid Dr.
Coxe mn his Evidence at my Lord Ruffel’s Trial,
of my Lord Ruffel’s trufting my Lord Hownid ?
FHe nugnt iay the fame of fome others. So that,
my Lord, I fay, thefe Papers have no manner of
Coherence, no Dependence upon any fuch Defign.
You muft go upon Conjecture upon Conjecture;and
after all, you find nothing but only Papers, never
perfett, only Scraps, written many Years Rgo,
and that could not be calculated for the raifing of
the People. Now, pray what Imagination can
be more vain than that? And what Man can be
fafe, if the King’s Counfel may make fuch (whim-
fical I won’t fay, but) groundlefs Conftrufions?
Mr. Aitorney fays, the Plot was broken to the
Scots, (God knows we were neither broken nor

joined) and that the Campbels came to Town a-

bout that Time I was taken ; and in the mean
time my Lord Heward, the great Contriver of all
this Plot, who was moft aétive, and adviled the
Bufinefs that confifted of fo much Finenefs, he
goes there and agrees of nothing, and then gees

anto Lffex upon great important Bufinefs, greater

than the War of Liglnd and Scotiond, to what
Purpole ? To look after a little pimping Manor,
and what then? Why then it muft be laid afide,
and he muft be idle five Weeks at the Basd, and
there 1s no enquiring after it. Now, I defire your
Lordlhip to confider, whether there be a Poffi-
bility for any Men, that have the Senfe: of Porters
and Grooms, to do fuch Things as he would put
upon us. I would only fay this; If Mr. Aiteiney
be 1n the right, there was a Combination with
the Scots, and then this Paper was writ ; for thofe
that fay I did it, fay I was doing of it then ; and
by the Notes, there is Work enough for four or
five Years, to make out what is mentioned in
thofe Scraps of Paper, and this muft be o kil
the King. And Ifay this, my Lord, that under
Favour, for all conftru@ive Treafons you are to
make none, but to go according to plain Proof,
and that thefe conftruétive Treafons belong only
to Parllament, and by the immediate Provifo in
that A&.  Now, my Lord, I leave it to your
Lordlhip, to fee whether there is in this any thing
that you can fay isan Overt-A¢ of Treafon men-
tioned in 25 Edw. 3. If it be not plainly under
one of the two Branches, that I have endeavour-
ed to kill the King, orlevied War, then ’tis mat-
ter of Conftruction, and that belongs to no Court
but the Parliament. Then, my Lord, this hath
been adjudged already in Throgmorton’s Cale.
There are twenty Judgments of Parliament, the
Al of 13 Eliz, that fays——1I fhould have fome-
body to {peak for me, my Lord.

L.C ¥. We are of another Opinion.
| Mr. Fuft.
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M. Fuft. Withins. I you acknowledge the Mat-  two Witnefles to every particular Fa®, and one

ter of Faét, you fay well.

Witnefs to one Fa&, and another to another, is

Col. Sidney. 1 fay there are feveral Judgmentsof not fufficient; it hath been very often objected,

Parliament, that do fhew whatever 1s conftruc-
tive Treafon does not belong to any private
Court. That of 1 Mary, ¥ Edw. 6. 1 Eliz. 5 Eliz.
18, another 13 Car. thews this. Now, my Lord,
I fay that the Bufinefs concerning the Papers, *us
only a Similitude of Hands, which 1s juft nothing,
In my Lady Carr’s Cafe, 1t was refolved to ex-
tend to no criminal Caule; If not to any, then
not to the greateft, the moft capital. So that I
have only this to fay, thatI think ’us impofiible
for the Jury to find this Matter; for the firit Point
you proved by my Lord Howard, that 1 think is
no body, and the laft concerning the Papers, s
only Imagination from the Similiude of Hands.
1f I had publithed it, I muft have anfwered for
it; or if the Thing had been whole and mine, [
muft have anfwered for it; but for thele Scraps
never fhewed any body, that I think does not at
all concern me. And I fay, if the Jury thould
find it (which is impoffible they can) I defire to
have the Law referved unto me.

M. Sol. Gen. My Lord, and you Gentlemen of
the Jury, the Evidence hath been long 5 but I will
endeavour to repeat it as faithfully as I can. The
Crime the Prifoner ftands accofed for, 1s compat-
fing and imagining the Death of the King. That
which we go about to prove, that compaffing and
imagining by, is by his meeting and coniulting
how to rufe Arms againft the King, and by plain
Matter in writing under his own Hand, where he
does affirm, it is lawful to take away and deftroy
the King. Gentlemen, I will begin with the firlt
Part of it, the Meeting and Confultation to raife
Arms againft the King. The Prifoner, Gentle-
men, hath endeavoured to avoid the whole Force
of this Evidence, by faying, that thus 1n Point of
Law can’t affe€t him, if it were all proved ; for
this does not amount to & Proof of his compal-
fing and imagining the Death of the King, and
he 1s very long in interpreting the Act of Farlia-
ment to you of 25 Edw. 3. and dividing of it Into
feveral Members or Branches of Treafon, and
does infift upon it, that tho’ this fhould be an
Ofence within one Branch of that Statute, yet
that. is not a Proof of the other, which 1s the
Branch he is proceeding upon, that is the firft
Claufe againft the compafing and 1magining the
Death of the King. And, fays he, confpiring
to levy War is not fo much as one Branch of
that Statute, but it muft be War actually levied.
This is a Matter he is wholly miftaken in, 1n
Point of Law. Ithath been adjudged over and
over again, That an Act which 1s 1n one Branch
of that Statute, may be an Overt-Act to prove 2
Man guilty of another Branch of 1t. A levying
War is an Overt-A&t to prove a Man guilty of
confpiring the Death of the King. And this was
adjudged in the Cafe of Sir Henry Vane, 10 1s
meeting and confulting to raife Arms; and Rea-
fon does plainly {peak it to be fo; for they that
confpire to raife War againft the King, can’t be
prefumed to ftop any where, till they have de-
throned or murdered the King. Gentlemen, I
won’t be long in citing Authorities, 1t hath been
fettled lately by all the Judges of England, in the
Cafe of my Lord Ruffel, who hath fuffer’d for this
Confpiracy. Therefore that Point of Law will be
very plain againft the Prifoner, He hath men-
tioned fome other Things, as that there muft be

and as often over-ruled : It was over-ruled folemn-
ly in the Cafe of my Lord Stefford. Therefore if
we have one Witnels to one Overt-A&, and ane-
ther to another, they will be two Witnefles in
Law to conviét-this Prifoner. In the firft Part of
our Evidence, we give you an Account of the ge-
neral Defign of an Infurreftion that was to have
been, that this was conirived firft, when my
Lord Shaftshury was in England, that after my
Lord Shaftsbury was gone, the Bufinels did not
fall, but they thonght fit to revive it again, and
that they might carvy it on the more iteadily, they
did contrive a Council among themlfelves of Six,
whereof the Prifoner at the Bar was one.  They
were the Duke ot Monmaonth, my Lord of Effx,
my Lord Heward, my Lord Ruffe/, the Zrifoner
at the Bar, and Mr. Hambden, This Council they
contrived to manage this Alrair, and to carry on
that Defign, that Ieemed to fall by the Death of
my Lord of Shaftsbury, and they met; this we
give you an Account of, firft by Witaefles,  that
gave you an Account in general of 1. And tho’
they were not privy to it, yet tiwey heard of this
Council, and that Colonel 87duey was o bz one of
this Council. This, Gentlemen, if it had itood
alone by 1tfelf, had been nothing to affect the Pri-
foner at all. But this will fhew you, that it was
difcourfed among them that were in this Conpi-
racy, Then my Lord Howard gives youan Ac-
count, that firlt the Duke of Aerizonth, and he
and Colonel Sidney met, and 1t was agreed to be
neceffary to have a Council that fheuld confift of
fix or feven, and they were to carry it on. Thae
the Duke of Mowuseith undertook to difpofe my
Lord Ruffel to it, and Colonel Sidney to difpofe
the Earl of Effex, and Mr. Hambden 5 that thefe
Gentlemen did meet accordingly, and the Sub-
ftance of their Difcourfe was, taking notice Low
the Defign had fallen upon the D=ath of my Lord
Shaftsbury, that 1t was fic to carry 1t on before
Mens Inclinations were cool, for they found they
were ready to it, and had great rexfon to believe
it, becaufe this being a Bufinefs communicated to
fo many, yet for all that it was kept very fecrer,
and no body had made any mention of 1t, which
they looked upon as a certain Argument that
Men were ready toengage in it, This encouraged
them to go on 1n this Confpiracy. Then when
the Six met at Mr. Hambden’s Houle, they de-
bated concerning the Place of Rifing, and the
T'ime, the Time they conceived muit bz fuddenly,
before Mens Minds were cool, for now they thought
they were ready and very much difpofed to it;
and for Place they had in Debate, whether they
fhould rife firft in the Town, or in the Country,
or both together. And for the Perfons, they
thought it abfolutely neceffary for them to have
the united Councils of Scotland to join with them,
and therefore they did refer this Matter to be
better confidered of another time, and they met
afterwards at my Lord Ruffel’s Houfe in February,
and there they had Difcourfe to the fame Pur-
pofe. But there they began to confider with
themfelves, being -they were to deftroy this Go-
vernment, what they fhould fet up in the Room
of it, to what Purpofe they engaged. For they
did very wifely confider, if this be only to ferve
a Turn, and to make one Man great, this will
be a great Hinderance -in their Affair, therefore

they
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they thought it “was neceffary to engage upon a
publick Account, and to refolve all into the Au-
thority of Parhament, which furcly they ei-
ther thought to force the King to call, or other-
wife that the People might call a Parlament, if
the King refufed, and fo they to choofe their own
Heads, But ftill they were upon this Point, that
it was neceflary for their Friends in Scotland to have
their Councils united with them, and in order to
that, 1t was neceffary to contrive fome Way to
fend a Meflenger 1nto Scotland, to bring fome
Men here to treat and confult about it, and Colo-
nel Sianey 1s the Man that does engage to fend this
Meffeuger, and he had a Man very fit for his
Turn, that 1s, Aaron Smith, whom he could con-
fide in, and him he undertook to fend into Secot-
land. This Meflenger was to fetch my Lord Azl
vin, the two Campbells, and Sir Fobin Cockram;
Colonel Siduey as he engaged to do this, o after-
wards he did fhew to my Lord Heward Money,
which he affirmed was for that Bulinefs ; he fays
it was a Sum of about fixty Guineas, and he be-
lieves he gave it him, for that Colonel §iduey told
him, Zaren Sinith was gone 1nto Scot/and, that the
Pretence was not barefaced to invite them over,
to confult of a Rebellion, but to confult about
the Bufinefs of Carslina, being a Plantation for the
periecuted Brethren, as they pretended in Scot/and,
Gentlemen, thele Scofchmen that were thus fent for
over, they came accordingly, that 1s, the two
Campbells, and Sir Fobu Cockiam, and the Difcourfe
with Sir Audrew Foffer was according to this Cant
that was agreed on beforehand, concerning a Plan-
tation in Carolina.  This was that that was pre-
tended for their coming hither ; but the true Er-
rand was, the Bafinels of the Infurreétion intend-
ed. Gentlemen, that they came upon f{uch a

=fign, is evident from the Circumitances; they
came about the Time the Bufinels brake out,
and in that Time fofpicioufly changing their
Lodging, they were taken making their Efcape,
and this at a Time before 1t was probable to be
known abroad that thefe Men were named as part
of the Confpirators. Thefe things do very much
verity the Evidence my Lord Heward hath given,
and there 1s nothing has been faid, does at all in-
validate it. The fending of Aeron Swmith 1to
Scotland, and his going, and the coming of thefe
Men, and their endeavouring to make their
Efcape, are mighty concarrent Evidences with the
whole Evidence my Lord Hsward has given,
Now, what Objeétions are made againft this
Evidence ¢ Truly none at all. Here are Perfons
of great Quality have given their Teltimony, and
they do not impeach my Lord Howard in the leaft;
but fome do extremely confirm the Truth of my
Lord Heward, My Lord Aiglefey gives you an
Accouat of a Difcourle at my Lord of Bezford's,
that my Lord Hosward came 1n, and that my Lord
Hsward fhould there comfort my Lord of Bedford,
and enlarge 1n the Commendations of his Son,
and fay he was confident he knew nothing of the
Defign, and he muft be innocent.  Gentlemen,
This is the Nature of the moft part of the Evi-
dence. Biy Lord of Clare, his kvidence 1s much
the like, that is, his denying that he knew of any
Plot. Now here 1s my Lord Howard under a
Guilt of High-Treafon ; for he was one of thofe
Confpirators not yet difcovered, nor no Evidence
of any Difcourfe leading to any thing that fhould
give Occafion to him to proteft his Innocency :
And fayshe, T know nothing of the Plot.  You

would have wondered if he fhould have been talk-
ing in all Places his Knowledge, and declaring
himfelf : His denying of it under the Guilt, when
he was not accafed, 1s nothing to his Confeffion
when he comes to be apprehended and taken for it.
Here Mr. Philip Howard fays, he had feveral Di
courfes with him about this Bufinefs, upon the
breaking out of the Plot, and that he advifed
him to make an Addrefs, and that this was a
Thing that would be very acceptable, and very
much for their Vindication ; and my Lord How-
ard (he fays) thanked him for his very good Ad-
vice, and faid, he would follow it : And prefently
after when my Lord Rufle/ was apprehended,
Mr. Howard tells him the News, that my Lord
Ruffel was apprehended ; this was fudden to him.
And what fays he? We are all undone. When
my Lord Ruffel that was one of this Council,
that was a fecret Council, and could not be
traced but by fome of themfelves, when He is
apprehended, then he falls out into this Expref-
fion, e are all vadone. This is an Areument
my Lord Howard had Guilt upon him, For,

why were they all undone, that my Lord Ruge!
was apprehended, any more than upon the appre-
hending the reft? Yes, becavle my Lord was one
of the Six, and now ’twas come to the knowine
of that Part of the Confpiracy. It was traced o
the Council of Six, which in all likelihood would
break the Neck of the Defign. Now thoush he
put 1t off afterwards, faying, I believe it a Tf‘brzm
Plot, yet this was but a trivial Put-off. And then,
when Colonel Siduey 15 taken, the ime Witnels
Mr. Howard tells you, my Lord was very fad and
melancholy ; for then he had greater Reafon to
lle under an Apprehenfion of being deteéled.
Therefore, Gentlemen, this will rather confirm
the Truth of the Evidence, than any way im-
peach it. Then (for I would repeat ‘it all, tho®
I think it had no great Weight in it) Dr. Burnet
fays, that after the Plot my Lord Howard pre-
tended he knew of no Plot. This is no more
than was teltiied by the other Lords before;
and all it Imports, 1s, that my Lord did not dif-
cover himlclf to Dr, Burwer, But 1 would fain
know, if my Lord had told Dr. Burwer, had it
not argued that he had great Confidence in him,
that he thought him a Man fit to be intrafted
with {uch a Secret? And unles the DoGor de-
fires to be thought fuch a Man, himfelf muft own
*tis no Obyjection, that my Lord Howerd did not
tell him. Ducas’s Teftimony is no more neither,
that he protefted he was innocent, and believed
Colonel Sidiey was mnnocent 3 and this was before
my Lord Howard difcovered any thing of this
Plot. "I'hen Colonel Sidney objects, This is by
Malice, my Lord Howard owes him Money, and
feeks to pay his Debts by taking away his Life ;
and in further Profecution of this Malice, would
have feized upon his Goods, But the Evidence does
not receive {uch Conftruction, for my Lord Hsw-
ard only offered Colonel Sidney the Civility of his
Houle to protect his Plate and Goods. Now,
Gentlemen, there were two other Witnefles, m

Lord Pagetand Mr. Edward Howard s but they
fay no more than the reft of them, that he did
oroteft his Innocency, and Mr. /Howard fays, he

advifed him to make an Adire to the Kine.
‘This, Gentlemen, I repeat, not that it is mu:ﬁ-
rial, but for no other Reafon, than becaule Co-
lonel Sidney had produced it; and o we are to

think, he intended to make fome ufe of it; but
Ican’t
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| car’t fee any Inference to be drawn from it
Thereis one Witnefs more, and that 1s Myr. Blake,
io the Credit of my Lord Hsward, who comes
here, and fays, that when he difcourled about a
Pardon, my Lord fhonld fay, That he had a War-
yant for his Pardon, but that he had not yet pal-
= it, and could mot yct; and he apprehended
e Reafon was, becaule the Drudgery of Swear-
ae was not over. Bur this 1s but what my Lord
fhvizerd had conjeCured « Furtl, 1t does not ap-
pear, that there 1s any Fromite of Pardon at all
o my Lord Howara, on any Terms impoted on
him. In the next plice, Whatever Expectation
he has of a Pardon, he can’t reafonably hope for
it without makinga clear Difcovery of all he
knows : For to futle the Evidence he has given,
is not a way to deferve a Pardon of his I'rince.
Therefore, Gentlemen, whatever Expreflions were
ufed, tho’ he called 1t the Druagery of Swearing,
however unwilling he is to come to it, and tho’ he
gives it very many hard Numcs, and might think
it very harfh to come and own himleif tobe one of
the Confpirators, it might be irkfome, and very
irkfome; yet none of them tell you, thatmy Lord
Hsward fhould fay, that what he had faid was not
true. Now he has come and given his Evidence,
and you have heard all thefe Objections againft it,
and not one of them touch it i the lealt,

I come in the next place to the other Part of

the
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it 3 bizt when once there is an Overt-A&; that is,
any taing that does manifeft and declare fuch la-
tentton, then the Law takes hold of it, and pu-
nifhes it as High-Treafon.

Now after this Evidence, 1 think no Man will
doubt, whether it was in the Heart of the Pri-
foner at the Bar to deftroy the King. But firft he
objects, that this is a Part of a Book, and unlefs
you take the whole, nothing can be made of it:
Asit 15 in wrefting of Texes of Scriprure, fays
he, you may as well fay, that David fays, there is
no God, becaufe David hath faid, The foo! bath
Jaid in bis beart, there s no Ged. Bat, Gentlemen,
the Application won’t hold; for you fee a long
Difcourfe hath been read to you, 2 continued
Thréad of Argument; ’tis not one Propofition,
but an whole Series of Argument: Thele are the
Pofitions, ¢ That the King derives all his Power
¢ from the People; That °tis originally in the
“ People, and that the Meafure of Subjeétion
“ mult be adjudged by the Parliament; and if
¢ the King does fall from doing his Daty, he muft
¢ expect the People will exaét 1t And this he
has laid down as no way prejudicial to him; for,
fays he, the King may refalc the Crown, 1f he does
not like it upon thele Terms. But, fays he, if
he does accept it, he muft expeét the Perfor-
mance will be exalted, or Revenge taken by thofe
he hath betray’d. Then next, he fets up an Ob-

Evidence, the Papers found in Colonel §id-  jection, and then argues againtt it: Ay, but fhall

;:::;}*’é Houfe. And in the firlt place he objedts, the Prople be Judge in their own Caufe ¢ And

They can’t affet him ; for, fays he, there is no
Proof they were found 1 my Houle, no Proof
they werewritten by me; for Compari.on of Hands,
that I1s nothing 3 and if they were proved to be
mine, ’tis nothing at all to the purpnfe 5 they are
an Anfwer toa Polemical Diicourfe. wherewith he
entertained himfelt privately in his Study. Why,
vou have obferved, I know, that Sir Philip Ligyd
in the firlt place fwears, that by Warrant from the
Secretary he fearched his Houfe, and he found
the Papers lying upon Colonel Sidiey’s Table in
his Study, when he came in there; and there is
no Ground nor Colour for you to {ufpelt other-
wife than that they were there, and he found them
there. For the Surmife ot the Prifoner at the Bar,
that they might be laid there, ’tis fo foreign and
without Ground, that by and by you will think
there is nothing at all m it.  In the next place,
we prove Col. Sidiey’s Hand, and that by as much

thus he anfwers it, It muft befo; foris not the
Kiag & Judge in his own Caunfe? How can any
Muan elfe be tried, or convifted of any Offence,
1f the King may not be Judge in his own Caufe?
For to adjudge by a Man’s telf, or by his Deputy,
1s the fame Thing 3 and fo a Crime agamit the
King can’t be punithed. And then he takes no-
tice of it as a very abfurd Pofition, ¢ That the
¢ King fhail judge in his own Caule, and not the
¢ People. > That would be to fay, The Servant
entcrisined by the Mafter fhall judge the Mafter,
but the Mafter fhall not judge the Servant, Gen-
tlemen, after this fort of Argument he comes to
this fereled Pofition, ¢ 'We may therefore, fays he,
¢ change or take away Kings, (without breaking
¢ any Yoke, or that is made a Yoke ;) the Inury
¢ 1s therefore in impofing the Yoke, and there can
¢ be none at all 1n breaking of it.” But he goeson
in his Book, and that is by way of Anfwer toan Ob-

Proofas the Thing is capable of; fuch a Proof jection, That if there be no Injury, yet there may

as in all Cafes haih been allowed; and that 1s,
for Men to come taat know and are acquainted
with the Hand-writing, and {wear they know his
Hand-writing, and they believe this to be his
Fand. You have heard from Mr, Sheppard, a
Man that uied to tranfalt Bufinels for him, pay
Money for him ; and Mr.Cook and Mr, Cary, Men
of known Credit in the City of Lendon, that have
had the like Dealings with Col, Siduey, and they
fivear this is his Hand-writing, as they verily be-

lieve. So that, Genrlemen, this Proof to you of

Col. Sidney’s Hand-writing does verify Sir Philip
Lloyd, that thefe Papers muft be found there, if
Col. Sduey writ them and then this being found
that they were writ by him, the next Thing will
be, How far this will be an Evidence to prove his
Compaffing and Imagining the Death of the King,
Compafling and Imagining the Deathof the King
is the A¢ of the Mind, and is Treafon whilf: it
remains fecret in the Heart, tho® né fuch Treafon
can be punifh’d, becaufe there is no way to prove

be Inconvenience, if the headlels Multitude fhould
fhake off the Yoke, But, fays he, I would fair know
how the Multitude comes to be headlefs ; and there
he gives you many Inftances in Scory, and from fo-
reign Nations he comes home to the Englifh, and
tells you how all Rebellions 1 later Ages have been
headed; and tells you the Parliament is the Head,
or the Nobility and Gentry that compofe 1t 5 and
when the King fails in his Duty, the People may
call it. The Multirude thercfore 1s never head-
lefs, but they etther find or create an Hoead, fo
that here isa plain and avowed Principle of Re-
beliion eftablifhed upon the firongelt Reafon he
has to back it. Gentlemen, This, with the other
Evidence that has been given, will be fufficient
to prove his compaffing the Death of the King.
You {ze the Affirmations he makes ; when Kingsdo
break their Truit they may be called to Account
by the People. This is the Doétrine he broaches
ard argues for : He fays in his Book inanother Parr,
that the Calling and Diffolving of Parhaments ‘s

ot
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not in the Xing’s Power. Gentlemen, you all
know how many Parliaments the King hath Cal-
led and Diffolved 5 if it be not in his Power, he
hath done that that was not in his Power, and
fo contrary to his Traft. Gentlemen, at the En-
trance into this Confpiracy, they were under an
Apprchenfion that their Liberties were invaded,
asyou heard in the Evidence from my Lord How-
ard, that they were juft making the Infurrection
upon that tumultuous Oppofition of cleting of
Sheriffs in London, They enter into a Conlulta-
tion to raife Arms againft the King; and 1t 1s
proved by my Lord Howard, that the Prifoner
at the Bar was one.  Gentlemen, Words {poken
‘upon a Suppofitton will be High-Treafon, as was
held in King Faies’s Time, in the Cale of Collins
in Roll’s Reports, The Kiung being excommunicaie
may be depofed and murdered, without affirming he
was excommunicated ; and this was enough to
convit him of High-Treafon. Now according
to that Cafe, to fay the King having broken lis
Traflt may be depofed by his People, would be
High-Treafon, but here he does as good as af-
firm the King had broke his Truft. Whenevery
one {ees the King hath diffolved Parliaments ; this
reduces it to an Affirmation. And tho’ this Book
be not brought to that Council to be perufed, and
there debated, yet it will be another, and more
than two Witnefies again{t the Prifoner: For |
would askany Man, fuppofe a Man wasina Room,
and there were two Men, and he ralks with both a-
part, and he comes to one and endeavours to
perfuade him that it is lawful to nfe i Arms
againft the King, if fo be he break his Truit ;
and he fhould go to another Man, and tell him
the King hath broken his Troft, and we mult
feek fome way to redrefs ourfelves, and perfuade
the People to rife; thefe two Witneffes do fo
tack this Treafon together, that they will be two
Witnefles to prove him Guilty of High-Treaton.
And yoa have heard one Witnefs prove 1t po-
ficively to you, That he confulted to rife in Arms
againft the King,and here is his own Book fays, it1s
lawful for a Man to rife in Arms againit the King,
if he break his Truft, and in effeét he hath faid, the
King hath broken his Truft: Therefore this will
be a {ufficient Demonftration what the Imagina-
tion of the Heart of this Man was, that 1t was no-
thing but the Deftruction of the King and the Go-
vernment, and indeed of all Governments. There
can be no fuch Thing as Government if the Peo-
ple fhall be Judge in the Cafe: For what fo un-
certain as the heady and giddy Multitude ? Gen-
tlemen, I think this will be a {ufficient Evidence of
his confulting the Death of the King. You have
here the Prifoner at the Bar that is very deep In
it. Indeed fome Men may by Paffion be tranf-
ported into fuch an Offence, and tho’ the Offence
be never the lefs, whatever the Motives are, yet
in fome it is lefs dangerous ; for thole that venture
upon Paffion to raife Commotions and Rebellion,
arc not always fo much upon thew Guard, but that
they may make fome falfe Steps to entrip them-
felves.  But this Gentleman proceeds upon a furer
Foundation, it is his Reafon, it is his Principle,
it is the Guide of all his Aétions, 1t 1s that by
which he leads and direéts the fteady Courfe of his
Lile. A Man convinced of thefe Principles, and
that walks accordingly, what won’t he do to ac-
complith his Defigns ? How wary will he be in
all his Actions ? Still reafoning with himfelf, which

Way to bring it moft fecurely about. Gentlemen,

- Thisis the more dangerous Confpiracy in this Man,

by how much the more 1t 1s rooted in him 3 and
how deep 1t 15, you hear, when a Man fhall write
as his Principle, that 1t 1s lawtu! for to depofe
Kings, they breaking thetr Troft, and that the
Revole of the whole Nation cannot be called Re-

cllion. It will bea very fad Cafe when People
aft this according to thewr Conftiences, and
do all this for the Good of the People, as they
would have it thought; but this is the Principle
of this Man. Gentlemen, we think we have plain-
ly made 1t our to you, and proved it fufficiently,
that it was the Imaginacion of his Heirt to de-
ftroy the King,and made fulficient Proot of High-
‘T'realon.

Col. Sidigy. Give me leave, my Lord, to fay
a very tew Words,  Tdeftie e, 89%ci20r would
not think it his Duty to wake away Mon’s Lives
any how : Firit, We have had a long Story ——

L.C. 7. Nuay, Mr. Sidnzy, we muait not have
vying and revying, I asked you before waae you
had to fay 3 the Courle of Evidence i, ufier the
King’s Counlel have concluded, we never admit
the Prifoner to {ay any thing,

Col. Silpey. My Lord, it was a wife Man {aid,
There never could be too much Deliy in the
Life of a Man: I know the K:ng’, Counlel may
conclude, 1f they pleafe.  Mr, Selicitor, I would
not have him taink that 1t is enough by one way
or another to bring a Man to Death: My Lor

. 2 )
this Matter of Sir Heiry Vane 1s utterly mifrepre-
fented.

L.C. §. I mult tell you, Gentlemen of the Jury,
that what the Priloner fuys, that is not proved,
and what the King’s Counfel have fud, of which
there 15 no Proot to muake it out, muft not be
tiken into any Confideration.

Col. Sianey. Then, my Lord, here is a Place
or two in old Hal’s [turning ever my Lord Hales
Bsck] for the Overt-Aé of one Treafon, not be-
g an Overt-Act of another, your Lordfhip
knows Core and fdales were both again{t it.  [He
reads.] Compalling by bare Words 15 not an Q-
vert-Act, conlpiring to levy War is no Overt- A4,

M. 8of, Gen, I defire but one Word more for
my own fake as wellasthe Prifoner’s, and thatis,
that if I have faid any thing that is not Law, or
mifrepeated, or mifapplied the Evideace which
hath been given, I do make it my humble Re-
quelt to your Lordfhip to reftify thofe Miftakes
as well in Pointof Faét as Point of Law ; for God
forbtd the Prifoner thould fuffer by any Miftake,

L.C. 7. Gentlemen, the Evidence has been
long, and 1t 1s a Caufe of great Concernment,
and 1t 1s far from the Thoughts of the Kine, or
from the Thoughts, or Defire of any of his Jﬁdcres
here to be inftramental to take away the Lite of
any Man, that by Law his Life ought not to be
taken away. Kor I had rather many guilty Men
fnould cfcape, than one innocent Man fuffer. The

Queftion 1s, Whether upon all the Evidence you
have heard againft the Prifoner, and the Evi-
dence on his Behalf, there is Evidence fufficient
to convict the Prifoner of the High-Treafon he
{tands charged with. And asyou muft not be
moved by the Denial of the Prifoner further than
as it 1s backed with Proof'; fo you are not to be
inveigled by any Infinuations made againft ihe
Prifoner at the Bar, further or otherwife than ag
the Froof is made out to you. But it is ufial, and
it 152 Duty incumbent on the King?. Countel, to
urge agamn't all fuch Criminals, whatfocver they

| obferve
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obferve in the Evidence againft them, and like-
wife to endeavour to give Anfwers to the Objec-
tions that are made on their Behalf. And, there-
fore, fince we have been kept fo long in this Caufe,
it won’t be amifs for me (and my Brothers, as they
fhall think fit,) to help your Memory in the Faét,
and difcharge that Duty that is incumbent upon the
Court as to the Points of Law. This Indi&tment is
for High-Treafon, and is grounded upon the Sta-
tute of 25 Edw. 3. By which Statute, the Compaf-
fing and Imagining the Death of the King, and
declaring the fame by an Overt-Aét 13 made High-
Treafon. The Reafon of that Law was, becaufe
at Common-Law there was great Doubt what was
Treafon; wherefore to reduce that high Crime
to a Certainty was that Law made, that thofe that
were guilty might know what to expect.  And
there are {everal Aéts of Parliament made be-
tween the Time of Edward 9, and thatof 1 AL
but by that Statute all Treafons that are not enu-
merated by After-Acts of Parhament remain as
they were declared by that Swatute of 25 Edw, 1.
And fo are Challenges and other Matters, infift-
cd upon by the Prifoner, lefr as they were at the
Time of that Act: I am alfo to tell you that in
point of Law, it is not only the Opinion of us
here, but the Opinion of them that fat before us,
and the Opinion of all the Judges of England, and
within the Memory of many of you, that tho® there
be two Witneffes required to prove a Man guilty of
High-Treafon; yet it 1s not neceffary there fthould
be two Witnefles to the fame Thing at one Time,
But 1if two Witnefles prove two feveral Falls, that
have a Tendency to the fame Treafon, they are
two Witnefles fufficient to convict any Man of
High-Treafon, In the Cafe of my Lord Stafford
in Parliament, all the Judges affilting, it is noto-
rioufly known, that one Witnefs to a Confpiracy
i Englend, and another to a Confpiracy in France,
were held two Witnelles fufficient to convict him
of High-Treafon. In the next Place, I Am to tell
you, that tho’ fome Judges have been of Opi-
nion that Words of themfeives were not an Overt-
Alts buc my Lord Heales, nor my Lord Coke, nor
any other of the Sages of the Law, cver quettion-
ed but that a Letter would be an Over-&4&, fuf-
ficient to prove a Man gutlty of High-Treafon;
for feribere eff agrre. Nr. Sidwey fays, the King isa
politick Perfon; but you muft defiroy him in
his Natural Capacity, or 1t 15 not Treafony but
I muit well you, if any Man compals to imprifon

the King, 1c is High-Treafon; fo was the Cafe of

my Lord Csbbam. And my Lord Cole, when he
fays, I a Man do attempt to make tiie King do
any ting by Force and Compulfion, otherwife
than he ougnt o do, that it is High-Treafon
within that Alt of 25 Eliz. 3. But if it were
an Indictment only for the levying of War, there
muft be an actual War leviedy but this 15 an In-
Cictment tor Compafling the Death of the King;;
and the other Treuion, mentioned 1n chat A& of
Parliament for the levying War, may be given
1n Lvidence to prove the Confpiracy of the King’s
Death: For ’us rightly told you by the King’s
Counfel, that the Imagination of a Muan’s Heart is
not to be difcerned ; bucif I declare fuch my Ima-
gination by an Overt-Act, which Over=Adt does
naturally evince, that the King muft be depoled,
deftroy’d, imprifon’d, or the like, it will be fuf-
heient Evidence of Trexion witihin that Act, In
the next Place, having told you what the Law is,
tor, Gentlemnen, *tis our Duty upon our Qaths,
Vou. L | ‘
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to declare the Law to you, and you are bound to
receive our Declaration of the Law, and upon this
Declaration, to inquire whether there be a Fadl,
{ufficiently proved, to find the Prifoner guilty of
the High-Treafon of which he ftands indicted:
And for that I muft tell you, whatever happens
to be hear-fay from others, it is not to be applied
immediately to the Priforier; but however thofe
Matters that are remote at firlt may ferve for
this Purpofe, to prove there was generally a Con-
fpiracy to defiroy the King and Government:
And for that Matter, you all remember it was
the conftant Rule and Method obferved about the
Popifh Plot, firft to produce the Evidence of the
Plot in general: This was done in that famous
Cafe of my Lord Stafford in Parhament, Gentle-
men, Iam alfo to tell you, this alone does not at
all affeét che Prifoner ac the Bar, but is made ufe of
as 2 Circumftance to fupport the Credibility of the
Witnefles; and is thus far applicable to the Bufindfs
before you, that ’tis plain, by Perfons that don’t
touch the Prifoner at the Bar, (and [ am forry any
Muan makes a Doubt of 1t ar this time of day) thac
there was a Confpiracy to kill the King s for afier
{o full a Proof in this Plice, and in others, and the
Execution and Confeffion of feveral of the Ofen-
ders, I am furprized to obferve that the Priforer
at the Bar, and fome otners prefent, feem not 1o
believe 1t

But, Gentlemen, you hear the firft Witnefs,
I {peak of 7Veft: Ee tells you he had the Ho-
nour to be acquainted with M. Sidiey, and that
he had Difcourfe with #alesot, 2 Perfon Convidt-
ed and Executed for this horrid Confpiracy,
Why, fays he, he told me at my Chamber, That
they were not the only Ierfons concerned, buc
that there were other Perfons of great Quality
that had their Mectings for the carrying on the
Bufinefs in other Places. And Frigafeu, that was
the Ring-leader 1n this Con{piracy, told him there
was 2 Delign of a general Infurrection 1t was
once 1aid down, but it 1s now taken up again,
There are other Counfellors of great Importance ;
and he names among the reft, the Prifoner at tae
Bar.  Mr, Vet goes a little further, and he rtelis
you this: Says he, He did not only teil me o,
but thar there was a Delign to conciliaze a Cor-
refpondence with fome FPerfons 1n Seotlend, and
they were to do 1t under the Cant of having Bu-
finchs in Cerolina.  There 1s Mr. Keeling, he tel's
you too, There wasa Delign lor a general and
publick Infurreftions That he was prefent with
the Goodenonghs, one and Cother, and that they
had tken upon them to divide, and did divide
the Cley into fuch and fuch Difiriéts: And whae
was the DBufinefs? It was, that there might be a
oeneral !nfurreftion; might be an Infurreltion,
not only to Deftroy the King and the Duke, but
to Deftroy all the King’s Loyal Subjects; and in
tuking away their Lives, to tike away the Lafe
of Monarchy itlelf, and to fubvert the Relizion
Eftablifhed by Law, Then comesin Cel. Ruzm-

fev, and he gives you an Accoun: that he had
~ 2

heard of fuch things in Mr. /7¢2’s Chamoer; and
teils you he had reccived fuch Intelligence,  And
all thefe give you an Account, that there was fuch
a Defign to kill the Kisg: And this is the Sub-
flance of the general Evidence produced to prove
the Confpiracy. Thiwen ro make this Matter come
home to the Prifoter 2t the Bar, firlt my Lord
Howerd gives yoa an Account, and doss dire@-
ly fivear, Thar avout the middle or laiter end of
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Fanuary laft, he happened to meet with Colonel
Sidney, the Prifoner at the Bar, and the Duke of
Monmerth (they were the Perfons firft began. to
have Difcourfe about this Matter) and how they
met with a Difappointment; the thing had flept
a great while, and that 1t was fit it thould be
revived again; and that Perfons of Quality were
mentioned, who were to have an immediate Care
in the carrying. on of the Bufinefs, and that it
fhould not be divulged to too many; according-
Iy there was my Lord Ruffel, my Lord of Effe,
my Lord of Salisbury, and Mr. Hambden named.
He tells you, the Prifoner at the Bar undertook
for my Lord of Effex, and Mr. Hambden, and he
tells you, the Duke of Monmonts undertook for
my Lord Rufl/, and the reft; and that this was
the Refult of one Meeting: He goes yet further,
That purfuant to this it was communicated to
thofe Perfons fo to be engaged, and the Place
and Time was appointed ; the Place, Mr. Hainb-
den’s Houfe ; but is not fo pofitive to the Time,
but only to the Place and Perfons. He fays, all
thefe Perfons met, and he gives you an Account,
That Mr. Hambden (becaute it was neceffary for
fome Perfon to break filence) gave fome fhort
Account of the Delign of their Meeting, and
made fome Reflexions upon the Miichicfs that
attended the Government, and what Apprehen-
fions many People had upon the late Choice of
Sheriffs, and that there had been a Male-Admi-
niftration of Publick Juftice; That 1t was fit fome
means fhould be ufed to redrefs thefe Grievances.
He can’t tcll you pofitively, what this Man, or
that Man, faid there; but fays, that all did
unanimoufly confent to what was then debated
about an Infurre@ion; and in order to 1t, they
difcourfed about the Time, when it {fhould be,
and that they thought fit it fhould be done fud-
deniy, while Mens Minds were wound up to
that height, as they then were; and as the frft
Witnels tells you, There was a Confideration,
whether it fhould be at one Place, or at feveral
Places together: He fays, then it was taken In-
to Confideration, that this could not be carried
on, but there muft be Arms and Ammunition
provided. The next Step is, about a neceflary
Concern, the Concern of Money, and therefore
our Law calls Money, Tke Sincws of War. My
Lord Hsward tells you, That the Duke of AMox-
mouth propofed 25 or 30000/ That my Lord
Grey was to advance 10000/ out of his own
Ettate ; but then they thought to make their Par-
ty more ftrong by the Affiltance of a Difcontent-
ed People in Scotlend, my Lord of Argyle, and
Sir Fobn Cockram, and feveral other People there to
join with them. ‘That purfuant to this, they all
after met at my Lord Ruflel’s, and the fime De-
bate is re-afflumed, and among the reft, this parti-
cular thing of conciliating a Friendfhip with the
Scotch; the Camplels, my Lord of Aigyle, and
my Lord Adelvin were particularly mention’d.
That Colonel Sidney took upon himfelf to find
out a Meflenger, but it was my Lord Ruffel’s
Part to write the Letters One of the Meflen-
gers named to convey the fame, was Aaron Sinth,
hie was known, fays my Lord Howard, to fome
of us; and then we all agreed, that Aeron Smith
was the moft proper Man: Upon this they brake
up that very Time. Afterwards comes my Lord
Howard to Col. Siduey at fome diftance of time,
and he comes to him, and fhews him threefcore

Guineas, and told him he was going intp the

City, and that they were to be given to Aaron
Smth. He tells you after this, That he had fome
other Difcourfe about a Fortnight or three Weeks
after, with Col. S7duty; and that Colonel Siduey
did take notice, that he had fent him, and that
he had an Account of him, as far as Newealle.
So that ’tis very plain, That it was not fudden
and rath Thoughts, it is a little more than, accord-
ing to the Language we meet with in forne Pamphe
lets of late, mere than Heats and Stirs.  Gentle-
men, Then I muft tell you here are Circume
ftances proved in purfuance of this Defign, for
Sir Andrew Fofter informs you, how that Siv Fobn
Cockram and the Camplels, and one Monro, as I
take it, came to Town, and that he had Dif
courfe with fome of them about their Bufinefs
of coming out of Scotland; and he fays, they
pretended 1t was about fome Bufinefs of fome
Trade to Carolina, which does ftll corroborate
the Evidence. He tells you likewife, that there
being a Noife of Difcovering the Plot, they bes
gan to hide; Sir Fobu Cockram bezan to hide, and
fculk from place to place; they come firft with
that Cant mn their Mouths, about Carelinas the
Meflecger Asterlury tells you, When they came
to take thele Men, how they thuffled from place
to place. So, Gentlemen, I maft te 1 you, That
if in cafe there be but one Witnefs to prove a
diret Treafon, and another Witnefs to a Cir-
cumitance that contributes to that Treafon, that
will make two Witneffes to prove the Treafon
Becaule I would explain my Mind, Not long ago
all the Judges of Eiglond were commanded to
meet together, and one that is the Serior of the
King’s Counfel was pleafed to pue this Cafe, If
I buy a Knife of 7. §. to kill the King, and it be
proved by one Witnefs I bought a Knife for this
purpole, and another comes and proves, I boughi
fuch a Knife of 7. §. they are two Witnefles fuf
ficient to prove a Man guilty of High-Treafon s
and fo it was held by all the Judges of Englend
then prefent, in the Prefence of all the King’s
Counfel. And therefore Mr. Sidney is mightily
miftaken in the Law: For in calk of any Treafon
(except the Treafon at the Bar) or in Treafon
for Clipping and Coining, one Witnefs is fuffi-
cient at this Day, Now, Gentlemen, fzppofing
all this fhould rot be fufficient, here is a Libel,
and 1t is a moft Traiterous and Seditious Libel,
If you beheve, thac that was Colonel Sidiey’s
Book, writ by him, no Man can doubt but it
is a fufficient Evidence, that he 1s guilty of Com-
pafling and Imagining the Death of the King;
and lec us confider, what Proof can be greater,
than what has been given of it. Mr. Skeppard,
an intimate Acquaintance of his, that has feen
him write, he looks upon the Hand, and fays,
He 1s extremely acquainted with the Hand, and
fays he, I believe in my Confcience, this Book is
Colonel vidiey’s Hand. Gentlemen, Do you expeét:
Mr. Sidney would call 2 Witnefs o be by to fee him
write thar Book?

In the next Place, you have two Tradefmen, Coke
and Czry, and they tell you, one had feen him write
once, the other had feen his Hand-writing, and they
both believe 1t his Hand-writing; and they have
good Reafon, for they have paid feveral Sums of
Money, upon Notes which they took, as well as this,
to be his Hand-writing. Gentlemen, Befides thar,
give me leave to tell you, here is another thing,
that makes it more plain. This very Book is found

1 Col. Sidney’s Houle, on the Table in his Study,

where
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where he ufed to write, by a Gentleman, agamnft
whom Colonel Sidney can’t make the lealt Ob-
jection ; and that there was that Fairnefs offered
by the Gentleman, Pray, Cslonel, put your Scal up-
oit ity that you may fee, that s Iujury be done you
but Mr, Sidney would not do it.  Theretore he
feals them with his own Secal, and carries them
to /Whiteball, where they were broken open,
and fwears that thofe Papers were found in his
Clofer, whereof this was one, Another thing
which I nnift take notice ot to you in this Cafe,
15, to mind you, how this Book contains all the
Malice, and Revenge, and Trealon, that Man-
kind can be guilty of : It nxes the fole Power
in the Parliament and the People ; fo chat he
carrics on the Defign {till, for their Debates at
their Meetings were to that purpofe.  And fuch
Doftrines as thefe furt wich their Debatesy for
there, a general Infurrection was deligned, and
that was dilcourfed of in this Book, and encourag-
ed: They mult not give it an 1ll Name: It mult
not be called a Rebeilion, it being the genc-
ral A&t of the People. The King, it fays, is
refponiible to them, the King 15 buc their Trof-
tee; That he had betrayed his Truft, he had
milgoverned, and now he is to give it up, that
they may be all Kings them{cives,  Gentlemen,
I muft tell you, I cthink I ought more than ordi-
narily to prefs this upon you, becaufe I know the
Mistortane of the late unhappy Rebellion, and
the bringing the late bleffed King to the Scaffold
was firit begun by fuch kind of Principles : They
cried, He had betrayed the Troft that was dele-
gated to him from the People.  Gentlemen, in
the next Flace, becaule he 1s afraid their Power
alone won’t do 1t, he endeavours to Poifon Mens
Judgments; and the way he makes uije of, he
colours it with Religion, and quotes Scripture
for it too: and you know how far that went in
the late Times; How we were for binding our
King m Chains, and our Nobles in Fetters of
Iron  Gentiemen, this i1s likewife made ufe of
by him to ftir up the People to Rebellion,  Gen-
tlemen, if I cale the Priloner did defign the De-
poling the King, the removing the King, and
if 1n order thereunto he be guilty of Conlpiring
to Levy Wary or as to the Leiter writ by my
Lord Ruflel, if he was privy to 1t, thefe will be
Evidences againft him. So that ’tis not upon
two, but ’us upon greater Evidence than 22, if
you believe this Book was writ by him, Next
I mult tell you, Gentlemen, upon, I think, a
lefs Teftimony an Indiftment was preferred a-
gainit the late Lord Reffe/, and he was thereupon
Convicted and Executed; of which they have
brought the Record. Thefe are the Evidences for
the King.

For the Prifoner, he hath made feveral Objec-
tions; As that there was no War levied: For
that, Gentlemen, at the beginning of the Caufe
Itold you what I took the Law to be, and I
take it to be {o very plainly, But, Gentlemen, as
to the Credibilicy of my Lord Howard, he of-
ters you feveral Circumltances. Firft, he offers
you 2 Noble Lord, my Lord Auglefey, who favs,
thar he attended my Lord of Beaford, upon the
Misfortune of the Imprifonment of his Son, after
he had done, my Lord Howard came to fecond
that Part of a Chriftian’s Office, which he had
performed, and told him, he had a very good
Son, and he knew no harm of hims and as to

the Plot, he knew nothing of it, Another No-
Yo, IIL
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ble Lord, my Lord Clare, tellsyou, That he had
fome Difcourfe with my Lord Zlsward, and he
faid, that if he were accufed, he thought they
would but tell Nofes, and his Bulinels was done.
"Then Mr. Phifip Howaid, he tells you, how he
was not {o intimate with him as others but he
often came to his Brother’s; and that he fhould
fay, he knew nothing of a Plot, nor did he be-
ieve anyy but at the fame time, he faid he be-
lieved there was a fham Plot; and then he prel-
fed him about the Bufinefs of the Addrefs; but
that now my Lord of Effex was out of Town,
and fo 1t went off. Another Thing Mr. Siducy
took notice of, fays he, us an Act of Revenge
in my Lord Howard, for he owes him a Debr,
that he does (befides by his Allegation) does not

appear,

Col. Sidney. My Lord, he hath confefied it.

L.C.%. Admit ity yet in cale Colonel Siagicy
{hould be Convifted of this Trealon, the Debz
accrues to the King, and he cannot be a Farthing
the better for it.  But how does it look like Re-
venge? I find my Lord Howard, when he fpeaks
of Colonel §iduey, fays he was more beholden to
him than any body, and was more forry for him
fo fays my ﬁOl‘d Clare.  Gentlemen, You have it
likewife offered, that he came to Colonel Sidiey’s
Houfe, and there he was defirous to have the
Plate and Goods removed to his Houle, and that
he would affift them with his Coach and Coach-
man to carry them thither ; and did affirm, that
he knew nothing of the Plot 3 and did not believe
Colonel Sidiey knew any thing: And thisis like-
wife proved by a couple of Maid-Servants, as well
as the Frenchman. You have likewife fomething
to the fame purpofe faid by my Lord Pagez, and
this is offered to take off the Credibility of my
Lord Howard. Do you believe, becanfe my Lord
Heward did not tell them, I am in a Conipiracy
to kill the King, therefore he knew nothing of
it ? He knew thefe Perfons were Men of Honous
and would not be concerned in any fuch thing.
But do you think becaufe a Man goes about and
dentes his being in a Plot, therefore he was not
in it? Nay, 1t feems {o far from being ankvi-
dence of his {nnocence, that it is an Evidence of
his Guile.  What fhould provoke a Man to dif-
courle after this manner, if he had not apprehen-
fions of Guilt within himfelf? This is the Teft-
mony offered againft my Lord Howard in dif-
paragement of his Evidence. Ay, but farther
’tis objected, he is in Expectation of a Pardon:
And he did fay, he thought he fhould not have
the King’s Pardon till fuch time as the drudge-
ry of fwearing was over, Why, Gentlémen, I
take notice, before this difcourfe happened, he
fwore the fame thing at my Lord Reffel’s Trial.
And I muft tell you, though it is the Duty of
every Man to difcover all Treafons s yet 1 tell
you for a Man to come and Swear himiclf over
and over guilty, in the Face of a Court of Jul-
tice, may feem irkfome and provoke a Man to
sive it fuch an Epithet. ’Tis therefore for hig
Credit, that he is an unwilling Witnels: " Bur,
Gentlemen, confider, if thefe things fhould have
been ailowed to take away the Credibility of a
Witneis what would have become of the Telti-
monies that have been given of late Days ? What
would becomie of the Evidente of all thole
that have been fo profligate in their Lives?
Wouid you have the King’s Counfel to call none
bur Men that were not concerned in this Plot,
5 M 2 Io
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t0 prove that they were Plotting? Ay, but Gen-
tlemen, it is further obje¢ted, This Hand looks
like an old Hand, and it may not be the Prifoner’s
Hand, but be Counterteited ;5 and for that, there
is 2 Gentleman, who tells you what a dextrous
Man e is.
terfeic any Hand in Half an Hour; ’tis an ugly

temptation, but I hope he hath more Honour
than to make ufe of that Art, he fo muchglories

in. But what time could there be for the Counter-
feiting of this Book? Can you imagine that Sir
Philip Lioyd through the Bag Sealed up did it ? Or
who elfe, can you imagine, fhould, or, does the
Prifoner pretend, did write this Bock? So thatas
on one Side, God forbid, but we fhould be careful
of MensLives, {o on the other Side, God forbid,
that Flourithes and Varnifh fhould come to endan-

ger the Life of the King, and the Deftrultion of

the Government, But, Gentlemen, We are not
to anticipate you in Point of Fall, I have, ac-
cording to my Memory, recapitulated the Matters
given in Evidence. It remains purely in you now,
whether you do believe upon the whole Matter,
that the Prifoner is guilty of the High-Treafon

whercof heis Indifted.
Mr. Fuft. Withins. Gentlemen, *Tis fit you

He fays, he believes he could Coun-

Judges of Eugland, in the Cafe * next preceeding
yours, though that was a Cafe relating to Cor-
porations, but they were of Opinion, That by
the Statute of Queen Mary, the Trial of Trea-
fon was put as 1t was at Common Law, and
that there was no fuch Challenge at Common
Law,

Col, Sidney.  Under favour, my Lord, I pre-
fume in fuch a Cafe as this, ot Life, and for
what I know concerns every Man in Eugland,
you will give me a D.y and Counfel to argue
it,

L.C. 7. "Tis not in the Power of the Court to
do 1t.

Cel. Siduey. My Lord, 1 defire the Indi€tment
againft me may be read,

L.C. 7. Towhat parpofe?

Col Siducy. 1 have fomewhat to fay to it

L. C. 7. Wel) read the ndictment,

Then the Clerk of the Grown read the Tidis-
i,

Col. Sidney. Pray Sir, will you give me leave to
fee 1t, 1f 1t pleafe vou.

L. C. 7. No, thar we cannot do.

Col. Siduey. My I ord, there is one thing then
that makes this ablolutely void, i df:pri*.:'es the

fhould have our Opinions 3 in all the Points of Xing of his Title, which is Trealon by Law, De-
Law we concur with my Lord Chief Juftice: Says  feufor Frder,  Thcre 1s no fuch thing there, if I

Colonel Sidney, here 1s a mighty Conipiracy, but
there is nothing comes of it, who muit we thank
for that? None but the Almighty Providence :
One of themfelves was troubled in Conicience, and
comnes and difcoversit; had not Ke.Zig difcovered
it, God knows whether we might have been alive
at this Day.

Then the Fury withdrew, and in chout balf an
Hour’s time returned, and brought the Prifon-
er i, Guilty.

And then the Licutenant of the Tower took
away bis Prifoner.

MO:;day Nov, 26, 1683. Algernon Sidney, Efg;

was brought up to the Bar of the Court of

King’s-Bench, to recetve his Sentence,

L.C. ¥ Mr, Attorney, will you move any
thing ?

Mr, Ait. Gen. My Lord, the Prifoner at the
Bar 1s convi¢ted of High-Treafon, I demand
Judgment againit him,

Cl of Crown. Algernon Siduey, Hold up thy
Hand. [Which be did.] Thou hatt been Indicted
of High-Treafon, and thereupon arraigned, and
thereunto pleaded not Guilty, and for thy Trial
put thy felt upon God and the Country, which
Country has found thee Guilty, what can’ft thou
fay for thy felf, why Judgment of Death fhould
not be given againft thee, and Execution awarded
according to Law?

Col. Sidney. My Lord, I humbly concetve, I
have had no Trial, I was to be tried by my

Country, I do not find my Country mn the Ju-
ry that did try me, there were fome of them that

were not Frecholders, I think, my Lord, there
is neither Law nor Prefident of any Man that has
been tried by a Jury, upon an Indictment lud in
a County, that were not Frecholders, So I do
humbly conceive, That I have had no Trialat all,
and it I have had no Trial, there can be no

Judgment.

L.C.¥. Mr S§iduey, You had the Opinion of

the Court in that Matcer. before: We were una-
nimous in it, for it was the Opinion of all the

heard right.

L. C. 7. In that you would deprive the King of
his Lafe, that 1s i very full 1 think.

Col. Sidney. 1t no body would deprive the King
no more than I, he would be in no danger, Un-
der favour thefe are Things not to be over ruled
in Point of Life {o eafily,

L.C. 7. Mr. Sidney, We very well underftand
our Duty, we don’c need to be wold by you what
our Duty 1s, we tell you notiing bot what 1s Law;
and if you make Objections tnac are immaterial,
we muft over-rule them, Don?tthink that we over-
rule in your Cafe that we would not over-rule in
all Mens Cafes 1n your Condition. The Treafon
is fufficiently lad.

Csl. Sidnzy. My Lord, I conceive this too, that
thole Words, that are faxd to be written in the
Paper, that there 1s nothing of Treafon in them s
Belides, that there was nothing at all proved of
them, only by fimilitude of hands, which upon
the Cafe 1 aliedge to your Lordihip was not to
be cdmitted 1 a Criminal Cafe. Now ’tis eafy
to call a thing Proditerie 3 but yet let the nature of
the things be examined, I put my felf upon it,
that there 1s no T'reafon 1n it.

L. C. 7. There s not a Lioe 1n the Book fcarce
but what 15 Treafon,

Mr. Juft. Withins, I believe you doa’t believe
1t Treafon,

L.C. 7. Thatis the worft part of your Cafe;
When Mzn are niveted in Opinion, that Kings
may be depoled, that they are accountable to their
People, thut a general Infurreftion is no Rebellion,
and juftify it, *us high time, upon my Word, to
call them to Account.

Col. Sidney. My Lord, the other Day I had a
Book, wherein I had King Fames’s Speech, up-
on which all that is there, is grounded in his
own Speech to the Parliament in 1603, and
there is nothing in thefe Papers, which is cal-
led 2 Book, though it never appeared, for if it
were true, it was only Papers found in a private
Man’s Swdy, never fhewed to any body ; and

Mr. Attorney takes this to bring it to a Crime,
111
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in order to fome othet Counfel, and this was to
come out fuch a time, when the Infurreftion brake
out. My Lord, There is one Perfon I did not
know where to find then, but cvery Bady knoivs
where to find now, that s the Duke of AMenmonth
if there had been any thing 1n Confultation, by
this means to bring any thing about; he muft
have known of it, for it muft be taken to be in
Profecution of thofe Deligns of his: Andif he
will fuv there ever was any fuch thing, or knew
any thing of ir, I will acknowledge whatever you
pleale, ' ‘

L.C. % That is over; you were Tried for
this Fact: We muft not fend for the Duke of
Nonmonth. _

 Col. Sidney. T humbly think I ought, and de-
fire to be heard upon It

L. C. ¥ Upon what?
Col. Siduey. 1f you will call 1t a Trial ~———

L.C.7. 1do. The Law calls 1t fo.

N, Faft. Withins. We muil not hear fuch Dif-
courfes, after you have been f'ricd here, and the
Fury have given their Verdict; as if you had not
Jultice done you. o

My, Faft Holoway. 1 think 1t was a very fair
Triad,

Csl. Sidney. My Lord, I defire, that you would
hear my Reafons; why 1 fhould be brought to a
new 1 ral.

L. €. F. That can’t be.

C.! Szaney. Be the Trial what it will?

Cl.ef * r. Crier, make an O yes, |

Coi aidner. Can’t I be heard, my Lord?

L.C.F. Yus, If you will fpeas that which is
propets ’uss a frange thing — You feem to appeal
as 1f you nal fome great Flardthip upon you. [
am 1re,’ [ can as wetl appeal as you, [ am fure
you had ali the Favouar fhewed you, that ever any
Prifoner had. Tae Court heard you with Patience,
wien you ipake what was propers but if you be-
gin 10 Arraign the Juilice of the Nation, it con-
cerus the Jultice o the Nation to prevent you
'We are beand by our Confciences and our Qutits
to fee Right done to you; and though we are
Judges upoa Earth, we are accountable to the Judee
of Ileaven and Earths and we a&t according 1o
our Conitiences, though we don’t act according to
your Opinion.

Csf. Sidney. My Lord, Ifay, 1In the firlt place
I was brought to Weftminfter by Habeas Corpus, the
7ith of this ~:onth, granted the Day before I was
to be Arraigned, waen yet ne Bill was exhibited
againft me; and my Profecutors could not know
it would be foand, unlefs they had a Correfpon-
dence with the Grand Jury, which under Favour
ought not to have been had.

L.C.}. Weknow nothing of it: You had as
good tell us of fome body’s Ghoft; as you did at
the Tral,

Cel. Sidney. I told you of two infamous Perfons
that had acted my Lord Rujfel’s Ghoft.

L. C. ¥. Goon, 1t you have any thing elfe.

Col. Siiney. I prayed a Copy of the Indiétment,
making my Objections againft It, and putting ina
fpecial ©lea, which the Law; I humbly conceive,
aliowed me: 'T'he help of Counfel to frame it was
denied.

L.C.¥. For the Copy of the IndiCtment, it
was deilled 1n the Cafe you cited. This Favour
fhewed you to-day was denied at any time to
Sir Henry Vane, that 1s, to have the IndiGtment
read in Latin, Don’t fay on the other Side, we

- for High-"Treafon.
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refufed your Plea; I told you, have i care of put-
ting itin, If the Plea was fuch as Mr, Attorney
did demur toit: I told you, you were anfwerabie
for the Confequences of it.

Mr. Juft. Withins. We told you, you might
P_lllt it m, but you muft put it in at your Pe-
ril.

_ Cdl. Sidney. My Lord; I would have pur it
in,

L. C. 7. T did advertife you: If you put in a
Plea, upon you Peril be it. I told you, We are
bound by Law to give you that fair Advertifement
of the great Danger yoa would fall under, if it
were not 2 good Plea,

Col. Sidiey. My Lord, my Plea was that could
never hurt me.

L. C. 7. We do not know that,

Col. Sidney. 1defire, my Lord, this, that it may
be confidered, That, being broaght here to my
Trial, I did defive a Copy of my Indictment, up-
on the Statute of 46 Edw. 3. which does allow it
to all Men in all Cafes.

L.C F. I tell you the Law is otherwife, and
told you fo then, and t:l} yo 110 now,

Cal, Sidugy. Your Lordthip did not tell me,
That was not a Law, |

L. C. 7. Unlefs there be a Law particular for
Col. Sidngy, If you have any more to fay ——

Col. Sianey, 1 am probably informed, and, if
your Lordihip will give me time, fhall be able to
prove it, That the Jury was not fummoned, as it
ought to be; My Lord, if this Jury was not fum-
moned by the Bailiff, according to the ordinary
way, but they were agreed upon by the Under-
neritls, Grabam and Burten, 1 defire to know
whether that be a good Jury,

L.C. 7. We can take notice of nothing, but
what 1> upon the Record : Here is a Return by the
Sheriify 1t there had been any indire® means ued
with the Sherttf, or any elfe, you fhould have
mentioned it before they were fwvorn,

Col, Sianey. Is there any thing in the World
more irregular than that ?

{{_.. C. 7. 1 know nothing of it. That time is
palt. .

Cel. Sidiey. Now, my Lord, all Men are ad-
mitted on the Jury, R

L. C. 7. Wiy, You did not like Gentlemen,
and now you don’t like thofe that you had, In
pln Euglifh, it any Jury had found you Guilty it
had been the fame thing. It had been & good
Summons, 1f they had acquitted you.

Col. Sidicy. When the Jury thus compofed, was
{worn, four Witnefles, of whom three were un-
der the Terror of Death for Treafons, were pro-
duc’d again{t me. And they confeffed themfelves
guilty of Crimes of which I had no Knowledge,
and told Stories by hear-fay., And your Lord-
fhip did promife in fumming up the Evidence,
that the Jury thould be informed what did reach
me, and what not, and I don’t remember that was
done.

L. C. ¥. Idid it particularly, I think I was as
careful of it as poffibly I could be.

Col. Sidney. My Lord Howard being the only
Witnefs, that faid any thing againft me, Papers,
which were faid to be found in my Houfe, were
produced as another Witnefs; and no other Tefti-
morny given concerning them, but that the Hand
was like unto mine. No Man can fay, I read
them, or fhewed them to any Man. None
knew when they were written; The Ink fhewed

they
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they had beea done many, and perhaps 20 or 30

Years. Yea, fome Pafliges were read out of them,
without examining what went before and after,
when I defired the whole might be read, it was
refufed, unlefs I fpecified the Paffage, which I
could not do, knowing not one Word -in them,
When I alledged, that 1n Criminal Cales Simili-
tude of Hands could not be taken for Evidence,
propofed my Points of Law concerning Conftruc-
tive Treafon, &7¢. And I did conceive that no Court
under the Parliament could be Judges of 1t, and
did delire the Statute, which did fo enact it, might
be read, 1t could not be obtained: And I cited
many Judgments in Parliament.

L.C.F. Mr. Siduey, If you arraign the Juftice
of the Nation {o, as tho’ we had denied you the
Methods of Juftice, I muft tell you, you do what
doces not become you, for we denied you nothing
that ought to have been granted. If we had grant-
ed you lefs, I think we had done more our Duty.
‘What Points of Law do you mean ?

Col. Sidney. That of Conftruétive Treafon, my
Lord.

L.C. 7. We do not go upon Conftruttive
T'reafon, °us plain Treafon within 25 Eaw. 3.

Col. Siduey. Is Writing an Act s

L.C. 7. Yes, ’us agere,

Proclamation made for Silence.

My, Bamfield, Sir, 1 pray you to hear me one
Word as Amicus Curic, 1 humbly fuppofe that
your Lordfhip will not give Judgment if there be
a material Defe&t in the Indi@ment, as the Clerk
did read it, he left out Defenfor jides, which is part
of the Stile of His Majelty.

L.C. ¥. We have heard of it already, we
thank you for your Friendihip, and are fatisfied.
Mr. Siduey, there remains nothing for the Court,
but to difcharge their Duty, in pronouncing that
Judgment the Law requires to be pronounced
againft all Perfons Convicted of High-Treafon s
and I muft tell you, that tho’ you feem to ar-
raign the Joftice of the Court, and the Procecd-
in

gt‘al. Sidugy. I muft appeal to God and the
‘World, I am not heard.

L. C 7. Appeal to whom you will. I could
wifh with all my Heart, inftead of Appealing to
the World, as tho’ you had received fomething
extreme hard in your Cafe, that you would ap-
peal to the Great God of Heaven, and confider
the Guilt you have contratted by the great Of-
fence you have committed. I wifh with all my
Heart, you would confider your Condition, but
if your own Ingenuity will not provoke you, no-
thing, I can fay, will prevail with you to do it
if the King’s General Pardon, in which you had
fo great a fhare of the King’s Mercy, will not,
I could wifh, that, asa Gentleman and as a Chri-
ftian, you would confider, under what particular
Obligations you lie to that Gracious King, that
hath done fo much for you. I fhould have thought
it would have wrought in you fuch a Temper of
Mind, as to have turned the reft of your Life in-
to a generous Acknowledgment of his Bounty and
Mercy, and not into a State of conftant Combin-
ing and Writing, not only to deftroy Him, but
to fubvert the Government; and I am forry to ice
you fo carneft in the Juftification of the Book, in
which there is fcarce a Line, but what contains

the rankeft Treafon, fuch as Depofing the King:

It not only encourages, but juftifies all Rebellion;
Mr. Sianey, you arc a Gentleman of Quality, and
necd no Counfel from me: If I could give you
any, my Charity to your Immortal Soul would
provoke me to it. I pray God feafon this Afflic-
tion to you. There remains nothing with the
Court, but to pronounce that Judgment that is
expelted, and the Law requires, and therefore the
Judgment of the Court is,

That you be cairried heice to the Place from whence
you came, aid from thence you fhall be diazon
upon an Hurdle to the Place of Execution, where
you fhall bz Daiged by the Neck, aid, being
alive, cut dowon, your Privy-RMembers fboll be
cut off, and buirised before your Face, your Head
fevered froi your Body, and vour Body divided
fitfo fewi Quayicrs, and they to be difpofed at the
LPleafuie of the King.  dud the God of infiuite
Meicy beve Mleicy upon your Seul.

Col. Siduey. Then, O God! O God! [ befeech
thee to fanctify thele Sulfertngs unto me, and
impute not my Blood to the Country, nor the
City, thro® which [ am to be drawn; Let no In-
quifition be made for it, butif any, and the thed-
ding of Blocd that is innecent, muft be revenged,
Let the Weight cf 1t fall only upon thofe, tha
malicioully perfecute me for Righicoutnefs fake,

L.C. 7. 1 pray God work in you a Temper fit
to go unto the other World, for I fee you are not
fit for this,

Col, Sidney. My Lord, feel my Pulfe, [bolding
ont bis Hand] and fee it Iam difordered, 1 blels
God, I never was 1n better Temper than [ am now,

Then ipe Licutenant of the Tower carried back bis
Lrifoner,

The Prifoner afterwards prefented a Petition to
the King, which fee in §tate-Trials, Vol. VIII,

P. 453.

The Execution of Algernon Sidney, Efg; on Friday
December 7, 1683,

N the 7th of December (his Majefty having

been plealed to remit ¥ all the Sentence but
Beheading) he was brought to a Scaffold erected
for that purpole on Zower-Hill, where, having de-
liver’d the following Paper to the Sheriff, his
Head was fever’d from his Body.

Men, Brethren, and Fathers; Friends, Cottintiy-
ety and Strangers,

It may be expected that I thould now fay fome
areat Mutters unto you; but the Rigour of the
Seafon, and the Infirmitics of my Age, increafed
by a clofe Imprifonment of above five Months, do
not permit me.

Moreover, we live in an Age that maketh Truth
pals for Treafon: I dare not fay any thing contrary
unto it, and the Ears of thofe that are abour me
will probably be found too tender to hear it. ly
i}"l_‘ia] and Condemnation do fufficiently evidence
tiis,

Weft, Rumfey and Keeling, who were brought
to prove tae Plot, faid no more of me, than that
they knew me not; and fome others equally un-
known unto me, had ufed my Name, and that of

fome others, to give a litile Reputation unto their
Defigns.

3 his awas becaufe of bis Family, he being Brother po the Ear!l of Leiceller,
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Defigns. The Lord Howard is too infamous by
his Life, and the many Perjuries not fo be deni-
ed, or rather fworn by himfelf, to deferye Mens:
tion; and being a fingle Witnefs would be of no
Value, tho® he had been of unblemifh’d Credit, or
had not feen and confeffed that the Crimes com-
mitted by him would be pardon’d only for com-
mitting more; and even the Pardon promifed
could not be obtain’d till the Drudgery of Swear-
Ing Was over, '

This being laid afide, the whole Matter js re-
duced to the Papers faid to be found in my Clofet
by the King’s Officers, without any other Proof
of their being written by me, than what 1s taken
from Suppofitions upon the Similitude of an Hand
that is ealily counterfeited, and which hath been
lately declared in the Lady Car’s Cafe to be no law-
ful Evidence in criminal Caules.

But if } had been feen to write them, the Mat-
ter would notbe much alter’d. They plainly ap-
pear to relate unto a large Treaufe written long
fince, in Aafwer to Fifmer’s Book, which, by all
inteliigent Men, is thought to be grounded upon
wicked Principles, equally pernicious unto Magif-
trates and People. ‘

If he might publith unto the World his Opi-
nion, that all Men are born under a Neceffity de-
yived from the Laws of God and Nature, to fub-
mit unto an abfolute Kingly Government, which
could be retrained by no Law or Oath; and that
he that hath the Power, whether he came unto 1t
by Creation, Election, Inheritance, Ulurpation,
or any other way, had the Right ; and none muit
oppote his Will, but the Perlons and Eftates of
his Subjeéts muit be indifpenfibly fubjet unto it ;
] know not why I might not have pubithed my
Opinion to the contrary, without the Breach of
any Law I have yet known,

[ might as freely as he publickly have declared
my Thoughts, and the Reafons upon which they
were grounded ; and Iam perfuaded to believe, that
God had left Nations unto the . Liberty of fet-
ting up fuch Governments as beft pleafed them-
felves.,

That Magiftrates were fet up for the Good of
‘Nations, not Nations for the Honour or Glory of
‘Magifirates.

That the Right and Power of Magiftrates in
cevery Country, was that which the Laws of that
Country made it to be.

That thole Laws were to be obferved, and the
Qaths taken by them, having tie Force of a Con-
traét beiween Magiitrates and People, could not
be violated without Danger of diffolving the whole
Fabrick.

That Ufurpation could give no Right, and the
molt dangerous of all Enemies unto Kings were
they, who, railing their Power to an exorbitant

Height, allowed unto Ufurpers all the Rights be-
longing unto I,

That fuch Uturpations being {eldom compafs’d
without the Slaughter of the reigning Perfon, or
Family, the worlt of all Villanies was thereby re-
warded with the moft glorious Privileges,

That it fuch Doftrines were received, they
wonld flir up Men to the Deftruction of Princes
with more Violence, than all the Paflions that
have hitherto raged in the Hearts of the moft un-
- ruly.

%‘hat none could be fafe, if fuch a Reward were
propofed unto any that could deftroy them.

That few would be fo gentle as to {pare even
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the beft, if by their Deftruction 2 wild Ulurper
could become God’s Anointed; and by the moft
execrable Wickedne(s inveft himfelf with that di-
vine Character. ) }

This is the Scope of the whole Treatife ; the
Writer gives fuch Reafons as at prefent did occuf
unto him, to prove it. ‘This feéms to agree with
the Dottrines of the moft reverenced Authors of
all Times, Nations and Religions. The beft and
wifelt of Kings have eyer acknowledged it. Thé
prefent King'of France hath declared that Kings
have that hippy want of Power, that they can do
nothing contrary to the Laws of their Country,
and grounds his Quarrel with the King of Spain,
Anno 1667, upon that Pripciple,  King Fames, in
his Speech to the Parlament, 4. 1603, doth
in the higheft degree affert it: ‘the Scripture feems
to declate it. It neverthelefs the Writer was mif-
taken, he might have been refuted by Law, Rea-
fon, and Scripture; and no Man, for fuch Mat-
ters, was ever otherwife punithed, than by being
made to fee his Error; and it hath rot (as I think)
been ever known that they had been referr’d to
the Judgment of a Jury, compofed of Men utter-
ly unable to comprehend them.

But there was little of this in my Cafe; the
Extravagance of my Profecutors goes higher : The
above-mention’d Treatife was never finifh’d, nor
could be in many Years, and moft probably would
never have been.  So much as is of it was written
long fince, never reviewed nor thewn unto any Man;
and the fiftieth part of it was produced, and not
the tenth of that offered to be read. That which
was never known unto thofe who are faid to have
con{pired with me, was faid to be intended to ftir
up the People in Profecution of the Defigns of
thofe Confpirators,

When nothing of particular Application unto
Time, Place, or Perfon, could be found in it (as
hath ever been done by thofe who endeavour'd to
raife Infurrections) all was fupplied by Zunnendo’s.

Whatfoever is faid of the Expulfion of Targuiis;
the Infurreftion againft Nero; the Slaughter of Ce-
ligula, or Dositian 5 the Tranflation of the Crown
of France from Mersvens’s Race unto Peping and
from his Defcendants unto Augh Capet, and the
like, applied by Junnendo unto the King.

They have not confidered, that if fuch A&s of
State be not good, there is not a King in the
World that has any Title to the Crown he bears ;
nor can have any, unlefs he could deduce his Pe.
digree from the eldeft Son of Noah, and fhew thac
the Succeflion had {till continued in the eldeft
of the eldeft Line, and been fo deduced to him,

Every one may fee what Advantage this would
be to all the Kings of the World, and whethet,
that failing, it were not better for them to ac-
knowledge they had received their Crowns by
the Confent of willing Nations; or to have no

better Title unto them than Ulurpation and Vio-

lenice, which, by the fame ways, may be taken
from them.

But I was not long fince told that I muft die, or
the Plot muft die. -

Left the Mcans of deftroying the belt Pro-
teftants in England thould fall, the Bench muft
be filled with fuch as had been Blemifhes to the
Bar. '

None but fuch as thefe would have advifed
with the King’s Counfel of the Means of briiig-
ing a Man to Death, {fuffer’d a Jury to be pack’d
by the King’s Solicitors and the under”Sheriff,

7T T adnidc
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admit of Jurymen who were not Frecliolders, re-
ceive fuch Evidence as is above-mention*d, refufe
a Copy of an Indictment, or to fuffer the Statute
of 46 Edw. 111, to be read, that doth exprefly €n-

act, it fhould in no Cafe be denied unto any Man, .

upon any Occafion whatfoever, over-rule the moft
important Pointsof Law without hearing. And
whereas the Statute 25 Edw. 3. upon which they
faid I fhould be tried, doth relerve unto the Par-
liament all Confirutions to be made in Points of
Treafon, they could affume unto themfelves not
only 2 Power to make Conftructions, but fuch
Conftructions as neither agree with Law, Reafon,
or common Senfe,

By thefe Means [ am brought to this Place.
The Lord forgive thefe Practices, and avert the
Evils that threaten the Nation from them. The
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Lord fanétfy thefe my Sufferings unto me; and
though I fall dsa Sacrifice unto Idols, fuffer not
Idolatry to be eftablithed in this Land. Blefs thy
Pecrplc ind fave them. Defend thy own Caufe
and defend thofe that defend it. Stir up fuch as
are faint, direct thofe that are willing, confirm
thofe that waver, give Wifdom and Intcgr:ty unto
All, Orderall Thmgs {fo as may moft redound unto
thine own Glory. Grant that 1 may die glorify-
ing thee for all thy Mercies, and that at the laft
thou haft permitted me to be fingled out asa Wit-
nefs of thy Truth; and even by the Confeffion of
my Oppofers, for that O/ Caufe in which I was
from my Youth engag’d, and for which thou haft
often and wonderfully declared thy felf.

His Attainder was reverfed in Parliament, the firt
of /ill.and Mary. See State Trials,Vol.viii. p.517.
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CXXIIL. The Trial of Joun HAMPDENT, [4/q; at the
King’s-Bench for ¢ High Mildemeanour, Feb. 6, 1633,

Hill. 36 Car.11.
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Efes Obn Hampden, Efg; being bronght up by
e Writ of Habeas Corpus, “from the Tower
1::f1.L—

of Lenaon on the 28th of Novenber, and
there being an Inditment preferred a-
guni’c him for Midemeanour, His Maj jefty’s At-
torney-General prayed, that he might be Arrauign-

ed upon it, which was done In this Manner.

Cl. of. Cr. John Hampden, Zon fand here Indici-
ed &y the Naime of John Hampden, lase of the Parifb
of 3¢, Giles in the Fields, i1 the County of Middle-
lex, Gent. for that you being a pernicions and fedi-
ticus Many and o Prfon of a wicked Mind, and of
an fmpieus, wnquict, and turbulent Difpsfition, and
contriving, pratiifing, and falfly, unlawfully, wynftly,
malicionfly, troulently, and feditionfly intending the
Peace of our Sovereign Lord King Charles that now
15y and the common Tranquillity of this Kingdem of
L_.ncr]aud to difquict, moleft, and difturd, and, as

iy the Counly aforefatd, with Force and Arms, &c.
fallly, unlawfully, wnjnftly, malicionfly, and feditionfly
did confult, confent, coifpire and confeerate of an In-
[urreftion within this Kingdom of England to be
madc, and of procuring and providing Ayms ard armed
Meir to be prepared in divers Places within this King-
dom of England your faie moft wicked, impions and

feditious Tntentions and Compaffings aforefaid to fulfil

and perfeff : And that you the faid John Hampden,

your moft wicked, impious, and feditions Litenlions

afcrefaid to fulfil and perfefl, and bring to effelt
afterwards, viz. the laft Drzy of June, in the 35th
Year aquﬁzzd at the Perifb aforefaid, in the Conn-
Yy aforefaid, with Force and Arms, &c. falfly, un-
lawfully, wiguftly, wickealy, malicionfly, and fecitionfly
did confult, agree, and confent tha: a certain Peyfon
to the Furers fzfarejh;:! niknowit, fhonla be fent into
Scotland 20 invite aud incte divers cvil-difpofed Sub-

iich as in you lay, Sedition within this ]Qrfgﬂ'f'?;ﬁ of jelts of our faid Lerd the King, of bis Kingdowm of

England, to dicite, fiir up, and procuie, and the
Gouermment of our ﬁzz’d Lord the King in 1his Kinp-
doin of England Zmto Danger to biing :  Aud that
you the faid John Hampden, syonr inglt impious,
wicked, and feditions Intentions aforefard to fulfil and
perfesi, and bring to effeld the laff Day of June,
in the Five cind thirtieth Year of toe Reign of our
faid Severcign Lord the King that now is; and divers
other Days and Times as well before as after, with
Foree, and drmsy &c. At the Parifh of $1.Giles in
the Fields, i toe County of Middlefex, wnlazofully,
anjufilyy walicionfly, and ﬁ:f’u‘:az ol did aflemble youir-
[elf, meet, confuliy confpive, and confederate with di-

VerS Vil ifpofed Subjecis cy” our faid Lord the King
to the Furors unknewon, and with the faid Perfons
did treat concorning your fatd mgft wicked and feditions
Compaffings, Luiaginations, and Purpofes aforefaid, to
be exccuted, frr ﬁ%d and brought 1o effedt 5 and ﬁﬁ"
ther that yeu toe faid John Hampden, youi moft
wicked, dinpions, and feditions Contrrvances, Prafiices
and Tntentions afeicfoid to fulfl, perfell, and reduce Lo
effcit, thein and 1he i viz. the laft Day of June i
the 35th Lear aforefaid, and dvvers other Days and
Thiiesyas well befsis as rﬂf: at the Parifh aforefaid,

+ Burnet's Hiftory of his Own Times, Vol. L p. 575.

Scotland, 2o come iuto this Kingdew of bngland to

advife and conf: ult with you the faid ]ohn Hampden,
and others toe afor q[ id evil-difpofed Sudjells of our

Jaid Lord the King in this Aingdem of Lagland co-

cerning Aid aid Affifiance to e peéied and Jupplied ont
of the faid Kingdom of Scotiand, your faid gt wicked,
impions, and fediticus Liteaticiss aid Coingalfings a-
forefaid to fulfl, effeld, and promute, inmaiuifeft Coi-
bempt of the Laws of this Kingdem of England, tothe
evil and maft pernicious Example of cll 6:oers in the
like Cafe offending, cnd againf} the Peace of aur jaid
Sovereign Lord the King, bis Crown and Diguity.
Cl. of Cr. How fay’ft thou, Ari thou Guilty of
this High Mildemeanour whereof thou ftandeft in-
dicted, and haft been now rarraigned, or not Guilty ?
Adir. Hampden. Not Guilty.
Upon which Plea fifue was joinzd betzoeen 1iis
Majelly’s dttorney-General, cir bedaif of the
King and Defendent, and Bail was theu taken
jor the Defencant’s Appearaiice the next Tei .

F Illary Term g5 and 36 Car. 247 Reg,  Inthe
. & Beginning of the Term, Sir Thomas Fenuer,
Knight, His Muyjefty’s Scrjeant at Law, and Re-
corder
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corder of the City of London, moved for a Trial at
the Bar, in the Cafe between the King and M.
Hampden, which was by the Court appointed to be
on WWednefday the 6th of Februaryin the lame Term,
when the Court proceeded to the Trial as follows.

Cl. of Cr. Call the Defendant Fobn Hampden,

My, Williams. He appcars.

Clof Cr. Gardez wvotres Challenges.  Call Sir
Clurles Gerard.

Crier. You fhall well and truly try the Iffue be-
teoecis oty Sovereign Lord the King and John Hamp-
den, Geat, and a true Verdifl give according to your
Lwidence, So help you God.

Sir Charles Gererd, Jur’

Clof Cr.

Rager Feunings, Liq; Jur.
Henry Hodges, Biqs Jur’
Fofbrta Galliard, Lo,

M, Witliams. We challenge him for the De-
fendant,

o L.C. 7. What 1s your Caufe of
Lo bore Chatlenge ?

Jejeries, xoo Sprme :
Alr. Fifdems. 1t your Lordihip

pleafe to let him go througa the Pannel, we will

fhew Cauie if toere be notenongh left without him.

L. C. . No, ihaw your Caufe now, it being a-

*

eatft the Kimg.

A B lbans. He has an Fmployment under the
King, he has an Office in the Forett, and that we
fav 15 our Caufe of Challenge.

L. C. %. What then 1f he have ?

Mr. Williams. My Lord, we fuppofe then he is
not an indificreni Perfon to try this Caule,

L.C. F. Ay, let me hear that now proved and
defended by any Gentleman of the long Robe,
that that is a good Caule of Challenge. Shew
me what Law ticre is for It

Ay, Williams. To be of the King’s Robe, or
Pay, or Salary, 1san Exception in any Cafe where-
in the King is concerned.

L.C.¥. Shew me any Law for that if you can,
Mr, Willizms, T know you are a Lawyer.

Mr. Wsilp. Tt 1s the Opinion of my Lord Coke
1 his fofisatesy thar 1t s @ geod Caule ot Cil-
jenge.,

L.C. 7. Bit there 1s the Opinion of all the
Todzes in Feary tae Sixth’s Time agamil i,

M. Fatlep. 1t1s, my Lord, fel. 150.

L.C. 7 Bat | cancite you three or four Bouks,
and you have them all ogether i Rol’s Abridg-
ment, Tide Challezre, wiere he fets down four
Books one after anether, thae it 1s no Caule of
Challenge, even to be the lung’s Tenant, and there
15 2 great deal of Reafon forat, For if thar were
1 good Caufe of Challenge, mark the Conlequence,
then all Perfons that hoid Lands in Zuglend hold
thern mediately or immediately of e King, and
o the King could have no Ireeholders to be Jury-
men 1n his Cavle,

ANz, I7illioms, This is a more {pecial Caufe of
Challenge than that.

L. C.F. 'What can be greater than that of be-
ing the King’s Tenant ? o

cp Mr. dit. Gen. Elpecially when all
Coreser the Land of £uglend was held of the

Crown, as originally 1t was,

A . Trevor, My Lord in 2d Rolls 6.46.9it Trials,
There is the exprefs Opinion of my Lord Refls, that
to be of the Livery, or a menial Servant of the
Crown, isa good Caufe of Challenge.

L. C. ¥. And ook you but in the fitft Cafe In
the firit Parc of the Abridgment, Tule Challenges,

YoL. Il

where he mentions three or four Books to the
fame Purpofe, and ’tis quite otherwile, . ..

Mr. Williams, My Lord, in that of Arft Rolls,
he only cizes fome Books, but the other is his own
Opinton, -

L.C. 7. Well, make out your Factif you have
a mind to it ; but it is well known, that neither
Mr. Serjeant Rolls, nor my Lord Coke, when he
delivered that Opinion, are to be reckoned fucl
Authorities 1n Crown-matters.

Mr. Williams. We will ask him, my Lord, if
you pleafe, I {uppofe he will not deny it.

L. C. 7. No, make out your Faét if you will
have any Benefit by it, *tisonly a Challenge to the
Favour which ought not to be in the King’, Cule.
I am very glad that we are now to debate this
Matter with Men of the Robe, becaufe we have
had a ftrange fort of Notions andReflections fpread
abroad of late, as tho” the Judges now-a-days gave
{trange fert of Opinions, and as tho’ Perfons taat
had been Blemithesat the Bar, were preferred to do
firange Things wien they came upon the Bench ;
but truly I wonder to hear chat ic fhould be a
Doubr, when at the fame Time that which we gave
as our Opinion about one particular Challerge,
that is as to Frechelders, 1t was the Judgment ot all
the Judges, that that wasno Challenge, and all che
Countel that were concerned in that Cafe know it
was the Opinion of ali the Judges., Bat now if we
meee with Lawyers, [ fhuil be glad to have the
Matter fairly argued and debated, and pray thew
me what Law or Realon is {or 1.

Mr. Waiep. Certainly, my Lord, there isa
areat Diffcrence betwixt the general Aliegiance
of all Men, and fo of a general Tenure, and the
Dependence of any particular Perfon who is a
mental Servaiit and recetves Wages of the King,

L. C. f. T woukl defire to know of you, fvr,
Iallsp, which Is the greater Chuilenge, to fay
fuch a one is a T'emant, or iuch a one Is immediate
Servant to 7, §.

My I7ulsp. Taere 18 a great Differznce, my
Lord, I tank, Leoveen an immectate Tenant,
and tue general Tenure of all Sabjedts,

L. C. f. Buc cermunly the Law 1s thus, if he

vere an ammechate or 4 med.ate Tenant toany but

the King, if his Lord were Party to the Suir, it
would be a goed Challenge, but the being Te-
nant to the King 1s no good Challenge in the
King’s Cafe.

My, Wiliiams, Ny Lord, T take it, the A of
Parliament that wakes away the Court of Wards
and Liveries hath altered the Law as to that Mat-
ter of Tenure 5 for now we hold in Sueage, and
that other Tenure is deftroyed that was between
the King and his Subjedts.

L. C. J. But pray how comes it to be a Chal-
lenge now that was not one before? Does that At
of Parliament make it a good Caufe of Challenge?
If 1t does, fhew it, I el you the old Books are
agamlt it, '

Mr. Williams, 1 fpeak, my Lord, to the Te
nure, that that is nothing at all now to be ob-

jeéted, becaufe ail is now in Socage.

L. C. ¥ 1 would not have Mr. Attorney mnfilt
upon a Juryman, but vet withal [ would not have
it goneaway with as Law, thatitisa good Caule
cf Challenge.

Air. Weilsp. My Lord, we finding in fome Cafes
that are mn our Books, that 1t 1s held to be a good
Caufe of Challengs, lay 1t before the Court.

My, A:1.Gen. Flow many hundred Errors do you

5 N find
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find in my Lord Coke, notwithftanding all his

Learning ?

L.C.%.1 fay, if I was Mr. Attorney, I would not
conteft for any particular Man to be a Juryman, I
fpeak that as my Advice, but I would not have
it taken for Law, nor would 1 have it broached
abrozd, that tho’ the Judges now were of one O-
pinion, yet the Law truly was cf another.

M. Foues, If all that receive Salary, or Wages
from the King, are not tobe Jurymenin the King’s
Caufes, then all the Deputy Lieutenants and M-
litia Officers, which generally are the moft {ub-
ftantially Freeholders, are excluded from being
Jurymen.

Mr. Fufp, Withins. Who will fay fo, Mr. Fones?
No Lawyer in England furely will fay fo.

My, Williams. Offices where there 1s no Profit,
will not be the fame Exception.

Mr. Att. Geir. But he is no menial Servant of
the King’s,

My, [Villiawms. What is he then ?

M. IVallop. We hear that he is Keeper of one
of the King’s Forefts, and has a Fee for it.

Mr. Williaas, Well, we will ask him upon
Voyei dire,

Mr. Att. Gen. My Lord, the Fact 1s quite other-
wife, and [ defire they may make wont.

L. C.§. Truly, I think *tis not tansi to infift
upon any particular Man, butl find we arein an
Age that 15 fo fall of Cavils, that 1f we act but ac-
cording to the Precedents that went beforeus, we
are thought to a& as Originals, and to make new
I aws, when we only follow the Rules that we have
received from our Predeceflors.  And I fay there
was no fuch Challenge at Comimon Law, that ever
{ read of in any of our Books, nor is irany Chal-
lenge by the beft Authorities extant.

My, Fonzs. 1 defire them to fhew me any fuch
Precedent, that any Man was challenged by one
that was tried at the Suit of the King, for a Chal-
lenge to the Favour, but we mutt do unprecedent-
ed Things, or ¢/.2 there will be no flusfying of
fome Men.,

o o2t Gen. T wonld fain know, what one O-
pinion in a ftraggling Book is ugainkt the Current
of all our Law?

M, IWilliasns. Which do you call a firaggling
Book, Mr. Arttorney ? My Lord Coke’s Inflitutes,
or my Lord Rol’s dbridgement 2

L.C. F. I iay the better Opinion of the Books
is on the other Side, and the greater Number too.

Mr. At Gen. Firlt of all, I do know of my
own Knowledge, he is no memal Servant.

L. C.F. Mr. Attorney, 1do debateitfor Learn-
ing fake, troly I know not the Man, nor whether
he be the King’s Servane, or not, but I fpeak a-
caint allowing the Challenge, thatif he be fet
afide, it may not be taken as a Precedent, and fo
pafs for Law that the King’s Scrvants can’t be
Jurymen. I would have you quit the Man by
Confent, but not as a Force-put, as tho’ the Law
were fo, for the Law, I think, is otherwife.

M. Att. Gen. He is none, my Lord, they mii-

take, |
L.C. ¥. Nay, I know nothing of the Man, I

tell you only what I think,

Mr. Wallop. He receives Wages, or a Fee from
the King for his Othce.

My, Fut. Withins. I would never, for my part,
while I live, nor neverdid, while [ was 2 Praltifer,
{tand upon any particulac Juryman.

My dtt.Geir Hemay bea Juryman byLaw fure.

129.The Trial of John Hampden
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L.C.%. There is no doubt of it, Mr. Atforney,

Mr. Att, Gen. My Lord, if your Lordfhips have
given your Opinion, Idefire he may ftand by.

L. C. 7. Well, Mr, Attorncy waves him, let
him ftand by.

Mr. Att. Gen. But for no Reafon that has been
offered.

L. C. ¥. No, no, I dorn’t hear any thing of
Reafon offered for it.

Cl. of Cr. Nir. Galliard, you may go down.

Thomas Harriott, Efq; Jur®
Thomas Earsby, Lig; Jur’
William Avery, LElq; Jur®
Fobn Sharp, Efq; Jur’
Richard Shoredstch,

My, Williams. We challenge him for the De-
fendant,

L C. 7. What s your Caule of Challenge 7

M. Williams. There 1s the fame Exception to
him,

L.C. % If Mr, Atorney will confent, with
all my Heart.

Mr. At Gen. No, we humour’d you in one,
we won’t humour you any more,

M. Williams. Nay, here is fomething more
clear for us, he 15 a Serjeant at Arms attending
his Majefty.

Mr. Fuff, Fithins. You know our Cpinions al-
ready, Mr. Willicms, unlefs Mr. Attorney con-
fent, we can’t do it.

Mr. Williams, Weonly acquaint Mr. Attorney
with it, we muft {ubmit to your Rule, heis cer-
tainly Serjeant at Arms, he came in the Place of
Derebam that let my Lord Grey efcape.

Mr. Att. Gen. Pray prove it, I don’t know it
for my Share.

Mr. Williams, Wil you ask him the Queftion?

Mr, Ait. Gein. Pray prove 11, Are wetogra-
tify your Client ? Pray lec him better inftruct his
Counfel.

L.C. #. If Mr. Attorney confentnot, then he
muft be fivorn.

Mr. Art. Gen. 1f there be enough without him
that do appear, let him ftand by.

Cl. of Cr. Stand down, M. Skereditch.

Clarles Good, Elgy Jur’

Mr. Att. Gen. 'That 1t may appear how fair
Things were carried, they would not flrilke out
one of thefe Men when they came before the Pro-
thonotory, as they might have done.

Mr. Faft. Withins. Truly that was not well
done, to trouble the Court when you might make

your Exceptions there.

Mr. Williams. We did not know 1t then, now
we do, we offer it to the Court.
Cl, of Cr.
Samuel Roufe, Efq; Jur’
Hugh Sguire, Elq; Jur’
Nebemiah Arnold, Elgs Jur?
Fobu Bifeild, Efg; Jur’
Then the Fury were number’d, and the Twilve

fawarn were thefe.

Sir Charles Gerard, Bar.”
Roger Fennings, BElq;
Henry Hodges, Elqs
Thomas Harriott, Elq; ;
Thomas Earsby, Efg; | { Neh. Ariold, Eigs
Willian dvery, Elq;  Jobu Bifcild, Ilq;

Cl. of Cr. Gentlemen of the Jurv, You that are
{fworn, hearken to your Charge. The Defendint

Fobn Hampden ftands indited by the Name of

Feon

( Fobn Sharp, Elgs

Charles Geod, Elgs
Samuzl Roufe, biqs
Hugh Squire, Elogs

7 Jur’ <
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Yobn Hasmpden, of the Parith of St. Giles in the
Tields, in the County of Middlefex, Gent. (Prout
:n the Indi&tment, mtatis mutandis)—— To this
Indiétment he has pleaded not Guilty, and for his
Trial puts himfelf upon the Country, and the
King’s Attorney General likewife, which Coun-
try you are; your Charge is to enquire whether
the Defendant be guilty of the great Mifdemea-
nour whereof he ftands indi¢ted, or not guilty;
if you find him guilty, you are to fay fo; and if
you-find him not guilty, you are to fay fo, and
no more ; and hear your Evidence.

Their Proclamation was made for Evidence in

ifital Form.

M. Hollsway. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and

Gentlemen, you that are fworn, I am of Counfel
for the King upon this Indi¢tment. Gentlemen,
the Indiétment fets forth, that the Defendant be-
ing a {editious, malicious, evil-difpofed Perfon,
and feditioufly and malicioufly intending to dilturb
the Peace of the Kingdom, the laft Day of Fuie,
in the 35th Year of his now Majefty’s Reign, and
divers other Days and Times, at the Parith of
St. Giles in the Fields, in your County, did un-
lawfully affemble, and confederate himfelf with
divers evil-difpofed Perfons, Subjets of our Lord
the King, and then and there, with thofe other
Perfons did falfly, malicionfly, and feditioufly
confult and confpire to make an Infurrection in the
Kingdom of England, and to provide Arms and
armed Men in divers Places of the faid Kingdom.
And the better to compleat his evil Intentions,
the faid laft Day of Fuue, did confult and agree
to fend certain Perfons, to the Jurors unknown,
into Scotland, to invite feveral evil-difpofed Per-
fons there to join 1n this Conipiracy. This 1s the
Subftance of the Charge, and to this he fays,
he is not guilty ; if we prove him fo, wedo not
queftion but you will find 1.
. M. Art. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordhip, and
you Gentlemen of this Jury, Mr, Hampdei ftands
indicted of an high Mi{demeanour, for confpiring
with feveral others, to raife Rebellion within the
Kingdom, and to crave the Affiftance of the
Brotherhood of Scotland.  Upon the Face of the
Indictment, Gentlemen, it appears to be a very
high Crime, and the Matter of this indeed has
been formerly in Examination in other Trials,
and yet the Party, you may obferve, do not ac-
quiefce in thofe Trials, but think the Perfons ac-
cufed lay under very great Hardihips, and that
to 2 very great Degree, as not having the Ad-
vantage of Counfel, nor to have their Witneffes
examined upon Qath; and therefore, Gentlemen,
the King is pleafed to go lefs in this Cafe than in
the others, That this Gentleman, who is now be-
fore the Court, may clear his Innocence, if he
has any Witnefles to doit.  And if there be any
Advantage that the having of Counfel can contri-
bute to his Caufe he has that allowed him too.

The Courfe of our Evidence, Gentlemen, will
be this.

We thall prove to you that Mr. Hampden, with
five other Perfons, (I {hall name them) the Duke
of Monimouth, my Lord Ruffel, Mr. Siduey, my
Lord of Effex, and my Lord Heward, they met
feveral times, (the Particulars we {hall give you
an Accountof) one was at Mr, Hempder’s Houfe,
another was at my Lord Ruffel’s, where they did
contrive together, and took upon them to be a
Junéto, or a Council of Six, collefted out of the

wifelt Men of the Kingdom, to confider how they
Vor. lL
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might better the Affairs of the Natioh, and how
they might make a Stir: For they thougiit there
was no way poilible otherwife of doing it, but by
their joint Councils to carry on a Rifing, And
that they might do it the better, they refolved to
crave the Affiftance of Scotland.  Gentlemen, we
fhall give you an Account of their Confultsand De-
bates, and fhall thew you, that at length they came
to 2 Refolution, that the Rifing was to be carried
on jointly in Londsit, and the feveral Partsof the
Kingdom, in {everal Countries at once. Then
they came to think, and confider whether it were
not beft to fend into Scotland, to draw them
in too. And thereupon it was agreed by this
Junéto, that they would fend thither, and the Ma-
nagement of it was committed to Mr. Siduey, to
fend fome fit Perfon into Scot/and, to treat with
the Male-Contents there; and the better to carry
on this joint Defign, fome of them were to come
up to Londen.  And they were 1o have a Pretence
to treat about going to Carolina, and the pur-
chafing fome Shares in the Plantation there, of.
which my Lord Shaftsbary was a chief Governour.
We fhall prove to you, Gentlemen, befides all
that I have opened, that the Perfon to whom that
Truft was committed, Mr. Sidiey, according to
the Duty that he had taken upon him, does em-
ploy one Aaron Smith, which all that know him, do
know him to be a fit Engine for fuch Counfellors,
and a fit Infirument for fuch a Confpiracy. We
fhall prove he actually was in Scotland, and that
he went into Scotland upon this Errand. And
then we fhall prove that thofe Gentlemen that
were fent to, and were the Perfons named in
their Confults to be treated with, came here foon
after to Town, and as foon as ever this Plot was
difcovered, they fled and abfconded themfelves,
Gentlemen, it we fhall prove all this Matter to
you, I think it will be without any Quettion clear,
that this Gentleman is notorioufly guilty of this
High Mildemeanour, And indeed, if you obferve
it, one of the Perfons has given Judgment againft
himfelf, the Earl of Zffex. But the Party have
been fo diligent and officious as to fling that upon
the Government ; but that Matter we fhall have
before the Court 1n Judgment to-morrow. For
two of the others they have received the Judg.
ment of the Law 3 for two more of them the King;
has been pleafed to take them into his Mercy ; the
one is my Lord Howard, who is fammon’d to ap-
pear here to day; the other is the Duke of Aox-
mouth, who has confefled all this Matter, and has
taken his Pardon, and we have fummon®d him
alfo to be here this Day; that the World, if
they will have their Eyes opened (I mean the
difcontented World ) may fee there 1s nothing
fought, but the Peace and Quicting of the King-
dom.

Gentlemen, if we proveall this Matter to you,
I fhall be glad to hear the Defence of the Coun-
fel, and the Defence made by Witnefles upon
Qath.

My, Sol. Gen. My Lord, we will
call our Witnefles, and firlt we be- Mr. Finch.
gin with the Duke of Moumonth.

M, Ait. Gen, Call Fames Duke of Monmonth.

Crier. Fames, Duke of Monimnouth.

M. dtt. Gen, Call him again,

Crier. Fames Duke of Mommonth,

L. C. 7. Was he ferved with a Subrang 2

Ay, Att. Gen. My Lord, we will prove we have
{erved him 1n all Places where he was like to b

5N 2 niet
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met with ; that we left Subpana’s with his Servants,
who promifed to deliver them to him,

L. C. F. Prove 1t.

Mr. A.t.Gen. WhereisMr, Atterbury? Swearhim.
[FVtich was done.] Pray will you give the Court an
Account, whether you did ferve the Duke of AZon-
mouth with any Sebpera ¢ In what Places you were
to ferve him, and who you left it with ?

My, Atterbury. My Lord, on Friday laft was
Seven-night, I was commanded by Mr. Artoracy-
General, o carry a Swdpena to ferve upon the
Duke of Mommonth, and to go to his Houfe at
Moor-Park, where it was generally difcourfed he
was. Idid go and take a Subpana from Mr, Bu-
ton, by Mr. Attorney’s Order, and went to the
Duke’s Houfe at Aoor-Park.  When I came
there, the outward Gate was locked, and 1 went
to an Houfe where the Keys are kept, and having
oot the Keys, I went down to the Houle, and 1
faw there one of his Servants fothering of Cat-
tle; and coming up to him, I asked him if the
Duke of Menmoenth was m the Houle, He told
me, he could not well tell, whether he was or
not, but he thought he was gone to London, for
he faw the Calafh, and five or fix Horiemen with
it, and they faid in the Houfe, that it was the
Duke that was gone to London, I asked if there
were any Servants that were nearer to his Grace
in the Houfe, that I might fpeak with; they faid,
Yes, there was the Houfe-keeper or Steward, one
Mr. Rawkins, that attended upon the Duke, 1
defired to fpeak with him, and he came out to me;
I asked him if the Duke was there? He feemed
to be unwilling to give me an Anfwer, [ asked
him the fecond Time; but he did not fay he was,
or he wasnot. I told him then, Ihad a Subpana,
which I brought with me by Mr, Attoiney General’s
Order, to ferve upon his Grace, which was to
require him to attend here this Day, to teftify
his Knowledge, 1n a Cafe between the King and
Mr. Hampden. He told me, Sir, faid he, give
me your Subpena, and I will take care the Duke
fhall have it. Hc took it of me, and I came back
to London prefently. As foon as I came to
Town, 1 had afecond Sudgena given me to ferve
upon his Grace, with which | went to the Duke’s
Houle at the Cockpiz. When I came there, I
fpake with the Porter, I think his Name is Fobu-
fon (but the Porter he 15, and I remember him a
Servant there many Years.) I asked him, if
the Duke were there ? He told me he did not
lodge there, I told him I had a Subpena to ferve
upon his Grace to appear as this Day, the fame
as L faid at Moor-Park,  Says he, Mr. Aiterbury,
I will take care the Duke have it to Night, or
to morrow Morning early.

L. C. F. When was this ?

Mr, Atterbury. It was of the fame Day, Friday
was feven-mght laft, I was told afierwards by
one that | met with, that the Duke did lodoe at
Mr. Row’s Houfe, who s a Servant to the Duke,
one of his Gentiemen. He lives in the Pall-Mall,
’tis erther his Houfe or his Lodging, but they
call 1t tus Houfe. 1 had a third Subpene given
me to the fame Effeét, And when I came there,
I asked for the Duke, and a Woman came to
the Door, Mrs. Manley (I think they call her) fhe
feemed to make little Anfwer to what I faid, Said
1, Pray will you give this Subpana to the Duke, or
to Mr. Rew to give it the Duke, She took it of me,
and.faid, fhe would give it Mr. Row certainly to
give to the Duke, And Yefterday, or the Day be-
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fore, I met Mr, Row at Whitehall, and fays he
to me,” Mr. A'terbury, you brought a Subrena wo
my Houfe a lictle whileago.  Yes, Sir, faid I, I
did, had youit? Yes I had the Subpana, fays pe,
Then fays {, I hope you gave the Duke ic? To
that he made me no Anfwer, but nodded hig
Head, and {miled, and went away,

L C. 7. Now call his Grace again.

Crier. Fames Daike of Monmonth.

[But b: did not appear.]

Mr., Att, Gen, Call William Lord Hawﬁra.*[}f/'ua
was i the Conrt.]  Pray twear my Lord Hosward.

(W hich was done,

My. A1, Gen. My Lord Howaid, Pray will you
be plealed 1o give the Court and the Jury an Ac-
count what you know of any Meetii g by the Gen-
tleman that 5 now acculed, and the Duke of /-
mowb, my Lord Rufl:l, youriel and others, and
when; Tell what you hnow,

Lord Howard iy Lord, in Femmary laft was
Twelve-month, about the midit o1 Fazmary I was
called out by Coionel Sidiey, beng then in my
Lodgings in Sabamptonfivees, and carried by
him to \'r, Hampden’s Howe, 1 do not know what
they call the Street, but the fime Side of the Way
with the hne Houle that is in Bloomsbuiy —————o

My, Jowes. By my Lord diomtague’s Houle that
now 1Is, you mean ?

Lord Heward. Yes, of the fame fide of the way.
When I came there, there was my I ord Ruffel,
and the Duke of Aoninorrh, Colonel §. dicy ard I
went together, Mr. Hampaen was then in the
Koom where they were,  Afterwards came in my
Lord of Effex, this made up Six. When they
were there, we fell into D.lcouries —

Nir. Att, Gen. Pray, my Lord, betore you come
to tell the particular Diicourfes, g.ve an Account
how, and upon what Grounds you came 10 have
this Junéto ot Six ?

L. C. 7. If you pleafe, my Lord, Pray give an
Account of the Prelminary Patlages,

Lord Howward, My Lord, afier the Difappoint-
ment given to an Undertaking that was begun by
my Lord §hafisbuiv, which was in Offov.r or No-
vembei before, in November he died.  Atter that,
truly T cannot fay, but that Cclonel Sidny and
mylelf might be, and were te two firit that did
give the Rufe to it, For being in Difcour., we
fard 1t was abfolutely neceffary that there fhould
be fome Council ecrefted to give fome Steadinefs
to the Motions

L. C. 7. My Lord, I'would not willingly in-
terrupt you. But you feem to fpeak of a Difap-
pointment given to an Undertaking by my Lord
Shaftsbuiy.  Pray what was that Undertaking ?

Lerd Howard. Your Lordihip has heard of that
before, and know it very well,

L. C. . Though we know 1t, the Jury do not.
They bave not heard it Judicially at leaft,

Lord Howerd. Becaufe it has been in the print-
ed Booss, every body I fuppofe knows it.

L. C. F. But that they cannot judicially take
notice of.

Lord Howard, Thatis fomething a long Hif-
tory, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Though i1t be, we muft hear it.

My, A1t Gen. Pray make 1t as fhort as you can,
my Lord.

Lord Howard. So much as I can give account
of 1s this. It was about the Day after Michaels
Day that I came to my own Houfe having been

befere in Effex, and that I think was Sa.arday.
The
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The Monday following Captain Walcot came to
me and dined with me, and after Dinner told
me, my Lord of Shaftstury had left his Houle,
and had betaken himielt to a private Lodgirg,
and had hid himfelf {rem the reft of his Friends;
but had a great Kindrefs for me, (which Kind-
nefs truly 1 wifh he had fpared) and defired to
fve me, I took time to confider of it3 but I bid
him go back to my Lord Skaftsbury, and tell him,
if he had any thing of an exiraordnary Natuye to
acquunt me with, 1 would come and affift him all
I could. He came the next Day again, and {hewed
me to my Lord Shaftsbury’s Lodging: He Jodg-
ed then at one Waifen’s Houw, a Citzen, I
)now not what Sireet they call 1t; but 1t was in
a little Street down by /Peodfireet. And when I
came to him, I found my Lord Shaftsbury very
much differing from what he ufed to be, which
was more cautious ; and prefently he lell to tell
me, that he was {oreed to withdraw himielt from
his own Houle, for fear of being attacked again
by Sham-Charges and Plots, and fali. Evideice,
as he had before : For now he fud, H:iav tiey
had the Poffefiion of all Juries, by havi: g thole
Sheriffs which were 1mpofed upon the City, as
he faid, and he could not thirk his own Lite or
any Man’s Life fafe ; for to be accufed was fuf-
ficient to bring his Life into very great Danger,
and for that Reafon he had withdrawn himielf o
that private Retirement; and being there he was
refolved to make fome fpeedy Puth, for recover-
ing of the Liberties of Eugland, that there was
Preparation made in the City of leveral Thoufands
of Men, that were all in readinefs o rife, and
that for his Part, he was refolved to be {et on
Horftback ; for get on Horfeback he could
not 3 and that there were great numbers that were
ready, when he did but nold up his Finger, to
be drawn together at any time: That divers had
been drawn out of the Country to join wich them
by infenfible Parties of Horie, 1 think he na-
med about Fourfcore or an Hindred. Which
fince I found were to be neaded by Colonel Ruin-
fey, upon the Duy of making and declaring the
Sneriffs; -but finding there was nothing done, he
withdrew himfelf and his Man chicher 3 but there
was fuch a general Preparation m the City; that
if fome Lords did not unhandfomly defert them
they thould be in readmefs for Altion quickly.
I asked him who he meant. He told me, the
Duke of Msmmouib and my Lord Ruffel had very
unhandfomly deferted him; for they had pro-
mifed and undertaken to be in readinefs with Men
out of feveral Countries in which they had an In-
tereft, he named Seomerfeifbive, Devonfbire, and
Chefbire, I think, and that my Lord Giey fhould be
difpofed of inio Effex to do the fame there, and
if they had held on this Refolution, it had been
fuch a fure Game, that 1t could not have failed :
Bat fays he, they are ftarted, and fay they can-
not be in a readinefs to do 1. My Lord, I ve-
ry much wonder that thofe Perfons you named
fhould engage in any Delign, and fail of perform-
ing what they promifed! Says he, I'll affure you
tis fo. And fo he proceeded to fpeak feveral
fharp Things of the Duke of Adommonth, upon
the account of his Ambition, that he thought to
have all under his Command : Which was a fe-
cret lurking Ambition in him, that he faid, he
always fufpected the Duke to be guilty of. And
now he found Lis Sufpicions true. That unlefs
he might command all, he would do nothing.
But for his part, fince he found the Matter lo,
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he was refolved to go on alone, rather than fail
m his Defign. Said I, my Lerd, I fhould be
very forward to concur with you in any thing ;
but I wonder your Lordfhip fhould ftep into an
Acétion of fuch Danger, thus divided from thofe
that are moit likely to affilt you init. I cannot
help 1t, faid he, I have left my Houle, and mult
go on. My Lord, faid I, pray give me leave
o go to the Duke of Monmonth, and expoltulate
the Matter with him, and I will come and give
you an Account again. Says he, ’us to no pur-
pofe, I dare fay. Said I, my Lord, pray let me
po and try, for I would not have you di-
vided, but i will promife you this, I will not
tell him | came from you, but as from my felf
difcourfe it with the Duake, Well, faid he, if
you will you may. This was upon Tuefduy, I
think th 34 of Oéfober, the 3d or 4¢b. So I went
to the Duke of Mommouly the next Day, which
was Wediefday, and finding him not at home ac
his Houie in Sobo, and being told he was at
Mbor-Pars, 1 took an occafion to go to Macr-
Peré, and I came tnere a little atter Dinner, and
took him afide, and told him all this that I now
have {poken apout my Lord Shaftsbury. Says
he, { think the Man 1s Mad, what does he mean 2
We did undertake to do this, ’os trae 3 but not
by that time he {peaksof, and thingsure not ready,
I know not what his own Fears make him do,
but he does a& fo prepofteroufly that he w.ll un-
do us all. Said I, my Lord, all that 1 fhull de-
fire 1s, that there may be an Interview betwixe
you, and difcourfe the thirg with one anotaer,
or elfe it may be a thing of very fatal Confequeice
for him to ftep into an Aétion of this Dunger and
Concern while you are thus divided, With all
my Heart, fays the Duake, I would have nothing
more, I delire to fpeak with him. This male
me recoll back again to my Lord of Shaftsbury
the next Day, and I told him all this, and defired
he would give a Mecting; fays he, I fee they
are falfe then to fay they did not engage; they
were engaged, and that againft this tme oo, the
Confirmanon and Swearing of the Sheriffs; and
riow for me to meet with them, I krow [ fhill
run out into Paffion and Anger, and therefore
otis better omitted.  Said 1, my Lord, I mult
pofitively infitt upon it. I mult have an inzer-
view between you, for us a Madaels £.r you to
go on thus divided in fo great a Bafinels. I
could not prevail, he would not 5 bat he told me
if I would I might go to them from him, and
let them know I had been with him ; (Gor belore
I pretended to have it from a third Hand, and
rot from my Lord himfelf,) and 1if they would
be in a readinefs with whar tney promifed from
the Country, he would ask nothing from tae
City, he would take that Place upon himielr, if
they would perform their Engagemerit for other
Parts ; but he refolved to goon. So I wentto
the Duke of Monmouth again, and told him, what
he faid, That 1 could not by any means ger him
to an Interview. Says the Duke, he 1sa fra.ge
Man, I know not what to do with him, we wil
-1l be in a readinefs as foon as we can; but 113
impoffible to do it fo foon, I went to my Lord
of Shaftsbury again on the Sarurday, and did then
pofitively engage him that he would give a Meet-
ing to me, and the Duke of Momieuzh, and fome
others: And we appomnted Time and Place; he
appointed to come out in a Parfon’s Habir, and
a black Periwig to his own Houle, which he
thought the falcit Place, becaufe he would not
difcover
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difcover his Lodging to any of them, for fear
it fhould come to be known, With thefe In-
ftructions I came to the Duke of Mbpusonih to
prepare about it, and proffered him to be ready
the next Day at Evening with my Lord Ruffe/
to go to him. All this while I had not fpoken
to my Rord Rufll, but only to the Duke of
Monmonth.,  And the next Day when 1 came
from Church to my own Houle, there met me
a Meffage from Colonel Rumfey, who I under-
ftood by my Servants had been there, and left
his Name, with this Meflage, that he came to
tell me, the Gentleman that was to meet could
not meet. This was fo confufed a Matter, that
1 was impatient till I knew the meaning of it.
1 took my Coach and went direétly to the Duke
of Moumonth’s again, and he told me, Colonel
Rumfiy had been with him, and told him, my
Tord of Skaftsbury was apprehenfive there were
a great many Tories aboat his Houfe, and
he feared being difcovered, and therefore had re-
moved his Lodeing, and fo could not meet;
but we fhould hear from him 1n two or three Days.
So that was the laft time that I faw my Lord of
Shaftbury, or indeed, in a direft Line, did hear
from him ; collaterally by #alcor 1 did afterwards
hear; but by this means we were at a lofs. Af-
ter this the Duke of Momiouth did tell me (for
he did not own to me that he faw him, but in-
deed fivore to me that he did not fee him; but
1 find fince he did.) That he would do what he
could to prevent an untimely, dangerous Under-
taking, Bur after this it feems they had a Meet-
ing at Mr. Sheppara’s Houle, where my Lord
Shaftsbury fent a Meflage to him and my Lord
Ruffel 3 but the Duke of Moninonth only told me,
that my Lord Reffe/ had met with him, and feen
him; but he never owned that he had met him
himfelf or feen him. About four or five Days
after, Captain #zkot came to me, and told me,
fuch a Day was fet for the Rifing. Upon which
being ftartled, T had nothing to do, but recoil
hack to the Duke of Monmownth, and endeavour
to ftop any rafh Proceedings, and it was ftopped
as T thought, and fo it continued for two or three
Days, and at that time, which was 1n Ofober,
there was 2 Rumour up and down whifpered, as
if fomething would be atrempted; but what 1t
was we did not know, but thus it went on. for
two or three Days, and then it meeting with a
Difappointment upon the Confultation at Mr.
Sheppard’s, my Lord Shaftshury took up his Re-
folution to be gone, and went away to Holland,
and died in Holland. This is the Subftance of
that Account which I can give of thofe former

Tranfaétions.

M. Ait. Gen. Now give an Acccunt of what
was fubfequent to this.

Lord Howard. This was in November. After
this there being frequent Conferences between
Colonel Sidiey and me; for Colonel Sidney by the
way knew nothing of all this, and I was caution-
ed by my Lord Shaftsbury, that I {hould not tell
my Friend Sidney any thing of it, and asking him
the reafon why I fhould not. Says he, I can’
well tell ; but you will wonder when I tell you,
that his own Friend Major Aildman has barred
him and would not let him know it. The Gen-
tleman is now dead 3 but I will affire you he did
know nothing of this for a Month after ; for he was
gone into the Country 5 but after my Lord Shafts-

by was dead, 1 told him the Hiftory of all thefe
Tranfactions, which he was before a Stranger to.
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After this, when I had acquainted him with what
had been intended in Loadon, and what Prepara-
tions had been made, and how what was intend-
ed had been fupprefled, and in what Pofture Af-
fairs then ftood.  We then took up a Refolution
to form a Councily that might for the time to
come give fuch Direftions as might regulate the
Motions of this Affair. Thereupon we began to
think of the Perfons who they fhould be. He
undertook to fpeak to my Lord of ZEffex, and
Mr. Hampden, and I was to bring the Duke of
Monmonth to a right Underftanding with him in
it. So I went to the Duke of Monmouth, and
told him Colonel Sidiey did prefent his Service
to him, and would willingly wait on him, but
that he thought 1t would do him hurt, becanfe
he was a Perfon of fuch Note, and thereupon fo
obnoxious that it might prejudice him to have
him feen to come to him; and therefore if his
Grace would pleafe to appoint any third Place,
he fhould be very glad to kifs his Hand. Says
the Duke, I do not know any where truly to ap-
point. Why then, faid I, [ will tell you a Place:
Let us c’en go to his Houfe (having before pre-
pared Colonel Sidney for it) and take him by
Surprife and dine with him, and then there will
be the lefs Sufpicion ; But, faid I, you muft not
expect to be treated as the Duke of Monmouth,
becaufe he does not expect you ; but take him
as a Philofopher, and dine with him as he ufes
to dine at his own Table.  Says the Duke of
Mouimouth, 1 care not for Entertainment; I will
oo with you: And there at that time did the
Duke of Monmouth undertake to bring in my
Lord Ruffel and my Lord of Salisbury. This was
the only Difcourle preparatory to it that ever I
knew of. 'Within a Fortnight or three Weeks
after, nay, I think it was lefs than Ten Days al-
ter, Colonel S7diey came to me, and told me,
my Lord of Effox was very forward in it The
Duke of AMoumouth would prepare my Lord Ray-

fel, and my Lord Salisbury; and he himfelf did

not doubt, but Mr. Hampden was very willing

to be in 1t too 3 and they had appointed 2 Meet-
ing at Mr. Hampdew’s Houle, and he would car-
ry me thither to the Houfe; and this was the
firft Meeting that I knew of'; and there we met
all Six.
Mr, A2, Gen, About what ttme was that?
Lord Howard, It was about the middle of ¥e-

suary 5 and truly I think I could reduce it to a

ct;:irtain Day or two by the Perfons where I lodg-
ed.

Mr. At Gen, What was debated there?

Lord Howard, When we came there every one
difcourfed what he would. There was a Dif-
courfe of the Time and Places where to rife; but
among, other Things it was refolved as a Princi-
pal Point, that there fhould be a Preparation
made for the Defign, by a Treaty with thofe of
Scotland, and an Underftanding fettled with Ar-
gyle, and a Meflenger fent to my Lord Argyt,
and others, And before this was dene, we could
not be ripe for any Refolution: But this muft be
{peedily done.

L. C. ’f. Pray, my Lord, gtve me your Favour,
I would not interrupt you; but to make Things
clear as we go, 1defire to ask you, when you came
firt to Mr. Hampden's Houfe, who fpake firft,
when you were all met together ?

Lord Howard, Every body difcourfed what they
pleafed.

L. C. F. Bat who gave an Account of the Rea-

a fon
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fon of the Meeting ? Will you pleafe to recollect,

and tell what you know, who began the Difcourle ?

Lord Howard. Something introductive o 1t
was faid by Mr. Hampden, we being at his Houle,
15 *tis nataral to conceive for any Gentleman at
whofe Houfe People are met, to fay, Pray let us
fir down and talk of our Bufinefs. Something lead-
ing and introductive was faid by him,

L.C F. Pray, my Lord, as near as you can re-
member, will you give an Account what was the
thing he began to difcourfe of ? Did he feem to
take any Notice, or havf:: any K_nowlt:dgc of your
Meeting, and other Things before? _

Lord Howard. Tt was a general Hnt and Inti-
marion to us of the Ends of our Meeting, tiat
we were there come to confult and adviic one
with another, how to put Things into a beiter
Method and Pofture than fermerly : And he de-
fired that we would fit down and dilcourte of
thefe Things. My Lord, 1 would not charge my
elf with Particulars pofiaively.

Mr. At Gen. Upon what Queftions did you
debate and confult, my Lord?

Lord Howard, Thole were ftarted feverally.
Some would fpeak of the Trme when it Thould be,
whether it were not convenient now, or when.
Others offered fomething concerning tie Places
whether it fhould be begun in the City or 1n the
Country, or both together. Others took 1t 1n-
ro Confideration, what Perlons were to be pre-
pared in the feveral Countries to be affiiting in it
that were probable to carry it on.  And then fome
difcouried concerning the railing of Money, and
rhen what Sum fhould be raifed, and I think that
was flarted by the Duake of Ademinonih 5 but I am
fure the Sum that he named was 20 or 30coo /.
The laft Thing that was talked of, but wiich was
concluded to be the Taing principally to be ta-
ken care of, was the fetling fuch a Concurrence
and Correlpondence with Scoffaid, that they might
chime in at the fame time, that fo we mignt give
as many Diverlons both {rom heme and abroad
as could be at one and the fime ume,

Mr. dr. Gan. My Lerd Howard, Did Mr,
Hainpden difcourie of this Mazer?

Lowd Leward. 1 cannot fprak to the Dilcourfe
of any one in particular; for I cannot fay 1t was
put to the Voteas we formerly expreisd 1r, but it
may be faid we were all confenting and cencurring.

L. C.¥. Did any of you diffent from the Rling ?

Lsid Howard, WNo, ne, my Lord.

Mr. A:. Gen. Did any of you oppole it atall ?

Lord Howard. No, no, That was difcourfed of
as a thing refolved.

L. .. L ask you this Queftion, my Lord Hsrw-
-erd, Was there any fort of Complaint made of the
Government, that it was uneaiy and that occafi-
oned you to enter into theie Debates ?

Lord Howaid, There was, Lcannot fay a Com-
plaint, becauie there was no Perfon to complaimn
to; but it was fpoken of as a Matter of great
Grievance, that iuch a Force and Violence thould
be pur upon the City in their Election of Officers,
and the tendency of that as to all Jures, tho’ I
-cannot diftinétly rememnber the particular things.

L.C. ¥ You fay you were talking of a Meflen-
ger to be fent into Seo/leird to my Lord of Argyle,
.and orhers to chimein with you in this Matter, as
.you fay, pray did you come to any Relolution a-
bout that, and waat did you refolve upon 2 |

Lsid Heward. That there fhould be one only at
that time. - And afterwards it was the matter of
_the Dabate at the next Meeting, .which was that

for an High Mildemeanour.
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Meeting at my Lord Ruffei’s which was about thig
time twelve-month in February fome time, |

Mr. AL, Gen. How long after the hrlt Meets
ing at Mr. Hampden’s was thai ?

Lord Howard. My Lord, Ithink it was aboug
a Fortnight.

Mr. A . Gen. Who was there?

Lord Howard, Thae fame Perlons that met be-
fore. Bac then there was little fpoken of but the

B.flineis of Scotland.
L. C. 7. Was Mr. Hampden there at the fecond

Mectng ?

Lora Howard., He was there.

L. C.7. Atmy Lord Ryfil’s you fay it was?

Lord Howard, Yes.

My, At Gen. Wnat Relolution did you come
to then ? |

Lord Fhoward, Then we came to a Refolution
that fome body fhould be fent, and we began to
dilcourfe who was fit; and Colonel §7dizey he pro-
pounded Aaron Sinth, to fome of the Company he
was known, to others not; but thofe that did
know him did approve of him as a fic Perfon.

Vir. A:. Gen. To whole Province was that com-
mitted of fending this Perfon into Scorland 2

Lord !oward. Col. Sidiey undertook it himfelf,

M. A Gen. Dud the reft confenr to it 2

Lord Howard. Yes, No body did oppofe it,
but left 1t to him.

L. C.}. Dd you name the Perlon then that
Wis 1o g0 !

Lord Howard, He was not fo named as to be

with any lolemnity approved or diiproved ; but

it was left to Col. Sidiey to manage i, and he
naming S#i'h as a fic Perfon, (he told us that by
the by not to put it to the Queltion for our Ap-
probation) and fome of us knew the Perfon, others
did not, | was one that did know hum, and did
think hima very fic Man to fend. -

L.C.¥. Pray, my Lord, who was the Perfon ?
Be plealed to tell the Jury fo as they may know
I,

Lord Howard. Aaron Smith,

My, Faft, Withins. Had you any difcourfe with
Col. Sidiey, my Lord, afterwards that he was fent ?

Leoird Howard. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. #. Pray givean account of that.

Lord Howard, About three or four Days afrer
this Meeting at my Lord Ruffef’s, I went to vific
Colonel Sidizey ar his Houle, and while {1 was
there in the Room, he went to his Cabinet, and

ut of a Drawer where there were five or {ix hun-
dred Pounds in Gold as I could guefs, he took
a gcod many Preces, I do not know directly
how many ; but he tcok out fo many as he faid
were threelcore Guineas that he was going to car-
ry to Aaroir Sinith, 1 went not 1n my own Coach,
and therefore went away with him in his Coach,
and he let me down at Southanptonfiveet at my
own Lodging. I went no furcher, but he did, and
he told me afterwards it was conveyed to him,
and that he did go.

L. C.¥. How long was that after your Meet-
* Lord Ryffel’s, where you fay you in-
trufted Col, S7duey to tend one into Seotlana &

Lord Howard. 1 think it may be lefs than a
Week; four or five Days, that I faw him cary
the Money. After this, he faid, he had given him
this Money, and was gone: And when he was
difpatched, ina Week after I was making Inqui-
ries after him, and Col. §igney faid, he nad not
heard of him fince he went away; but abour 2
Fortnight or three Weeks Col, Sidney faid he had

heard



832

heard of him, that he was at Newsoe and ftaid
there ; but he wondered he couid hear no more
of him. I then went into Efex, and when I came
back from thence, he told me, he was come, but
I had never feen him, not to this Day, indeed I
had once appointed a Meeting with him at M,
WefP’s Chamber ;3 but fomething or other happen-
ed, we did not meet.

My, A Gen. We have done with my Lord

Howard; if they will ask him any Queftions, they
may.
L. C. 7. They know their time, when the King’s
Attorney has done with any Witnefs, then they
may examine him 1f they pleafe. If they will not,
call your other Witnefics.

M. A:. Geis. Will you ask him any Queftions ?

Mr. Fones. No, no, by Advice they are to ask
him nothing.

Mr. Ar. Geir. We thall give your Lordthip and
the Jury an Account 1 the next place, that we
have traced Aaron Simith muo Scotland.  And for
that we fhall call fome Witaefles which indeed
we did not produce before at any Trial, becaufe
we had not tien difcovered fo much.  We fhall
bring vou the Perion at whole Houfe he lay at
Nesoeeftle, and the very Meilenger that was fent
with bim to condut him a By-way into Scotland,
Call Skerifio and B2/,

L. C. 7. Look ye, Gentlemen, You that are at
the Bar there, you muaft let the Jury {tand by
themfelves.  Iiee there are a great many others
intermingled with them, and you, Gentlemen of
the Jury, it any Whilperer talk to you, we expect
that you {rould tell us who they are s for we will
{uffer no Remarks to be made but what are open-
ly made to the Court, and the Jury, by the Coun-
fel of both fides,

Nir. 4t Gen, Swear Sheriffe and Bell,

[WWhich was doie,

Mr. Widiams, What 1s this Man®s Name, Mor,
Atterney 2 Frierd, What 1s your Name ¢

IWitaefs. My Name is Sheriffe.

Mr. A, Gua, Pray give my Lord and the Jury
an Account what you know of any Perfon that lay
at yoar Houfe {fome tme fince, and waether you
Lave feen hum dince ? Ny Lord, this Gantleman
did nor know aren Siirh betore, and therefore
I delive Mr, Aterdary may be called and exa-
mined again. Mr. dticrbuiy, do you know Aaren
Smith ¢

Mr. Aterbuiy, Yes, 1 know him very well,

MroA L Gen, Had this Genteman 2 View of
Aaron Smitich ¢

Mir. Aterbuiy. Yes, he had. Fle was brought
where Aron Swith was, and this other Perfon was
by before him too, and I was by when they had a
View of him.

Mr. A Gen. Now, pray give an Account what
you know of the Man you faw.

My, Sol. Gen. Where 18 darei Smith ?

M. dtzeréary, He is in the King’s-Bench Prifon,
and he was brought by Habeas Corpus to Wbiteball
before the King, where thefe two Perfons were
brought likewile, and there this Man, Sheriffe, did
own that Aarei Smsth was the Man that was at his
Houfe; and the other, Be/, owned that he tra-
velled towards Scotlerd with him, and chat he was
hired to fhew him the Way into Scotland.

Mr. At Gen. Dl daron Smith fay any thing ?

Mr. dtterbury. He would not anlwer any thing
at all, nor fay a Word,

Mr, At Gen, Pray give an Account, Mr. §he-
#iffe, who it was that lay at your Flo.afe, and wacn
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it was, and what he faid was his Bufinefs, and by
what Name he went,

Mr. Sheriffe. Indeed his Bufinefs I did not
know; but he was at our Honle about the middle
of February, it was thereabouts,

L. C. 7. When was it ? What Febrstary 2

My, Sheriffe. The latt Febinary.

My, At. Gen, You fay hewas at vour Houle laft
February, pray tell the Court where that s ?

Mr. Sheriffe. At Neweaftle,

Mr. A4, Geir. Do you keep any Inn there?

Mr. Sheriffe. Yes.

M, At Gen. What Sign ?

Mr.Sheriffe. The Signof the DLick-Spread-Eagle,

Mr. At Gen, Andwhat did he do there ?

Mr. Sheriffe. Fle ftaid there one Nightand went
away, and returned again in twelve Days or
thereabouts, and came to my Houle again.

M. At Gen. Whither did hie go tfrom you ?

- DMy Sheriffe. He went Seuthward s 1 fuppofe, T
know no farther,

Mr., 4 Gen. But when he firlt came to your
Houfe, which way went he?

Mr. Sheriffe. He went Northoerd towards Scos-
land, as he himielt fatd, a-.d defired to have one
to thew him the way : Anad I fene for this Man,
and when he came to hiin he hired him to go with
him, and I was by,

L.C. 7. When Le firft came to your Houfe
about the middle of fvbruary was twelve-month,
whither was he bound then, Neytbward or South-
ward ?

My, Sheriffe. He was geing to Seatland, that is
Nerthward,

L.C. F. And yon fay, after he came back a-
aun, and Ly another Night at your Houfe,

Afr. Sheriffe. Yes, tenor twehe Days after he
did.

L.C. 7. Andwhich way wens he then ?

Mr. Sheiiffe. Then he came S.tbwards to-
wards Lordsi,

L.C. % Dd vou teke exxét Notice of the
Min 2

Ar. Sherigfe. Yoz, Luw him Ocfore his Maefty

[
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and the Councii.

L. C. ¥ Andupon your Outh, that fame Man
you faw tiere Was e lane s.an mat ledeed a
your Houle in [ evrnziy was twelve-imonth ?
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M. A Gan What Name did he go by at your
Houfe ?

Adr. Sheviffe. He went under the Name of Mr.,
Cierk, but what his Sirname was I can’t tell,

L.C F. Hadhea Servant with him 2

i, Sheriffe. He had a Man with tum that haid
at our Houie during thic Time of his going Noyth-
ward,

Adr. At Gen, What did he call his Name?

M. Soeriffe. H:lliam Laig fon,

Mr. At Gen, Did he defire you to furnith him
with & Guide ?

M. Sderife. e told me his Servant did not
lknow the Way, and his Horfe was a litde lamifh,
and defired me to get a Guide for him. For after
he had dined at our Hou't, it happered to be a
rainy Day, and he could nor go farther that Night,
and therefore deflired me o get him a Man that
knew that Country, and I fent for this fame Man,
and he hired bim; and he weat clong with him
next Morning, my Lord,

Mr. At Gen, Whither was be to go 2

Arr. Sherife, Thuly 1 did not kuuw; but he
told ¢ iie did not kanow e Way into Seotland,

and
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and I direCted him to a Gentleman®s Hounfe at

Fadbrough in the way.

L.C. 7. Is that the Road to Scotland ?

My, Sheriffe. Yes, the High Road to one Part
of Scotland.

L. C. 7. Did he tell you to what Part or Place
of Scotland he was to go ?

Mr. Sheriffe, He named the Weft of Scotland, 1
think he named Douglas, but I do not know what
Place certainly he deligned for.

Mr. Aet. Gen, Then where is Bel/ ¢

Bell, Flere.

My, Art, Gen. Had youa view of this Man they
call Aaron Smith?

Bell. Yes, 1 had.

My, Att.Gen. Give an Account, whether you
{aw him in the North, and when, and where.

Bell, This Man, Mr. Sheriffe, fent for me., [
live at Neweaftle, and there [ keep Hackney-Horfes
to ferve any Gentlemen, or be a Guide to them as
there is occalion; and Mr, Sheriffe fent for me, and
when [ came, he told me the Gentleman wanted
a Guide into Scotland.  We immediately agreed,
it was upon Thurfdsy Night before that we call
Eafter-Eve.

L. C. 7. When was it, fay you?

Bell. Tt was the Thurfday before Eaffer-Ewen, {o
they call it with us, that is, Shrove-Tuefday.

L.C.F. Ay, they callit fo in thofe Places, be-
caufe *tis the Even of the Faft of Afb-Fednefday,
the Beginning of Lent—— Well, go on.

Bell, We went away on Fiiday the next Morning
on our Journey towards Fadbreugh, and the fecond
Day, which was Sa/uiday, 1n the Afternoon, my
Horle tired, whereapon he left me with my Horfe,
and took the Man’s Man of the Houfe where he
left me, to guide him, for my Horfe would not
ride up with him, being tired, and he refolving
to go on, and he bid me follow him on the Sun-
day Morning to Fadbrengh Town, which T did,
and we {taid there all Sundey. And on Monday
Morning I faw him take Horfe, and another Man
that was his Guide, and away they went; as I
think, he faid towards Donglas he was going. And
he paid me, and I returned agamn from him to
Neweaftle, and left him.

L. C. §. Pray, how far was this; you fay you
weat with him to Jadbrough, how far diftant is that
from Newceaftle

Bell. To Fadbrongh, my Lord?

L.C.F. Yes.

Bl *Tis forty Miles, my Lord.

L. C.}. How near Scotland s 1t?

Bell. *Tis within fome fix Miles of the Euplifh
Border.

L. C. 7. Did you fee him at any time after that ?

B2/ 1 faw him at his coming back again; being
at Sterffe’s Houfe, his Wife asked me, if I would
go up and fee the Gentleman that I went with to-
wards Seozlend: So 1 went up, and he made. me
eat and drink at the Table with him,

Mr. A, Gen, What Name did he go by ?

bell, Fle went by the Name of Clert,

A, Ai2. Gen. Was there any Servant with himn?

Bell There wasa Man that came with himasa Ser-
vant there, and was all the time at Negocaftle, that he
vwas gone towards Scof/and, *till he came back again,

L.C. 7. Mr, Autoruey, Did this Man fee Swmith

at the ume the ether faw him?

Bzl Yes, T did.

L.C. 7. Andisthat the Man that went by the
Name of Clrk at Newcaftle, and that you went
with towards Scotland 2 |
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Bell. Yes, itis, .

Mr. Atterbury, And when they charged him
with it, Aaron Smith did not deny it

Mr. Ait. Gen, Did you go any By-road to get
into Scotland ¢ | - .

Bell, No, ’tis the Road Gentlemen ufually go to
Fadbrough, and fo onj becaofe ’tis fomething the
nearer Way to that Part of Scotland, as we judge
it to be, therefore Gentlemen ufe i,

Mr. Att, Gen, Is it an high open Road ?

Bell, Yes, ’tis the high open Way to that Part
of the Country. '

Mr. Aut. Ger. My Lord Howard, Pray, were the
Names of any of the Scotchmen mentioned at your
Meeting that were to be fent for?

Lord Howard, Yes; there was my Lord M-
vin, Sir Jobu Cockiain, and one Campbel.,

Mr. Att. Gen. Now, my Lord, we will give you
an Account, That as Swith went into Scotland, {o
thefe Perfons foon after came into England,

Furyman, My Lord, we defire that my L. How-
ard would name thofe Scotchmen that were to come,

Lsrd Howard. There was my Lord Melvin, Sir
Fobn Cockram, and one Campbel, one that was of
my Lord Argyle’s Name and Family ; and therewas
another Name, but I can’t remember what that
Name was.

Mr. Att. Gen. We fhall give you an Account,
my Lord, that they came immediately after this
to Town; and at the breaking out of the Plot
they ablconded.

L.C. 7. Mr, Atterney, Has my Lord Howard
his Pardon ?

M. Att. Gen. Yes, my Lord, he has.

L. C. F. Then your Lordthip may be cover’d.

Lord Heward, 1 can’t tell but they may ask me
fome Queftions.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Then you may be uncover’d when
they ask them, in the mean time your Lordihip
may be covered, Swear Sir Audrew Fofter, [Which
was doe.] Pray, Sir, will you tell my Lord and
the Jury what you know about the Canplels, and
Sir Fobn Cockram's being in Town, Or any other
Scotchwmen that you know of.

Sir Andrew Foffer. My Lord, I did fee thofe
Gentlemen in the Beginning of laft Summer. Sir
Tobn Cockram, and Mr, Monroe, and Campbel the
Son, I did fee, but the Father I didnot, but Ida
know he was in Town, tho’ I faw him not,

Mr. Att. Gen. How do you know it 2

Sir Andrew Fufter. Y had Meflages from them.

L. C. 7. Sir Andrew, you {ay, you faw Sir 7obn
Cockram and Monroe.

Sir Andrew Fofler, Ycs.

L. C. 7. Did you fee any body elfe ?

Sir Andr, Fofter, 1 faw Sir George Campbel the Son,

Mr. Ait, Gen. What became of them upon the
Difcovery of the Plot? |

St Andrew Fofter. Sit Jobu Cockram did ab-
fcond, and Mr, Monroe was taken into Cuftody.

My, Ait, Gen. What became of the others ?

Sir dndrew Foffer. Vhe Compbels were both 1n
Cuftody.

M. 4.Gen. Did you feeany Commiffion they had ?

Sir Andrew Fofter. I did fee a Commiffion that
Sir Fobn Cockram had.

M. Att. Gen, What was 1t for?

- Sir Andrew Fofter. To make a Purchafe of fome
Plantations beyond Sea, I think 1t was Carolina,

L.C. ¥. Ay, where my Lord Shaftsbury had an
Intereft.

Sir Audr. Fofter. It was fome of the WVeft. Indies.

L. Howard, ] did omit that Paffage, my Lord—

5 Q Mr,
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M. Ait. Gen. Pray, wasit difcourfed then, what
fhould be the Blind for thefe Gentlemen -that
were notorious Diffenters, that they fhould come
to Town from Scotland about?
- Lord Howard. It was to carry on a Plantation
in Carolina. "The Scotch Gentlemen were perfonal-
ly known to my Lord Ryffel only; and my Lord
Ruffel was to write the Letter to them, and, I
fuppofe, did. | |

My, A2, Gen. Mr, Atterbury, Whatdo you know
of thefe Scotchmen coming to Town; and what
became of them afterwards ¢ o
. My, Atterbury. My Lord, about the Beginning
of Fuly, 4th, gth or 6th, or thereabouts, I had
fome Information, That there were {fome Scoich
Gentlemen that had been fhifting up and down,
and at that Time were about Black-Friers, lodged
there fecretly. I immediately went with the King’s
Proclamation, and fome Warrants that I had to
apprehend fome Traitors that were fled: And
when I came, I found that M. Common Serjeant
having notice of them, had beat up their Quarters,
and they were endeavouring to efcape by Water;
but there they were catched. There was Sir Hugh
Campbel, and Bayley, and Sir George Campbel, and
fome others, I know not the Names of them all;
tiuly I can’t tell whether Adoiroe was not another,
but Sir Hugh Campbel 1 had in my Cuftody, and
Bayley was immediately committed to the Gase-
boufey and the reft of the Gentlemen I aftC wards
took in a cunning Hole by Aoor-Fields, ina back
Houfe. And when I came there, I found them
lying on the Bed in the Middle of the Day ; and had
them Prifoners in my Cuftody two or three Months;
and then they were all fent out of my Hands into
Scotland, Prifoners. Six of them there were, my
Lord, thatI faw, |
- Mr. At Gen. We have done, my Lord, only
we defire that 2 Word of a Record may be read.

Mr. Williams. What Record 1311, Sir?

Mr. Ait. Gen. OF Colonel Sidney’s Attainder.

Mr. Willians. My Lord, we fhall defire your
Judgment, whetl.er that Record ought to be read
againft Mr. Hampden; 1 perceive by Mr, Attorney,
that *tis 2 Record of the Conviction of Mr. Siduey,
which ought not to be given in Evidence agamnit
Mr. Hampden upon this Indictment.

My, Ait. Gen. We make ufe of 1t, to fhew how
upon former Trials, upon this Evidence, Verdidts
have gone.

My, Willigins, We are m your Judgment, my
Lord, if by Law 1t may be given in Evidence a-
gainft Mr. Haipden, who is neither Party nor pri-
vy to it, nor tndiéted for the fame Offence.

My, A2, Gen, Let it alone then,

L.C. 7. Well, Mr. Attorney does not prefs it.
Whatfay youtoir, Gentlemen, for the Defendant ?

My, Williams, May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
vou Gentlemen of the Jury, Iam of Counfel for
Mr., Hampden the Defendant upon this Indictment
here before you.  This Indiétment is.a fevere In-
di@tment: It 1s a very high Crime of which my
Client is accufed. How far the Evidence tends
to reach it, you have heard ; and I (hall, with the
Patience of the Court, particularly obferve it .to
you, But I fhall firft {peak to the Inditment it-
felf : It fays, that Mr, Hampden being a Perfon of
a turbulent Difpofition, and leditioufly intending

to difturb and difquiet the King’s Peace, and to -

ftir Sedition, and to bring the Government into

Danger, ‘did confpire, &Fc. As to this Matter,.

Gentlemen, there is no manner of Proof of what
the Indi€tment charges, as to the Difpofition of the
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Perfon sccufed ; nor that he had any other Defign,
than what my Lord Heward hath now fworn.
Then it fays further, that Mr, Hampden did confult
and confpire with divers Perfons to execute thele
Purpofes; and particularly for the making and raif-
ing of an Infurretion in the Kingdom. This is
laid as the particular Fact; And for this purpofe
he did further conipire with feveral Perfons to pro-
vide Arms and armed Men: And for their fulhlling
of this, he did further confult with feveral Perfons,
that forne Perfons fhould be fent into Scotland to
ftir up the King’s Subjects in Sco:leind, to a Con-
currence and Conunétion with fome People 1n
Eugland, about this his evil Defign,  How far this
Indictment is proved upon the Defendant, Gentle-
men, is the Queftion before you,  He has pleaded
Not Guilty, and hopes to fatisfy you he is not.
Gentlemen, as to what Evidence has been given you
fo far as ’tis Pofitive and Affirmative, [ mean the
Teftimony of my Lord Howard, in that Part, itis
impoffible for us that are of Counfc] for the De-
fendant direétly to contradi€t him with Proof, or
to give a dire¢t pofitive Proof in anfwer to it: I
fay, *tis impoffible for us to contradi€t him, who
gives fuch a politive Evidence of Falt. By the
Evidence of my Lord fsward he tells us there
were fix Perfons in this Council, as hie is pleafed to
call them. By his Evidence, three of the {ix are
dead, my Lord Ruffel, Col. Siducy, and the Earl
of Effexs He himfelf is the Fourth, the Defendant
is the Fifth, who cannot gtve Evidence for him/elf;
and the Duke of Adonmonth, who 1s the Sixth, be-
ing away, there 15 not any Perfon in being, that
fhould contradict my Lord Heward’s Afirmative
in this Part of his Evidence but the Dake of A4is-
month, whom we cannot have here, fince it appears
by the Evidence, Mr. Attorney-General could not
prevail to have him at this Trial; therefore Proof
of that Nature cannot be reafonably expeéted from
my Client to acquit himfelf by a politive Contra-
diction of what my Lord Alward has {worn,
Then in this Cafe we muft, asin all Cafes where a
Perfon does fwear direétly againft a Defendant, en-
deavour to fatisfy and perfuade your Lordfhip and
the Jury, upon Circumftances arifing out of chis
Fact, and further Circumftances attending the Faét,
and by probable Arguments and reafonable In-
ductions out of the Evidence, that this Gentleman,
the Defendant, is not gutlty of what he is charged
with.

In the firft Place, we fhall obferve upon the
Teftimony of my Lord Howard, that as to fome
Things he is very pofitive and particular: He
has an incomparable Memory, and {peaks parti-
cularly to Perfons, particularly to Places, particu-
larly to Times. But, Gentlemen, as to that which
is the principal Part of his LEvidence, and which
moft affelts the Defendant, and wherein it concerns
us to contradict or difprove him, he is wanting as
to that Circumftance of Time. He that is fo ex-
act in his Memory as to other Circumftances, is
not pefitive, nor any thing like pofitive, as to
the ‘I'imes of the Meeting.  For they weuld ima-
gine, that the firlt Meeting the Defendant was
concerned in, wasat hisown Hoeufe.  He defertbes
the Houfe and the Place very exadtly, but as for
the Time, he only fays 1t wasabeut the middle of
Famvaiy: He earnies other Things in his Memory
pofitively; and whether it might not be expeéted
in a Cafe fo remarkable as this, and which {o near-
ly and highly concerned himfelf, that he fhould
be as particular in the Time, as he is in other
‘Things, you may rationally judge, Eis Lord-
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fhip fometimes 15 very particulat as to Time :
He tells you in his Relation about my Lord
Shaftsbury, that his going to him was on the Sa-
turday after dichaelnas-Day 3 and then he pur-
fues 1t to the fecond and third of Offsber. He
is pofitive to many feveral Days; upon which I
would obferve, that he being particular to a Day,
as to other Things, may well be expetted to be
ready (if it be true) to be as particular as to the
Time of this Mceting : But therein he is to {eek 5
he is doubtful as to that. And you muft give us
leave, Gentlemen, to make this Obfervation,
that fince he will not be particular to that Time,
we do apprehend that he gives himfelf a little
Loofe that we may not meet with him to contra-
di& him in that Circumftance: For if he fhould
be pofitive therein, as he is in the other Matters
that concern not the Defendant, we might per-
haps by clear pregnant Circumftances contradict,
if not difprove his Lordlhip, that 1t is not proba-
ble (if poflible) it fhould be true what he af-
firms.  But, Gentlemen, we muft anfwer 1t as well
as we can; and fince he 15 fo cautious, we muft
meet him by Arguments inanother way. Another
Thing we fhould obferve upon my Lord’s Evi-
dence, is this; thar my Lord, tho’ he be particu-
lar as to many Fadls and Things relating to my
Lord Shaftsbury, wiere he names other particalar
Perfons, I think Col. Rumfey and HWalcot, and
names the particular Dicourles, particularly in-
ftancing in them, between him and my Lord of
Shafisbury, between him and Palcot, and between
him and other Perfons; yet he has not made ufe
of any one Circumitance of Faét in this Cafe of
the Defendant’s now before you, that does jufti-
fy what he has faid, fave only that of daron Smith,
not any one Circumfitance of Fact, Sothat there
is no more than the bare Saying of what my Lord
Howeard 1s pleafed to deliver, no more than his
Qath, nay, no more than his Obfervation and In-
ference of much of what pafied 1n the Company
of feveral Perfons, without any concurring Cir-
cumftances in Fact to jultity or confirm his Tef
tmony. It migat have been an eafy Matter,
if all that my Lord Howard lays was true, chat
there was fucn a Meeting at Mr, Hainpaen’s Houle
by fuch and fach Perfons, to prove thar fuch Per-
fons, or fome of them met there,  But that there
fhouid be no Perfon to prove, that thefe Gentle-
men, or any of them, were there; nor any
other Falt or Circumftance in the World, to go
along with my Lord /fswward to juitity his Afle-
veration, 15 very wonderful, and may well make
1t doubtful that 1t fhould not be true: And the
ratner, Gentlemen, (it 1 be true, as my Lord
Howard would have 1) becaule there was a fecond
Meeting of all thefe Perfons at my | ord Ruffel’s,
which was fo publick and open a Place, and yer
no Man to concur or go along with mv Lord
Howard inany one thing; no particular Faét af-
figned tojultify his Teltimony as to chis Mecting,
15 ftrange, 1 1t be true.

So then, Centlemen, there 1s no more than
what my Lord Howard has fworn, without any
one Circumftance to back it, to prove the De-
fendant guilty. My Lord, taking this upon the
main of my Lord Howara’s Evidence, 1t will be
pretty hard too upon the Nature of the Falt, that
he 1s pleafed to prove again{t this Gentleman, to
- make an Anfwer to it: And truly, } think as hard
for you to believe it.  Gentlemen, he would ima-
gine, that there fhould be Mean raifed, Men
armed, a Difcourfe of Money, and this done as
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he would have it, about the middle of Faiirary ;
and yet nothing at all done, though there appears
no manner of Difcovery of this very Contrivance,
till about Fuy. Neither is there any thing done in
order to the raifing of Men, the arming of Men, or
the levying of Money all thiswhile, So that there
is no one Fact of any kind whatfoever, that goes
along with what my Lord Howard has faid.

My Lord, and Gentlemen, another Thing we
would defire to obferve, is this, and here we thall
begin with what we have to fay, as to our own
Arguments and Circumitances, that we have to
take off from the Teltimony of my Lord ffezs-
ard m this Cafe: In the firlt Place, it appears by
the Evidence of my [.ord Howard, that he was
very deep in a Confpiracy againft the Govera-
ment, and to make a Ditturbance in the Kirg-
dom long before this, that he now fpeaks of a-
gainft the Defendant, that is plin enoigp, for
he tells you, that my Lord Sheftscary, and H:at
Michaelinas, were contriving of Projelts to over-
turn the Government, and raife a Rebelion. It
appears plainly by his Evidence, that my Lord
Shaftsbury, when he left his Houfe, was refolved
upon it, and my Lord Howard was very folici-
tous to carry on the fame Defizny nay, he was
fo altivein it, that he tells you, that he did cre-
ate Meflages berween my Lord of Shaftsbury, and
the Dake of Monmo:uth, and would needs go by a
falfe Infinuation of his own, to draw in the Duke
of Mouinouth, by telling his Grace, his Information
he had from #alcot, and not faying he came from
my Lord Shaftsbury, with whom he fays he had
been difcourfing; but he would put it under fome
fort of Dilguile, the better to prevail.  So that
it appears my Lord'was very criminal, and guilty,
in tius Cafe. Why then, Gentlemen, my Lord
being fo highly criminal, and there being a Dif-
covery of this Conipiracy by Aeelriug and Ruinfey,
and /773fF, having madea more manifelt D.icovery,
and this happening 1 Fuly; Then 1t was lngh
Time my Lord Heward might conceive for him
to fecure himflf, and fave one, he being thus
Guilty, as he declares: It 15 bat realonable (o
conjecture, he then began to place his Sccurity in
a [Pardon 3 and that there were no other Means
to fave his Life, and that the way to ir, muft be
by fome further Difcovery of a Confpiracy a-
gainit his Majelty and the Government: Ard hav-
ing fince obtained a Pardon, 1t is agreeable,
that whatfoever my Lord Hsward has done 1n
this Cale, he has done for his own fake, to pur-
chafe his own Pardon for a Treafon he was fo deep
in, and to out-do all the Witnefles that went be-
fore him, by frefh Teltimony againft the Defen-
dant and others: This might incline him to go an
Inch or two, or more, beyond the Difcovery of
Keeling, Weft, and Rumfey s to have but fad the
fame Thing that was proved by three or four
Witnefics before him, might not perhaps have
availed him: May not the indifferent believe it
in this Cafe, to be the Intereft and Security of my
Lord Howard, by thefe Means to merit hus Par-
don? May it not be believable, that what he hath
faid, he hath faid only for his own fake, and that
he has, by expofing this Gentleman, and the Blood
of others, procurcd himfelf a Pardon?

L. C.¥. What do you mean by that, Mr. /3
liams ¢

Mr. Williams. By being a Witnefs againft the\
Defendant and others, he has pocured his own
Pardon,

L.C. ¥ Thatis a little harfh Expreflion——
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M. Williains. My Lord, L expliin myfelf thus—

L.C.F.°Tis an harfh Word and too roundly ex-
prefied ; you had need to explain yourfelf; tis a
little too rank, as though the King’s Pardon were
to be procured by Blood.

Mr. Williams. My Lord, 1 intend nothing of
hardfhip or amifs, but to {peak according to my
Inftructions, and to malke the beft Obfervations
I can, out of the Evidence of my Client: I will
exprefs myfelf as well as I can, that my Lord
Howard being a Wimefs againft Men in a Cafe of
this high Nature ; and there being other Witneffes
before, and beflides himfelf to the Difcovery of
the late Conipiracy againft the Government, it
concerned him to give an home Evidence i the
Cale, or clfe he could not have any Expectation
of his Pardon: For if he had done no more than
what others had done before him, when there
were three Witnefles belides, and they had got
the Start in the Dilcovery, his Dilcovery had been
in vain; and therefore he was concerned per-
haps to {train, that he might make fuch a Dilco-
very as micht anfwer his End; and this will arife
naturally, I fuppofe, out of what has happened
in this Cafe: For it f2ems, though 1t was fome-
thing long before he got his Pardon, now he has
it. My Lord, another Thing 1s this, How far my
Lord Heward will be credited in this Matter, we
fhall leave his Credit to you, Gentlemen, upon
what we fhall prove. For we {hall make 1t out
by Perfons of great Honour, and Perfons of great
Integrity, that upon Difcourfe concerning this
Confpiracy, my Lord Heward did declare, that
he knew of no Perfons that were guilty of having
any Hand mn it; he declared it upon his Honour,
he declared it upon his Religion, and he ufed all
the Affeverations that were pofiible for a Man to
offer to make himfelf believed,

My Lord, it may be objected, as it has been
fometimes, that that was to ont-face the Con{pira-
cy, and fo ftop the Profecution of what he knew
himfelf to be guilty of: But however, thus far
we may make uic of it for the Defendant, that
it my Lord Howward would in the Face of Hea-
ven, pawn his Honour, his Truft, his Conicience,
and his Religion, to affert that which was not
true, and under all thofe Vows and Lingagements
affirm an Untruthy a Man that would deal {o, and
fpeak an Untruth with that Solemnity, I think,
1e not a Perfon of the fame Credit, asa Perfon of
certain known Truth and Veracity. Forif aMan
will fay one Thing one Time, and that with fo-
lemn Vows and Affeverations, and fwear another
Thing quite the contrary another Time, he does
not ftand {o fair for Credit, I think, as he that al-
ways maintains, and avows the Truth, So far we
may make ule of it very fafely, 1 think, as to
my Lord’s Credit.

My Lord, another Matter that we have to urge,
s, that fince the Trial of my ILord Rufl, and
fince the Trial of Colonel Sidirey, my Lord ow-
ard has in Difcourfe owned, that my Lord Ruffe/
died innocent. If that be true, 1t will have a
areat Weight fure with you, Gentlemen, to dif-
credit my Lord’s Teftimony : For then he hath
contradiéted what he hath fworn. For 1f my Lord
fivore, that my Lord Ruffé/ was Guilty, as all the
World knows hedid; and afterwards Soberly, and
Publickly, fhall have faid he died Innocent, he
has contradi@ed his own Evidence, and his own
Oati; and fure is not to be believed as to what
he fwears now againft the Defendant. My Lord,
it did not reft there 5 but fince the Trial of Co-
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lonel Siduey, it will be proved by Witnefles;; that
my Lord Howard did declare that Colonel Sidiey
had hard Meafure. Tlus will be proved by Wit-
nefles ; and ’tis rather to be prefumed, he meant
hard Meafure as to his own Teftimony, which he
was beft knowing of, than of any thing elfe as to
his Trial. Now, how this Perfon of great Honour
can folve this, and how it can ftand with his Quih,
and his Honour; I will leave it to you, Gentlemen,
to judge of it, My Lord, I have another Matter
to fay, that with me feems to have very great
Weight : My Lord Howaid, upon fome Occali-
ons has faid, being 1 Difcourfe with a very great
Intimate of his, and the Man being {peaking of
the World to come, {peaking of Eternity, {peaking
of the Immortality of the Soul, fpeaking of the
Rewards and Punifhments of another Life; my
Lord Howard thould fay to him, Few by wilt tho
perfif in this Folly 2 How long wilt thox be fo foolifbly

prevailed upon, as to belicve the Forld was ever made,

or will ever bave ain End? My Lord, i’ a Perfon
be of that Opinion, (and aMai’s Judgment in fuch
Things will difcover itlelt i his Words) how
far the Teftimony of a Man of that Periuafion
fhall influence a Jury when he {tands fingle, when
there is no fact to juftity him, in Point of proba-
ble Circumftance, will be calily ¢bizrvable, and
I muft leave 1t to the Gentlenmien of the Jury to
conflider.

My Lord, we have another Saying of my Lord
Howara’s, winch we fhall give youan Account of
in the Proofs, and that was in relation to his Par-
don. Being free i Dilcourle, as my Lord is a
Man very liberal that way, and his Friend en-
quiring whether he had his Pardon: No, fays he,
neir I cannot have it, till the Dindgery of Swearing be
over. ‘Truly ’us a very odd Thing, that a Man
fhould call that Drudgery, that is his Buty.  To
teftify the Truth, 15 as much the Duty of every
honeft Man, as any thing elfe. Men have died
for the Truth, and we Jook upon thofe as Martyrs,
and the beft of Martyrs that die for the Truth.
Now, that this noble Lord, or thai any Man
fhould call this a Drudgery, which is fo manifelt
a Daty, by giving -a true Teitimony to preferve
the King’s Life, and fupport the Government a-
ganit the Contrivance and Conipiracies of cvil
Men, 1s bur an odd Infinvation, and truly I think
1s rather to be taken in this Senie, as to my Lord,
that he did ftrain a little to make his Difcovery
the more profitable to him ; and fo did fay more
(fo far I may fafely go) than any one clfe did fay.
And my Lord, This 1s chat that 1 weuld obferve
upon the firft part of the Evidence.

As for that Part that concerns Azrsn Siaitk, the
Lvidence given by Sheriffe and 8.7, I fubmit that
to your Lordfhip, how far thit can any way af-
fect Mr. Hampden the Defendant, It is introduced

it 15 introduced by himfelf thus: That at their
Mezting at Mr. Hampden’s FHoufe, there was a
Difcourie of fome Afliftance to be had from Seoz-
land ; but fays he, at the fecond Meeting at my
Lord Rufj:ls, then it came to a further Difcourfe,
and Colonel §idney did undertake to name a Per-
fon to fend thither; and a Perion was named; he
doces not fay Mr. Hampaci was concerned 1n it, or
that Mr. Hampdei named the Man, or any thing
particular as to Mr. Hainpden, more than that he
was in tne Company. Mi. Hainpden had no Fland
in the Undertaking, or fending him mnto Sco/fand ;
that was alwogether the Part of Mr. Sidiey, fave
this, that he fays my Lord Ruffe/ writ the Leter

that
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that was to-go by .him, It does not appear Mr.
Hampden was at-all concerned in.it, but only was
there.

L.C. % And confented to it.

Mr. Williams, 1 would not ftrain any thing,.my
T.ord, further than the Evidence is.

L. C. . Nor do not mifrepeat 1t neither,

M. Williams. 1 delign not any fuch Thing,
my Lord. ,_

L.C. }. Butyou do though; for he fears 1t,
every onc of them confented. '

My, Willians. By Silence it muft be then. For
he does not fay, that he faid any thing. He {wears
only Colonel Siduey undertook to manage it, to
fend a Perfon ; and my Lord Ruffe/ to write the
Letter.

L.C. %¥. And all the reft confented to it.

M. Williains. What 1s meant by Confent, when
nothing was faid, I muft leave to the Jury. [ muit
agree, the Lord Howard did fwear, that my Ch-
ent was 1n their Company, but how far he did, or
did not confent, does not at all appear, and how
tar this will charge my Chient, T muft leavetoyou,
Gentlemen. But the Proof, as to this Matter, {tands
thus s that Aarein Smith was at Newcaftle in Febiit
ary laft, that he went publickly. Now, my Lord
Howard fays, that he went to agitate a Confedes
racy between the Malecontents of Scotlend, and
thole in Englend, Now it is {trange, that a Man
that was toagitate fuch a Concern, fhould go pub-
lickly with a Servant to Neweaftle; fo publickly
as to be known again; and of his own accord
tell them he was going to fuch a Place in Scosland.
And be it o in Falt, will any FMan apply this to
any thing was done before? (as my Lord Heward
fays about a Confultation to join in Rebeldlion.)
Will any Man think, that he fhould talk ar that
kind of Rate, 1t that were his Employment, and
tell whither he were going? But I rely upon this,
in Point of Evidence.” *1is not proved yet, that
Aaren Sinith was 1 Scotland,  That he came with-
in fix Miles ot the Berders of Seoclond, is proved;
but it is not proved he was in Scotland, or did a-
aitate any Conipiracy there; or did any thing
more than go within fix Miles of the Borders of
Scotlaind.  But then they would prefs ic further,
and they fay, that tere were fome Scofch Gentle-
men, that nit the Summei came here into Laugland,
and that they hid themiclves when the Plor was
I It does not appear my Client had

difcovercd.
any Converfation with thefe Seorch Gentlemen, or
any of them, or was ever in their Company, *Tis
a very remote Inference 1o bring any thing of this
to affect my Client 1n thes high Charge.

iy Lord, we fhall add one Tuing more to
dijprove that Part of the Inditment, that lays
the Imputation of Turbulency and Sedition to
the Charge of Mr. Hampden; and which alfo will
fhew the Improbabilicy of his being concerned in
any thing of this Nawre. We fhall prove him
to be a Perfen of a iober Converfation, of a re-
tired Life, and ftudious Difpofition s and as an
Evidence for the Defendant, we fhall prove, that
he in Ofober 1680, left England for his Health’s
fake, and wentinio Fraiucz for the Recovery of
his Healeh, He continued there all abour M-
chachizas was Twelve-month, then he returned.
>T'is true, he continued in Exgloid from Adichael-
mas to the Time they ipeak of ;3 but we fhall
make it plain, that in Febrnary, oy Client, and
my Lord Adomtague had adjuiled Matters be-
tween theridelves, to go the Beginning of  Sumn-
mer again into Frauce, there to continue and a-
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bide fome Time for their Healths, Here is a
ftrange kind of Imagination, that this. Contri-
vance between my Lord Howard and my Lord
Shaftsbury, thar was going on before this Time,
and that was difappointed, and my I.ord Shafi/-
bury went away, and afterwards died in Holland,
was taken up by my Client, and thofe other Per-
fons, when my Client, as we fhall prove, never
intended” to fiay Iy Eugland, My Lord, he was
a Parliament-man in both the laft Parliaments,
but appeared in neither of them, being all the
while 1n France, for the Recovery of his Health.
We fhall prove him to be one ftudioufly inclined,
that he lived a retired Life, and kepr very little
or no Company; and you will hear trom Perfons
of very great Honour and Quality, that he is, as
to his Perfon, and as to his Opinion ; and then
we fhall fubmit it to you, Gentlemen of the
Jury, whether you can believe him guilty of this
he 15 charged with, whichis your Ifite. Youare
to try, whether he be Guilty, or Not Guilty of
the Crime charged 1n the Indiébment.

My, Wallop. My Lord, and Gentiemen of the
Jury, I defire to make one Obfervartion, before we
call our Witneffes,

L. C. 7. Pray do not take up our Time altoge-
ther 1n Speeches, but go on to your Evidence,

Mr. Wallep. 1 defire to obferve but one Thing,
my Lord.

L.C. 7. Mzke your Obfervations at lat, but
fpend not our Time in Speeches. I know you
will expect to be heard ar laft, and fo you fhall,
whatever you will fay.

My, Wiiliams. Call the Earl of Auglefey, the
Lord of Clare, and Lord Paget, Mr. Duces. [WWho
appearing was fwvorn.] Now we have him here we
muft begin with him, my Lord. Mr. Ducas, pray
what did you hear my [Lord Howard fay at any
time concerning this Confpiracy, and who were
concerned 1n 1it, and who were not?

Mr. Dreas. My lLord flszcard came once to the
Houfe of Colonel Sidiey, T believe it was about
8 Days after the Imprifonment of Colonel Sizneys
and when he was in the Hou'e, [ asked him,
What 15 the Matter, my Lord ? He did aniwer me
he was told there was a Plot againft the King
and the Duke, and one general Infurrection to

¢ made, and that Colonel Sidiey Tenta Man in-
to Scotland, to which thing my Lord Howaerdfiware,
laying his Hand on his Breait, faying, God buows
all Things, and God kuowws [ kiows nothing of that s
and I ain fure if Cobowel Sidney bad kiowi aity thing,
be wonld tell me; and 1 faid, what i1s the Matter,
my Lord ? Are youn afraid? And he made Anfwer
to me, Nobonift Men is fafe in bis own Houfe, I
pray you leand sz a Bed to lie in.  And he asked
me about the Goods of Colonel Siduey, becaufe
of the Plot and fuch Things, and he defired to
have them removed to his Houfe ; and he faid,
rather than go to the Zower he would do any
thing,

My Williams. Speak again to the Jary that did
not hear you, what fard my Lord Asward to you?

My, Ducas, He fnd, rather than to be a Priloner
again he would do any thing.

My Williasms. Who 1o be a Prifoner again 2

M. Ducas, My Lord Howard,

iy, Att. Gen. What Things were {poken of 2

Mz, Ducas. He faid he wouid do any thig,

Mr. Williams. Were you {peaking of the Con-
fpiracy? Of the Plot ?

Mr. Ducas. He {pake of the Plot, and faid he
knew nothing of it

Mf‘g
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Mr, Williams. What did he fay, Sir?

My, Ducas. He faid to me and fwore, he knew
nothing of it, and called God to witnefs,

Mr. Williams, Pray, did he then fay he would
do any thing rather than go to the Zower, when
you were talking of the Plot and Confpiracy ¢

My, Ducas. Yes, he would do any thing rather
than be a Prifoner again.

Mz, Ait. Gen. Pray, what did he fay ?

Mr. Ducas. He raifed up his Hands on high,
and faid, he knew nothing of the Plot, or of the
Infurretion, or that Colonel Sidney had fent any
Man into Scotland,

Mr, Williams, When was this?

Mr. Ducas. | believe it was 8 or 9 Days after
the Imprifonment of Colonel Siducy.

Mr. Att. Gen. What Day of the Month, and
what Month was 1t?

Mr. Ducas, He was Imprifoned about the End
Fune.

Lord Howard. My Lord, it would be neceflary
that I thould make an Anfwer to this, and I know
not whether I fhould make a particular Anfwer to
every one; for here is a whole Set of Witneffes,
[ {ee.

L.C. 7. No, let them alone. You muft not in-
terrupt them, they muft go on with their Evidence s
and when *tis 2 fit Time for you to anfwer them,
the Counfel for the King will call you.

Mr, Williams. Pray fwear Mr, Howerd, [WWhich
was done.] Pray, Sir, will you pleafe to acquaint
my Lord and the Jury what you know, of what
my Lord Heward has faid of the Plot, and who
were concerned 1n 1t ?

My, Hewerd. My Lord, what I have faid 1s 1n
the Paper of Mr. Sidney’s Trial, and truly I can
fay no more than what [ faid there.

Mr. Filliains. Pray {peak out, Sir, and tell 1t
again to this Jury.

My, Howward. 1 was told T fpake it very loud
then.

L. C. 7. Pray, Sir, fpeak as you pleafe, we
don’t dire&t you in what Key you fhall fpeak ;
fpeak in what Key you will.

Mr. Howard. "Lhen if you will have me fpeak
it, 1 will fpeak 1t as loud again. My Lord, 1s
Mr. Hasnpden here ?

L.C. 7. Yes, there he 1s.

My, Howard. In the firft Place I do not know
Mr, Hampden, My Lord, I cannot promife to
fpeak the very Words that I fpake the laft time:
I cannot make them fo fit as one Tally fits ano-
ther.

My, Att. Gen. Conlider, Str, you were not Sworn
then, you are Sworn now, that s the Difference,
and therefore pray confider of 1.

Mr. Howard, My Lord, Asnearas I can, I
will repeat the fame Words agaimn, I had little
Acquaintance with my Lord Howard 5 but meet-
ing him often at my Brother’s Houfe (and being
he was extraordinary pleafant Company, I muit
needs fay that he was fo, and a Man of great
Wit) and I coming from #hiieball, he asked me
what News of the Plot? I told him there were
fome People that were in the Proclamation, or
would be, and I named their Names. Says he,
I know none of them except Rumbold, I think;
and by chance I met him pafling through the O/d-
Exchange, and he faluted me very kindly.  After
this my Lord Ruffe/ was taken, and when my
Lord Howard heard that, fays he, then we are all
undone, And I very much fear it is a Sham Plor,

fince they have feized upon my Lord, and I

of
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doubt he is a loft Man. After that, I think, as
near as I can remember-—The next Thing was this
If you look upon the Book, you will fee
what I faid there.

L. C. 7. We are not to look upon the Book,
Man, You muft give your Evidence your felf.
Mr. Howard, 1 hope you do not Swear by Book ¢
Let the Truth come out in God’s Name, what-
ever 1t be.

Mr. Williams. Ay, my Lord, we defire to have
Truth come out,

L. C. ¥. Ay, whether it be of the one Side, or
the other, God forbid but Truth fhould be {pe-
ken. Mr. Howard, go on,

My. Howard. Then, my Lord, Coloncl Sidney
was taken, and, fays my Lord, I am extremely
troubled for Colonel Sidney, for he 1s my very
oood Friend; faid I, why are not you concerned
for my Lord Ruffe/? He is of your Blood, fays
he, heisa Man without Exceptions. There is no
Man of fuch Honour as he, but [ am concerned
for Colonel Sidncy, as that particular Man that has
obliged me above all the World, but I never heard
my l.ord Heward name Mr. Hampden in all my
Lite,

Lord Howard. Il give you Reafon for ity my
Lord, if you pleafe, why 1 faid fo.

L.C. 7. My lord, this is Evidence for the
Defendant, 1t the King’s Counfel will call you
afterwards to make Anfwer to any ef thefe things,
then is your time to fpeak. 'We will rot let them
interrupt you when you come to fpeak, nor muft
you interrupt them now. Weare bound to hear
both Sides, and fo by the Grace of God we will
do.

Lord Howard. My Lord, 1 defire both he and
his Brother may ftay in Court, for I have fome-
thing to fay to them.

Mr. Williams, Pray, what did you hear my Lord
Hsward fay concerning the Plot?

Mr. Howard, He did deny 1t pofitively, and
fard, they acted nothing but what was Legal, and
he fud 1t 500 nmes over,

M. Williaims, Did he deny 12

Mr. Howard, Yes, hedid.

L. C. ¥. Bat when he faid they acted nothing
but legally, what did he mean? Was this Plot
legal ¢

Mr. Howard. 1 had former Difcourfes with my
Lord Howard at other times, and I asked him;
My Lord, what tends all this to? Your going up
into the City and making thefe Meetings?  Says
he, we intended nothing but what is legal. There
1s not one Man in the Company, that I know of,
intends any thing elfe, .

M. Williams. What was my Lord’s Opinton of
the Plot in Fuwe or Fuly, or Auguft ?

Mr. Howard., He faid he knew nothing of 1t
nor could he believe there was any fuch thing.
When thole Perfons were named that were to kil
the Xing, Lord blefs me, {aid he, can there be fuch
a thing in Nature? That any Men fhould be fo wicked.
But that theve is one Man of Hoioni 6r Efate, or
Confcience, that ever had any fuch Thought, it can
never enter into my Head, I can nzver believe i,

M. Williams, When was this?

My, Howard, When Rumbeld and thofe other
People were put into the Proclamation.

Mr. Att. Gen. Mr. Heward, Then I will ask you
your Opinion, whether, n your Judgment, cvery
Man that was in the Plot could not have faid o
much ?

Mr. Howard, 1 {uppofe every Man in the Plot

would
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ould ‘have défended himfelf as well as he could,
but.I'cannot tell what way.,

- Mr. Thompfon. Sir, Did he barely affirm it, or
with Afleverations and Imprecations?

Mr. Howard. My Lord was not put upon his
Qath before me. |
. Mr. A, Gen. Mr. Howard, Don’t you believe a
great many that were concerned in this Plot would
deny 167 | .

M. Howard. T am to give my Opinion only for
my felf, not for other People.

L. C. }. Have you done with him?

My, Williams. Yes, my Lord.

L. C.5¥. Then go over, Sir.

. Mr. Howard. My Lord, I am troubled with
Fumes, and cannot well endure a Crowd, there-
fore I defire I may have leave to be gone.

L. C. }. You may go, if you pleafe.

M. Willams. Call Mr, Edward Howard, [But
be didnot appear.] Then fwear my Lord of Clare
and ‘my Lord Page:, [Which was done.]

L. C. 7. Well, What do you ask my Lord of
Clare ¢

M. Willieins. My Lord of Clare, Will your

Lordthip pleafe to acquaint the Court and the Ju-
ry, what you heard my Lord Howard fay concern-
1n the late Confpiracy ?
- Earlof Clare. My Lord, Some Indifpofition I
have had of late, together with the great Rigour
of the Seafon, has confined me to my Houfe: thefe
hx Weeks, fo that I fhould not come here but up-
on this Summons of a Subpena, which | thought
I ought not to refufe. I fuppofe I need not repeat
much of what was faid at Col. Sidwey’s Trial,

L. C. 7. My Lord, You muft give what Evi-
dence you have to give now.

Mr. Williams. My Lord, The Gentlemen of
this Jury have not heard it, therefore you muft
fay 1t all over again to them.

Earl of Clare. Sometime after Mr. Siduey was
taken, my Lord Howard came to fee me, and
complaiming of the Times, faid, That all things
were very fad and dangerous, and if ever he was
queltioned again, he would not Plead, but defire
them only to count Nofes, for the quickeft Dif-
patch he thought was beft: I replied fure his
Lordfhip was in jeft. He faid, No, he was in
carneft, for he was confident if he came to Tri-
al, they would have his Life, let him appear ne-
ver fo Innocent. T faid, I hoped not fo, it was
only his Lordfhip’s Fear, and becaufe of that, I
thought it might be prefumed he would venture
much, rather than be tried. And difcourfing of
the late Primate of Arinagh’s Prophecy ; he faid,
for his part, he thought the Perfecution was al-
ready begun, and he did believe it would be very
tharp, but withal, he hoped 1t would be but thort
and then he began to with himfelf beyond Sea
tlf the Troubles were over; and in compliance
with his Lordthip I did wifh {o too. But as to
Sidney, Fle did with great Affeverations very much
aifert his Innocency,  He faid, he thought he was
not guilty of any of the things laid to his Charge;
and fpoke with large Encomiums in his Praife, as
he had Obligation to do, and feemed to bemoan
his Misfortunes; which I faid I had then reafon
to believe he was real in, for I believe never any
Man was more engaged to another than he to
Colonel §7dugy. I told him there wasa Difcourfe
of fome Writings of Mr. §7duey’s that were taken
he faid he was confident they would make nothing
of any Writing of his; Itold him, I fuppofed he
mednt, legally ‘they could not do it. "This was

the moft he faid ; as to Mr. Hampdes, he mentis

oned nothing that I know of.

Mr. Williains, Did he feem to declare any Opi-
nion about the Plot or Confpiracy in general, that

there was any fiich thing or not?

Larl of Glare. I do not remember it.

Mr. A, Gen. My Lord of Clare, Did you ne-
ver hear my Lord Howard before this complain
of the Government, that it was amifs, and was to
be rectified ?

Earl of Clare. Yes, he often did complain. E-
very body knows my Lord’s way of Difcourfe.

Lord Howard. Pray, will you ask him, if my

- Lord of Clare ufed to fall out with me upon thofe

Difcourfes,

Larl of Clare. My Lord was always good Com-
pany.

Mr. At Gen. You mean d propos, my Lord.

Earl of Clare. 1 underftand what you mean by
a propos, you are 2 learned Man, I know.

Mr. Sol. Gen. My Lord of Clare, if T apprehend
your Lordthip aright, my Lord Aoward was dif«
courfing of the Primate of Arwmagh’s Prophecy,
and faid he thought the Perfecution was alrcady
begun, and would be fharp, though he hoped it
would be fhort, and he wilhed himfelf beyond
Sea till the Troubles were over, and your Lord{hip
wifhed your felf fo too?

Earl of Clare. No; I faid in compliance with
his Lordfhip, fince he wifhed himfelt beyond Sea
till the Troubles were over, I wifhed he were there
too ?

L.C. . ButI perceive all thefe Difcourfes con-
cerning the Government are reckoned bnt Jeltsand
Matter of Laughter, but ’tis a very rank way of
jetting, T affure you. _

Mr. Williais. My Lord, We call onr Witnef-
fes ferioufly, they are the King’s Counfel that
jeft. ‘

: Mr. Att. Gen, Was this before my Liord Howard
was taken ?

Earl of Clare. Yes, but after Mr. Siduey was
taken.

L.C. #. Well, who do you call next ?

Mr. Williams. My Lord Paget, Pray what have
you heard my Lord Heward fay concerning the
Plot, and when ?

Lord Paget, My Lord fits there, and I believe
he may remember it was about the 7th of Fuly,
the Saturday before my Lord went into the Coun-
try, to the beft of my Memory, which was, I
take it, the gth of Fuly, upon Saturday the 7th at
Night my Lord came to fee me; 1 told lum I was
glad to fec him Abroad, and not concerned in the
Diforders that were then fo general ; my Lord
told me he had been withed Joy by feveral, and he
took 1t 1ill, becaufe it looked as if he were guilty.
"T1s true, my Lord wasa Man of a great Finefs
and Readinefs in Difcourfe, and came eallly mto
all Company, my Lord faid that was true, but he
had {o carefully behaved himfelf, but he was fure
they could not touch him with any thing, nor did
he know any thing of any body elfe that he could
charge them withal,

Myr. Williams., When was this, my Lord?

Lord Paget, 'This was the 7th of Fuly. .
Mr. Ait, Gen, Pray, good my Lord, Why did

you joy my Lord Howard? Had you any Reafon

to miftruft my Lord?
Lord Paget. No other Reafon than becaufe I

knew he was a Man of great Freedom in Difcourfe,
and might be concerned upon that Account.

Mr. Ait, Gen, And he would frequently dif-

courfe
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courfe againft the Government, I fuppofe?

Lord Paget. No, 1 never heard my Lord dif-
courfe again{t the Government in my Life.

Mr. Williams. Swear Dr. Burnet, [Which was
done.] Pray will you, Doctor, acquaint the Court,
what you have heard my Lord Howard fay con-
cerning the late Plot, and when ¢

Dr. Burnet. My Lord Howard came to fee me
the Day after the Difcourfe of the Plot broke out,
Thurfday 1 think 1t was, on Wednefday 1t began to
be talked of. The thing was little underftood
then, but in general a Plot was difcovered, and
my Lord, with a great may Proteftations, lifting
up his Hands and Eyes to Heaven, protefted he
knew of none, and believed there was none, and
fpake of the whole thing as a Contrivance.

My, Williams. This was the Day after the Dif-
covery broke out ?

Dr, Buruet. Yes, the Day after that I firft heard
of It

M. Willians, Had you any other Difcourfe with
my Lord about 1t?

Dr. Burnet. 1 had not feen my Lord before of
fome Months. And then he {pake a great deal to
me. He told me he had been in Effex, and after
that he went to the Bath, and went fo early
and came away before the Company came, becaufe
he would avoid all Danger. And he exprefled
great Apprehenfions of Fear of Sham-Plots, and
ipake of Falfe Witnefles and former Defigns of
that Nature. The Trath of it was, one had pof-
feffed me with a Belief of the Thing, it being
then but a fecret, but he {trove to difpofiefs me
of that Belief, and his whole Difcourfe ran upon
that for an whole Hour, and exprefied, as I faid,
oreat Fear of {ome Sham-Contrivance, and {pake
much of Falic Witnefles, wifhing that he were
beyond Sea.

L.C. 7. What, he fpake asif there were like
to be great Heats and Stirs, 1 fuppofe?

Di. Buiiet, No, the Talk was about the Dif-
covery, which he faid he believed was a Contri-
vance.

Mr. Williams. Did my Lord Howardufe to come
to you fometimes 2

Dr. Buynet. Yes, he ufed to come frequently
to fee me.

Mz, dit, Gen. Dr. Buraet, Pray let me ask you
one Queltion, you fpeak of {olemn Declarations
and Proteftations made by my Lord Aoward,
what gave the occalion to fuch a Solemnity ?

Dr. Burnet. 1 will tell you the occafion truly,
tho? it was never asked me before. It was thus:
1 being poffefled with the Belief of the thing by
one that affured me it was true, and would foon
appear to be fo, Targued upon that Belief to con-
vince my Lord Heward, that it was true, and he
argued a great deal to difpofiefs me of that Be-
lief. And I faid, if there be any fuch thing, I
pray God forgive them that are concerned, hut
certainly it is one of the monftroufeflt ill things
that ever was done; for hercby they have done
all that could be done to ruin the Proteltant Re-
ligion. He was fmoking a Pipe of Zolacco, and
he laid down his Pipe, and lifted up his Hands
and Eyes to Heaven, and protefted to me, he
neither knew of any fuch thing, nor believed i,
but 1t was all a Contrivance.

Myr. A, Gen. By his Dilcourfe, you poflibly
might underftand what he mcant; did he mean
being privy to the Marder of the King, or the
Raifing of Rebellion ?

Dr. Burnet, There wasnot a Word then of the
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Affaffination, but 1t was all of the Plot in general.
Mpr. Sol. Gen. Did he make no diftin¢tion ?
Dr. Burnet, We talked of nothing but Plot in

general, For the Particulars were not 'then

known. It wasonly about the general Notion of

a Plot.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Pray, What was the reafon you
had to beheve it ?

Dr. Buruet, There wasa Gentleman from #7bite-
hall that came to {ee me, and he did affure me it
was true, as being one that had it from a Privy
Counfellor, ‘This was on the Zednefday, when
the Council fat long about it; and nothing of
Particulars was then let out, but only a Difcourfe
in general of fuch a thing, and he faid it would
be found to be a certain Truth.

Mi. A, Gen, Bat, Dottor, did not you a little
wonder at the Carriage of my Lord Heward 2
That a Man that was not accufed, that you heard
of, thould make fuch folemn Proteftations ?

Dr. Burnet. My Lord, he faid juft in this man-
ner as I have told you, when I faid, Pray Ged

Jorgive them, of any bave been coicerned in fuch a

thing, he laid down his Pipe, and lift up his Hands
and Eyes. Whether he thought I fulpeted him,

or no, I can’t tell, he beft knows his own
‘Thoughts.

Mr. Att. Gen. Did he fay a Word of Mr, Hamp-
den ¢

Dr. Burnet, No, there was not any particular
Perfon named.

Myr. Recorder, Doctor, he would not make you
his Confeffor.

Dr. Burnet. His whole Hour’s Difcourfe was to
difpofiefs me of the Opinion and Belief I had en-
tertained of the Plot,

f ]lg:r'. Juft. Holloway. "This was about Fuly, you
ay !

Dr. Burnet. T cannot remember the very Day
of the Month, I believe it was the latter end of
June, but 1 am fure it was before any body was
committed, that we heard of,

M. Recorder. Dr. Burnet, you fay you did be-
lieve there was a Plot then ?

Dr. Buriet. Yes, I did fo, and he labour'd to
difpoffefs meof that Belief,

Mr. Recorder. Pray do you believe it now ?

Mr. Williams, What a Queflion is that, Mr.
Seirfeant ¢

Dr. Burnet, 1 make no Doubt of it, Sir, as to
the Affaflination.

Mr, Att, Gen. My Lord Newport, Why do you
lift up your Hands? You don’t do well; for it is
a very proper Queftion.

L.C.7. Well, call your next Witnefs, Gentle-
men.,

M. Thoumpfon, Swear Mr. Gishoine.

[ Which was done.]

Mr. Williams. Pray, Sir, will you acquaint the
Court and the Jury, what you have heard my Lord
Howard fay about the late Confpiracy ?

Mr. Gisbarne. My Lord only faid he knew no-
thing of the Plot; that is all T can fay.

Mr. Williams. When was this ¢

Mr. Gisborne. The Saturday before he was taken
into Cuftody 5 then it was that your Honour did
fay fo, my Lord.

Mr. Ait, Gen. Ay, and a 100 more, T believe,
would fay fo, that might be concerned in it for
all that, '

Mr. Williains, Swear Mr, Blake. [Which was
done.] Pray acquaint my Lord and the Jury,
what Dilcourfe you had with my Lord Howard

about



1683.B.R.

~hout his Pardon, and what hefaid to you?

M. Blake. My Lord, about the Month of Oc-
sober laft my Lord Heward fent to me to know
how I did, and defired me to come and make him
4 Vifit. The next Day I wentand waited upon
my Lord at his Lodging at IWhiteball, and after
the Compliments paffed, my Lord began 2 Dif-
courfe of the Plot, and Itold him, That I heard
none of the Witnefles had their Pardons, but on-
ly Keeling, the firft Difcoverer. My Lord told me
no, but he had a Warrant for his Pardon, and
with that he pluck’d it out and {hewed it me, and
T read it. And then I told him I thought 1t was
of no Avail, without he had his Pardon actually
ander his Seal ;5 he faid no, but he had therr Word
.nd Honour : But, faid he, when 1 firft received
the Warrant, they faid I fhould not meddle in 1t,
til I heard from them again, which I have not

et ; and I afcribe it to no other Reafon bur only
this, That I muft not have it tll the Drudgery
of Swearing is ovcr.

M. Williams. When was this ¢

A4, Blake. In Offober laft fome tirne. So I then
took my Leave of my Lord, and my Lord defired
me to come and fee him at Night about fix 0’
Clock in the Evening, for he had a great many
come to him, but then he fhould be at Leifure,
and had many Things to fay to me.

A Art. Gen. At that Time did my Lord ex-
prels himfelf as difcontented, and that it was irk-
fome to him to be brought as a Witnefs ¢

M. Biake. He only faid thofe Words that I
have told you, and looked up and turned up his
Eyes towards Heaven when he fad fo.

M. Williams, Pray, where 1s Mr. Bezrjamin Mer-
cer 2 Swear him, [(Whowas feorn,

L.C. ¥. What do you ask him ¢

Mr. Williams. We bring him to prove that my
Lord Auglefey was ferved with a Subpana, but is
fo ill of the Gout he can’t come.

L.C. 7. If that be all, there is no Queftion of
it, but that he was fibpana’d. _

My, Williams. If your Lordfthip pleafe, we will
prove In what Condition my Lord Auglefey 1,
and then we hope your Lordfhip will give us
Leave to prove what my Lord has faid concern-
inc my Lord Howard’s Difcourles with him,

L. C.¥. Nocertainly, Mr. Zilliams, and [ am
furc you ask it not as expecting it fhould be grant-

ed.
M, Williins. 1lay itbefore your Lordfhip and

the Court.
L.C. . Ay, You lay it before us, but you are a
Lawyer, do you. yourfelf think fit it fhould be

done ?
M. Williams, My Lord, 1 muft fubmit it to

oul.
’ L.C.¥. Cqme, Will you confent that what
the Duke of AMonmonth has faid, {hall be given in
Evidence, and then I prefume the King’s Counfel
will confent to your Requeft?

M. Williams. I confent? Here 15 my Client,
my Lord, in Court, I can confent to nothing,

L. C. %, Butif fo be there be leave given on
one fide to tell what another Perfon has faid,
why thould not it be confented to on the other
fide, that it be proved what a third Perfon that
35 abfent has faid for them?

Myr. Recorder. Ay, Will you confent that we
prove what the Duke of Moimonth has faid ?

Myr. Williams, We don’t know what the Duke
of Monmouth has faid,

L.C. ¥. But you do know °tis nct Evidence,
not fit to be granted what you ask,

Vour IL
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Mr. Fones. You know that *tis not for your pur-
pofe what he has faid.

 Mr. Williams, My Lord, We muft go accorda
ing to our Inftrutions.

L.C. ¥. But you know the Law, why fhould
you offer any fuch thing? Your offering it will
make the Lay gens that know not the Law think
that the Court puts Hardfhips upon People, in de-
nying things which you that underftand the Law
know can’e be granted. -

Mr. Williams. 1 do not prefs it, my Lord, but
leave it with you,

L. C. 7. Why do youfpend our time in urging
things that are nothing to the purpofe, and can-
not be allowed ? -

Mr. Williams. Now, my Lord, We will go on
to another part of our Defence, and that is, to
call Witnefles to the Reputation of Mr, Hampden,
and his Behaviour, to fatisfy you, that he cannot
be fuch a Perfon as the Indi€tment fays, and as he
muft be if it be true what this Gentleman, my
Lord Howard, has {worn.

Mr. Thompfon. We will firft examine my Lord
Paget, [Wha frood up.

Mr. Williams, My Lord, We ask you to that
Queftion. Have you known this Gentleman Mr.,
t1aimpden, and what fort of a Man is he ?

Lord Paget. 1 have good reafon to know him.
I have known him a great while, and have always
believed him an honeft and a prudent Man, a Man
of Honour and Virwe, and Integrity, my Lord ;
and I have had no Reafon to have other Opinion
I know he has been always, ever {ince
he came abroad into the World, a Man that hath
loved his Study, and Books, and a contemplative
Life. And therefore I fhould not be apt to be-
lieve, That he could apply himfelf to a Thing fo
contrary to his own Nature, and to that Way that
he delighted in, and had always hitherto applied
himfelf unto, I mean to engage in a Delign of fo
much Malice and Wickednefs,

Mr. Williams. My Lord, You have had a long
Converfation with the Knowledge of Mr. Hamp-
den, you fay. What fay you as to his Difpofi-
tion ; becaufe this Indiétment fays he is 2 Perfon
of a turbulent, fattious, feditious Spirit?

Lord Paget. 1 have always known him a quiet
peaceable Man, not meddling in “Bufinefs, very
triendly, free from all Turbulency, not of much
Acquaintance, nor defirous to make much.

Mr. Att. Gen, Pray, my Lord Paget, upon the
fame Qath you have taken, have you not at any
Time heard him exprefs Diffatisfaction as to the
Male-adminiftration of the Government ?

Lord Paget. No, never to me tn the leaft.

Mr. At Gen. Notat the Time of the laft 7ef-
minfter Parliament 2

Lord Paget. No, I never heard him then, nor
at any time elfe.

- My, Williams. Mr. Hampden was then in France,
and not in that Parliament, though he was a
Member. Where is Mr. Pelbam ¢

L. C. . Here heis. Hefitsdownhere. [ Point-
ing to the 4. able.] 'What would you ask him ?

[He was fworn.

Mr. Williams. Sit, will you pleafe to acquaint
the Court, what Acquaintance you have had with
Mr. Hampden, and how long? And what you
know of him ¢ '

L.C. 7. You hear the Queftion, Sir, how long
have you been acquainted with Mr. Hampden ?

Mpr. Pelbam. 1 have been acquainted with Mr.

Hampden about five or fix Years living near him,
5P and
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and all that T could obferve from him was, that
he was a2 Man much addicted to his Studies, kept
much at home, and I never obferved that he had
much Acquaintance ; but as to the Bufinels before
you, I know nothing of it, nor ever heard him
{peak any thing relating to it.

My, Williams. As to his Spirit and Difpofition,
is he a turbulent Man ¢

M. Pelbam. No, I never found him any thing
like it. We never talked together of Matters of
that Nature.,

- M. Att. Gen. Were you ever in his Company
at any time when he difcourfed about Govern-
ment ¢

Mr. Pelbam. No, I was never with him at any
time when he difcourfed of any fuch thing,

Mr. Williams. Siv Henry Hobart.

My, Ait. Gen. My Lord, we oppofe his being a
Witnefs. - He is one of his Bail.

Mr. Williams. 'That was upon the Habeas Cor-
pus A&, not upon this Indictment.

My, Ait. Gen, If he be Bail for the Defendant,
my Lord, he cannot be a Witnefs,

Mir. Williams. 1 appeal to the Rule of Court,
whether he was not Bail upon the Habeas Corpus
Aétonly?

Mr. Ait. Gen. Appeal where you will, the Bal
cannot be a Witnels.

My. Williams. We moved for an Habeas Corpus
the Beginning of laft Term upon the late Act for
Habeas Corpus’s. And then at the Iaft Day of the
Term upon Habeas Corpus he was brought up thi-
ther, and was bailed upon that Writ,

Mr. Att. Gen. Are not you one of the Bail, Sir
Henry Hobait ¢

Sir Heury Eobart. I was one of his Bail, I think
it was for his Appearance.

L.C. 7. 1t he be one of his Bail that he {hall
appear in this Court the firft Day of this Term,
and fo from Day to Day, till he fhall be dif-
charged, and remains under that Recognizance,
then 1n any Cafe againft him he cannot be a Wit-
nefs for him.

Mr. Ait. Genr. But they miftake the Matter, he
was then charged with this Inditment: He then
pleaded to it, and was bailed to an{wer the In-
di¢tment; and furely in that Cale he can never be
a Witnels.

L.C.F. That is certainly very true, and you
know the Law fo well, Mr. /7 illiams, that I won-
der you will infift of it; inevery ordinary Cafe,
it is every Day’s Pradtice to deny the Bail to be
Witnefles.

Nr. Att. Gen. Here is the Perfon principal, will
they render him in Cuftody ?

L.C.7. Ay, what fay you, will you render
him in Cuftedy ¢ Then we will difcharge the Bail.

My, Hilliains. My Lord, 1 will tell you what we

will do.
L.C. ¥ Tell me what you will do! Anfwer

my Quettion, Will you render him in Cuftody ?

M. Williams. We will change the Bail, my
Lord, and find fome other fufficient Perfon to
ftand in Sir Henry Hobart’s Place, rather than lofe
our Witnefs,

L. C. 7. With all my Heart.

Myr. Williains. Here 1s Mr. Abburft, my Lord,
a Gentleman of very good Value.

L.C.¥. But you muft render him firlt, and
change the whole Bail. ‘They muit enter into
new Recognizances.

Mr. Williams. 1 can’t tell whether we can do

that fo very well, becaufe the othess, I am afraid,
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are not all here, Heisa mighty material Wit-
nefs, I am fure,

M. Ast. Gen. My Lord, Mr. Williams fays he 1s
a material Witnefs, let him be fworn, I am fo
fair, I’ll confent to 1t: Let us hear what he can
fay. [WWhich was dose.

Mr, Williams. We thank you, Mr. Attorney. I
am afraid you won’t live long, you are fo good-
natur’d.

L. C. 7. But youare like to live for your Good-
nature, Mr., 27 illiams,

Mr. Thom, fon. Sir Henry Hobart, How long
have you been acquainted with this Gentleman,
Mr. Hampden ?

Sir H. Hobart. 1 have known him any time
thefe ten Years.

Mr Williams. How has he been, Sir, as to his
Difpofition and-Spirit ? Did you ever find him to
be of a turbulent Temper ?

Sir H., Hobart. Very far from it always,

Mr. Williams. Have you had any intimate Con-
verfation with him ?

Sir H. Hobart, 1 have known him all along, I
fay, thefe ten Years, but of late I have had more
Converfe with him fome few Years in Travel.

Mr, Williams. Had you much Converfation,
Sir?

Sir . Hobart. 1 was with him continually at
Paris, and abroad.

M. Williams. What fay you as to his Loyalty
:}ﬂd Principles ? Was he a factious, feditious Per-
on ?

Sir. H. Hobart. Sir, he always exprefled a great
Elteem for the Government, and great Refpect
and Duty to the King,

Mr. Williams. Pray, Sir, when went Mr. Hamp-
den abroad to go into France ?

Sir H, Hobart. He went into France for his
Health about Nevember, (80.) I think it was.

My, Hilliains, How long did he continue a-
broad, Sir Henry ?

sz'r H, Hobart. 1 found him in Paris the May
after.

Mr. Williams. How long cid you tarry there,
Sir, your felf ¢

Sir H, Hobart, 1 went from Paris in Fune, and
came back again to Paris about Offober or Ne-
vember, the fame Year, and I found him in Frauce
fHill.

My, Williams, And when do you take it he re-
turned into England,

Sir. H. Hobart. 1 was with him till he came o-
ver, which was about September, (82.) 1 think.

Myr. Thompfon. What do you know, Sir, of his
Intentions to go again beyond Sea?

Sir H. Hobart. When, Sir, do you mean ?

M. Thompfon. Since that time he came over,
you fay in September, (82.)

Sir H, Hobart. He told me of 1t often, I think
it was about March, more particularly once at his
own lHoule.

My, Thompfon. What March, Sir ?

Sir H, Hobart, March(83.)

Mr. Thompfon. That is latt March,

Sir H, Hobart, Yes, lalt March, he talked of it
feveral times, particularly once I went about fome
Bufinefs of my own, and then he difcourfed a
great deal of his going over with my Lord Moui-
tapne that now 15 for he told me his Health was
not yet eftablithed, for he came over out of an
hot Country in Autumn, and had been all the
Winter in this colder Country, and the Air he
found had impaired his Health again, And it was

not
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not only what he told me, but I had a Letter from
a Friend of mine in France, towhom I had fent to
defire him to come over; but he writ me Word,

no; Mr. Hampdenn was coming over again, and he -

would not come back agam yer.

Mr. Att, Ger. Did he tell you when he intend-
ed to go over, Sir Hewiy ?

Sir H. Hobart, As {oon as Mr. Mountagne, my
Lord Mountague that now is, could get ready,
who was to carry his Lady over with him.

Mr. Williams. Sir, do youknow of any Prepa-
ration made by Mr. Hampden for it ?

Sir H. Hobart. He had refolved to take his La-
dy with him, becaule Mr. Afountagne’s Lady went,
and fo I believe did prepare accordingly.

My, Att. Gen. Did Mr. Moyntague go over ?

Sir H. Hobart. He did not go then, but fince

he is gone.
Mr. Az, Gen. Were you in France then at this

Time?

Sir H. Hobart, "This wasin Eugland, at his own
Houlfe.

Mr. Williains. Pray, Sir, whatis his Difpofi-
tion ¢

Sty H. Hobart. He was always inclined to a {tu-
dious Life, and kept very little Company.

Mr. Att, Gen. Was this in March, 83 ¢

Sir H. Hobart. Yes, he came over In September
before. Ialways obferved him to be of a retired
Temper.

Mr. At Gen. You fay in 1680, he went into
France, and (82) he came over again ?

Sir H. Hobart. Yes.

Mr. A, Gen. Pray, Sir Heary, fince you con-
verfed fo much with him, have you heard him
fince the laft Parliament at Zefiminfler, or at any
time have yon been by when he hath difcourfed
his Opinion about Government ?

Sir H. Hobart. Truly, Sir, 1 don’t take myfelf
to be capable of difcourfing with him about any
fuch Matters.

Mr. stt. Gen. Have you heard him at any time
complam of the Male-Adminifiration of the Go-
Vernment ¢

Sir H. Hobart. No, Sir.

M. Ast. Gen. Have you never heard any fuch
Thing {from him?

Sir H, FHobart. No, never.

Mr. Williams. Swear Dr. Lupee——My Lord,
we muft defire an Interpreter, for the Doétor
fpeaks French only.

L. C. % Swear an Interpreter.

M. Williams. Dr. Buynet, or if he be gone,
call Sir Henry Hobart again. We muft beg the
Favour of you Sir Henry, to be an Interpreter,
you underftand the French Tongue very well.

Sir H. Hobart. T will do 1t with all my Fleart,
Sir, as well as I can,

L. C. 7. Swear him.

Then the Deffor was fworit, and the Oath wepeated

to him by Sir Henrv Hobart in French.

Ciier, You fhall well and truly interpret be-
tween the Court and the Witnefs, and the Wit-
neis and the Court, according to the beft of your
Skill and Knowledge : So help you God.,

Mr. Thompfon. Sic Henry, will you pleafe to
repeat what Queftions we fhall ask, and what An-
fwers he makes?

Sir H. Hobart, Yes, Stir, as well as I can, [ will.

Nir, Williams. Pray, Sir, ask the Do&or this
Queftion, If he be acquainted with Mr. Hampden 2

Sir H. Hobart. Yes, hefays very well, He Ji-
ved near two Years with him,
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Mr. Thompfon. How long is it fince ?
Sir H. Hobart. Four Years fince, he fays.
Mr. Willigins. Pray, in that time, What was hig
Difpofition? Was he a feditious and turbulent

"Man? Or was he a ftudious retired Man , or

what ? .

Sir H. Hobart, He fays the two Years he lived
with Mr. Hampden, he kept him Company in his
Studies, and all thar time he found he had no o-
ther Inclinations but for Study and Knowledge,
and his Inchinations were very virtuous., He al-
ways oblerved in his Difcourfe a great Submiffion
and Refpect that he had for the Laws of his Na-
tion, and his Prince, and to that Degree he was
a faithful Subject to the King, that once he told
him, in difcourling with him of the late Popifh
Plot, that he was ready to facrifice his Life and
Fortune for the King’s Service.

My, Thompfon. Ask him what Dilcourfe he had
with him of the Plot fince it brake out.:

L. C. 7 Wil that be any Evidence do you
think, Mr. Thompfon? Will Mr. Hampdei’s De-
claration be any Evidence, he being a Perlon
accufed # Do you think he would tell the Doctor,
or any body elfe that he was guilty, shen he
was like to be queftioned ? That would have been
a wife Bulinefs indeed. You fay he was a very
{tudious Man, and a learned Man, truly if he had
done that, he had beftowed his Time in Learning
to very good Purpofe.

Mr. Williams, My Lord, That that we would
ask him is this ; This Perfon, the Dottor, being
difcourfing with Mr. Hampden upon the Difco-
very of the late Confpiracy, and of the danger-
oufnefs of the time, he would have advifed Mr.
Hampden to have gone; no, he faid, he would
not, for he was an innocent Man, and would not
ftir,

L.C.§. Well, ask him what you will, but his
Declaration of his own Innocence cannot be taken
for Evidence.

Sir H. Hobart. He fays, fince this Plot was dif~
covered, he was going one Day to wific Mr,
Hawmpden, and going through Long-Acre, he met
a French Minifter, a Savoyard Minifter But,
my Lord, he fpeaks fo falt, and goes on with
fo much ata time, that I cannot remember 1t

all, ‘
My, Williams. Well, what faid that Minifter

to him ?

Sir H. Hobart. He fays this Minifter asked him
if Mr. Hampden was not concerned in the Plot,
and upon that he went and told him what the
Minifter had faid to him —— He fays, he told
Mr, Hampden, that the Duke of Memnouth, and
my Lord Grey were hid He fays, upon that
Mr. Hampden faid to him, I will never fly, nor
conceal myfelf, for my Conlcience reproaches
me in nothing,

L.C. ¥. Ask him why does he think the French
Minifter, the Savsyardas he calls him, {hould ask
whether Mr, Hampden were in the Plotr?

Sir H. Hobart, He fays, Mr, Hampden faid he
would rather die innocent than fly with the imn-
putation of Gult upon him.

ueftion I put, why

L. C. 7. But ask him the Q
thould that Saveyard Parfon fay fo? What reafon

had he to think Mr. Hampden was in the Plot 2
Sir H. Hobart. He fays the Minifter didask him,
but he can’t tell what Reafon he had to think fo.
Mr, At Gen., Pray, Sir Henry, ask him this Que-
ftion ; how long ago it was {ince he left him ?
Sir H, Hobart, Four Years, he favs.
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